
1 
 

Pwyllgor Cynllunio, Trwyddedu Tacsis a Hawliau 
Tramwy 

 
Man Cyfarfod 
 

 

 
 

Neuadd Y Sir 
Llandrindod 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod 
Dydd Iau, 17 Mawrth 2022 

 
Amser y Cyfarfod 
10.00 am 

 
I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch â 
Carol Johnson 
01597826206 
carol.johnson@powys.gov.uk 

 Dyddiad Cyhoeddi 
 

 

Mae croeso i’r rhai sy’n cymryd rhan ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg. Os hoffech chi siarad 
Cymraeg yn y cyfarfod, gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i ni erbyn hanner dydd ddau 
ddiwrnod cyn y cyfarfod 

 

AGENDA 

 
1.  YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 
 
 

2.  COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAENOROL  

 
Awdurdodi’r Cadeirydd i lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod blaenorol y Pwyllgor a gynhaliwyd 
ar 3 Chwefror 2022 fel cofnod cywir. 
(Tudalennau 1 - 10) 
 

Cynllunio 
 

 

3.  DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB  

 
(a) Derbyn unrhyw ddatganiadau o ddiddordeb gan aelodau mewn perthynas ag 
eitemau sydd i'w hystyried ar yr agenda.   
(b)  Derbyn ceisiadau gan aelodau i gofnodi eu haelodaeth ar gynghorau tref neu 
gymuned lle cafwyd trafodaeth ar faterion sydd i'w trafod gan y Pwyllgor hwn.   
(c)  Derbyn datganiadau gan Aelodau'r Pwyllgor y byddant yn gweithredu fel 
'Cynrychiolydd Lleol' mewn perthynas â chais unigol sy'n cael ei ystyried gan y 
Pwyllgor.   

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



(d)  Nodi manylion aelodau'r Cyngor Sir (sydd ddim yn aelodau'r Pwyllgor) a fydd yn 
gweithredu fel 'Cynrychiolydd Lleol' o ran cais unigol sy'n cael ei ystyried gan y 
Pwyllgor. 
 
 

4.  CEISIADAU CYNLLUNIO I'W HYSTYRIED GAN Y PWYLLGOR.  

 
Ystyried adroddiadau’r Pennaeth Eiddo, Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd ac i 
wneud unrhyw benderfyniadau angenrheidiol ar hynny.  
 
(Tudalennau 11 - 12) 
 

4.1.  Diweddariadau 

 Bydd unrhyw ddiweddariadau yn cael eu hychwanegu i’r Agenda, fel 
Pecyn Atodol, lle bynnag bo hynny’n bosibl, cyn y cyfarfod. 
 
 
 

4.2.  21/1381/FUL Fferm Wern Halog, Llanfaredd, Llanfair-ym-Muallt, 
Powys, LD2 3TE 

 (Tudalennau 13 - 74) 
 
 

4.3.  20/1338/RES Tir wrth ymyl Shop Lane, Sarn, Y Drenewydd, Powys, 
SY16 4DQ 

 (Tudalennau 75 - 106) 
 
 

5.  PENDERFYNIADAU'R PENNAETH EIDDO, CYNLLUNIO A GWARCHOD Y 
CYHOEDD AR GEISIADAU DIRPRWYEDIG  

 
Derbyn rhestr o benderfyniadau a wnaed gan y Pennaeth Eiddo, Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd o dan bwerau dirprwyedig, er gwybodaeth.  
(Tudalennau 107 - 154) 
 
 
 



2022-02-03 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE PLANNING, TAXI LICENSING & RIGHTS OF 
WAY COMMITTEE HELD AT BY TEAMS ON THURSDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2022 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillor K Lewis (Chair) 
 
County Councillors G Jones, L V Corfield, L George, E M Jones, M J Jones, 
F H Jump, H Lewis, D R Price, K Laurie-Parry, P C Pritchard, G Pugh, D Selby, 
K S Silk, L Skilton, E Vaughan, G I S Williams, D H Williams, R Williams and 
J Wilkinson 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillor M Weale. 

 

2.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The Chair was authorised to sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 13 January 2022. 

 

Planning 
 

 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
(a) County Councillor H Williams declared a prejudicial interest in application 
20/1314/FUL as he had spoken about the application at previous meetings and it 
could be deemed that he was predetermined. 
 
County Councillor L George declared a prejudicial interest in application 
20/1241/FUL as he had taken part in discussion at community council meetings 
and indicated he was not in favour of the application. 
 
(b) County Councillor D Selby requested that a record be made of his 
membership of Newtown and Llanllwchaiarn Community Council where 
discussion had taken place of matters for the consideration of this Committee, in 
which he took no part. 
 
(c) County Councillor L Corfield (who is a member of the Committee) 
declared that she would be acting as ‘local representative’ in respect of 
application 21/0422/FUL. 
 
(d) The Committee noted that no Member (who is not a member of the 
Committee) would be speaking as the ‘local representative’ in respect of any 
application on the agenda. 

 

4.  PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Property, Planning and 
Public Protection (copies filed with the signed minutes). 
 
 

 
Tudalen 1

2



2022-02-03 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee 

4.1 Updates 
 

The Members confirmed that they had received and had time to read the update 
circulated the previous day. 
 

4.2 21/1660/FUL Cedewain School, Plantation Lane, Newtown, SY16 
1LH 

 
Grid Ref:   E: 309990 N: 290353 
 
Valid Date:   02/11/21 
 
Community Council: Newtown and Llanllwchaiarn Town Council 
 
Applicant:   Powys County Council 
 
Location: Cedewain School, Plantation Lane, Newtown, SY16 

1LH 
 
Proposal: Demolition of all buildings currently associated with 

the existing Ysgol Cedewain Additional Learning 
Need (ALN) School site. Erection of a new 2 Storey 
Additional Learning Need School, formation of Multi 
Use Games Area, external services yard compound, 
sports pitch, new 45 space car parking area including 
4 electric charging bays, new vehicular access off 
Plantation Lane, landscaping works and all 
associated works 

 
Application Type:  Full Application 
 
The Principal Planning Officer advised that if the Committee was minded to 
approve the application the conditions were those in the update report. 
 
In response to a question regarding the use of the open spaces and facilities the 
Principal Planning Officer advised that the Education Service had advised that 
there was a possibility that the open space could be used in the future by the 
community.  Comment was made that the community had been able to use the 
open space to date and if it could not be used in the future, it would be another 
loss to the area, which had already lost the community centre and pub.  The 
Solicitor and the Professional Lead – Planning in response to a question 
confirmed that if the Committee was minded to approve the application a 
commentary could be added making strong representations to the Education 
Service to work hard to allow the community to use the facilities on the site 
outside of school hours. 
 
In response to questions regarding site access, the Principal Planning Officer 
advised that the existing access to the primary school would continue to be used.  
However, usage would be reduced as a new access was included for the new 
development.  The Highways Officer in response to a question regarding the 
number of Electric Vehicle [EV] charging points advised that Future Wales 
Development Plan Policy 12 required that 10% of parking allocation on a site 
should be provided as EV charging points.   

Tudalen 2



2022-02-03 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee 

 
In respect of the right of way, the Assistant Commons Registration and Definitive 
Map Officer advised in response to a question that the proposed new line of the 
public footpath would run along the edge of the school site and a 2.1 metre fence 
would be erected on the school side of the path. 
 
The Professional Lead - Planning in response to a question regarding the 
sustainability of the development advised that the development would meet 
BREAM standards.  In response to a question regarding the height of the 
development the Principal Planning Officer advised that although at the 
maximum the building was 9.8 metres the building was not considered to be 
overbearing due to its design and its location away from sensitive receptors and 
with the backdrop of the industrial buildings.  Concerns were raised regarding the 
proposed cladding and the weathering of the timber.  The Principal Planning 
Officer advised that if the Committee was minded to approve the application a 
condition could be added seeking prior approval of the timber cladding to ensure 
that the most suitable materials are used. 
 
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the application as recommended in 
the update report with the addition of a condition regarding the cladding and a 
commentary seeking the Education Service to allow the local community to have 
access to the open space and facilities on the site. 
 

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 

that the application be granted 
consent, subject to the 
conditions set out in the update 
report which is filed with the 
signed minutes and that the 
following condition be added: 
seeking prior approval of the 
timber cladding to ensure that the  
most suitable materials are used 
and  
that a commentary seeking the 
Education Service to allow the 
local community to have access 
to the open space and facilities 
on the site. 

As officer’s recommendation as 
set out in the update report 
which is filed with the signed 
minutes. 
To include an additional 
planning condition to ensure 
appropriate materials are used, 
and to include a commentary to 
encourage the Education 
Service to consider the wider 
community role of the school. 
 

 
County Councillor H Williams having declared a prejudicial interest left the 
meeting for the following item.   
 
Councillors D Price, D Selby and J Wilkinson muted their microphones and took 
no part in the discussions or the vote in respect of the next item, as they were not 
present at the previous meeting, at which the application was deferred.  
 
 

4.3 20/1314/FUL Land at Brynygroes Farm, Ystradgynlais, SA9 1LF 
 

Grid Ref:   E: 299115 N: 267747 
 
Valid Date:   21/08/2020 

Tudalen 3



2022-02-03 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee 

 
Community Council: Ystradgynlais Town Council 
 
Applicant:   Mr Matthew Morgan 
 
Location:   Land at Brynygroes Farm, Ystradgynlais, SA9 1LF 
 
Proposal: Full planning application for residential development 

and associated works 
 
Application Type:  Full Application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer advised that the applicant had addressed the issues 
of sustainability, justification for the reduced parking provision, Welsh language 
action plan and the provision of play equipment raised by the Committee at the 
meeting in December 2021.   
 
In response to questions the Highways Officer advised that there was a 
dedicated active travel route from the development to the A4607 and a signalised 
crossing on that road.  Due to the gradient of the site the active route was 
designed to ensure that it could be used by all users.   
 
In respect of the deregistration of the Common Land, the Assistant Commons 
Registration and Definitive Map Officer advised in response to a question that the 
Planning Inspectorate had considered this on behalf of the Welsh Government 
and the latter had granted this. 
  
County Councillor H Lewis and R Williams left the meeting for other Council 
business. 
 
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the application as recommended by 
the officer. 
 

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 

that the application be granted 
consent, subject to the 
conditions set out in the report 
which is filed with the signed 
minutes. 

As officer’s recommendation as 
set out in the report which is 
filed with the signed minutes. 

 
 
County Councillors H Williams re-joined the meeting and County Councillors D 
Price, D Selby and J Wilkinson unmuted their microphones [this was because 
they had not been present when the application was discussed previously by the 
committee and that being the case, they did not take part in discussions or vote 
in respect of the above resolution].   
 
County Councillor L Corfield left the meeting for the following item as she would 
join the meeting as a speaker.   
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 4



2022-02-03 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee 

4.4 21/0422/FUL Land Near To St Mary The Virgin Church, Trelystan , 
Welshpool, SY21 8LD 

 
Grid Ref:   E: 326265 N: 303958 
 
Valid Date:   17/03/21 
 
Community Council: Forden With Leighton & Trelystan Community Council 
 
Applicant:   Mrs J Jones 
 
Location: Land Near to St Mary The Virgin Church, Trelystan, 

Welshpool, SY21 8LD 
 
Proposal: Erection of a temporary marquee for wedding 

receptions (between April and October each year), 
creation of access, installation of infrastructure and 
siting of a temporary toilet unit 

 
Application Type:  Full Application 
 
The Principal Planning Officer advised that since the update report had been 
circulated, eight letters of objection had been received. 
 
County Councillor L Corfield spoke as the local representative. 
Mrs D Stevens, Mr R Stevens and Mrs A Batten spoke as objectors. 
Mr G Clark spoke as the Agent on behalf of the applicant. 
 
In response to questions regarding the listed building the Principal Planning 
Officer advised that the listed building had been taken into consideration and the 
Built Heritage Officer had advised that the visual impact would be neutral.  The 
Built Heritage Officer advised that the impact on the listed building had to be 
balanced against the financial benefits to the church and the communal benefits 
of bringing more people to the church.  He stated that steps had been taken to 
mitigate the impact of the marquee by locating it further away from the listed 
building and also changing the colour of the roof.  He advised that taking all this 
into account there was a neutral impact on the setting and that the marquee 
should be tied to the usage of the church through the S106.  
 
Concerns were raised about the noise levels in the marquee and the impact on 
the church and neighbours.  It was noted that the Environmental Health Officer 
had recommended that noise levels should not exceed 30db, which was said to 
be equivalent to a quiet whisper and which was not seen as achievable for the 
proposed use of the marquee.   
 
In response to a question the Principal Planning Officer advised that Shropshire 
County Council had not been consulted.  In respect of the work which seems to 
have been carried out at the site Development Management would have to 
consider whether any changes had been made on the site, whether these were 
allowed under permitted development rights or whether these required 
investigating and enforcement action taken in the event of the application being 
refused.   
 

Tudalen 5



2022-02-03 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee 

Concerns were raised about the S106 agreement, as drafted, as it did not seem 
to tie the marquee directly to the use of the church as ceremonies could also be 
held in the marquee and not the church or both being used at the same time.  It 
was noted that the Built Heritage Officer had indicated that to mitigate the impact 
on the church the use of the marquee should be tied directly to the use of the 
church.   
 
The Highways Officer in response to a question regarding the new Highway 
Code which refers to the distance between drivers and horse riders advised that 
drivers could not comply with this due to the limited space on the access road.  
He advised that there are limited passing facilities on the highway in this area.  
Concerns were raised about the increased use of the narrow road.  In respect of 
permitted development rights the Principal Planning Officer advised that the 
marquee could be used for 28 days in a calendar year with no restrictions on 
visitor numbers or the times of year the marquee could be erected. 
 
In response to a question regarding the views of the Church, the Professional 
Lead – Planning advised that the Diocese of Hereford had supported the 
application in December 2020.  Comment was made that the opinion may have 
changed since this response.  The Committee noted the differences in the 
financial benefits to the church quoted by the agent and the vicar which were 
quoted by an objector. 
 
It was moved and duly seconded to defer the application to enable the S106 
agreement to be made more concise to ensure it ties the marquee to the church, 
to consult Shropshire County Council and the Diocese, for the applicant and 
church to clarify the financial benefits to the church, to review the noise issues 
and consider the highways issues. 
 

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 

that the application be deferred. To enable the S106 agreement to 
be made more concise to ensure 
it ties the marquee to the 
church, to consult Shropshire 
County Council and the Diocese, 
for the applicant and church to 
clarify the financial benefits to 
the church, to review the noise 
issues and consider the 
highways issues. 

 
Comment was made that advice from the Welsh Government regarding the Built 
Heritage issue should be sought, to support the Committee’s further 
consideration of the application. 
 
County Councillors M J Jones and K Laurie-Parry did not vote as they were not 
present for the whole discussion. 
 
County Councillor L Corfield re-joined the meeting.   
 
County Councillor L George having declared an interest left the meeting for the 
following item.   
 

Tudalen 6



2022-02-03 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee 

 
4.5 20/1241/FUL Glanhanog Isaf Barns, Glanhanog Isaf, Carno, 

Caersws, Powys SY17 5JU 
 

Grid Ref:   E: 294486 N: 299084 
 
Valid Date:   30/09/2020 
 
Community Council: Carno Community Council 
 
Applicant:   Corrine Adlington 
 
Location: Glanhanog Isaf Barns, Glanhanog Isaf, Carno, 

Caersws, Powys SY17 5JU 
 
Proposal: Conversion of existing barn to 5 holiday let units, the 

change of use of an agricultural building to a 
communal recreational area and all associated works. 

 
Application Type:  Full application 
 
The Principal Planning Officer advised that if the Committee was minded to 
approve the application the conditions were those in the update report.    
 
In response to questions regarding water pollution the Professional Lead – 
Planning advised that the area was not in a SAC catchment.  It was noted that 
Natural Resources Wales [NRW] had approved the previous application for the 
conversion of a barn to a dwelling.  NRW had raised no objections regarding the 
proposed development subject to an Environmental Permit being sought.  
Concerns were raised about a tank and foul water facility being located in the 
brook and in a location that was liable to flood.  The Principal Planning Officer 
advised that the previous application included a foul water system for up to eight 
people and the current application was to upgrade this facility to cater for up to 
20 people.  The Principal Planning Officer advised that Land Drainage had 
considered the flooding consequences assessment and had no objections 
subject to mitigations and conditions.      
 
It was considered that NRW should be asked to visit the site if an environmental 
permit had not been issued.   
 
County Councillor K Laurie-Parry made a personal statement - from the actual 
documentary evidence put forward to us today and the possibility that NRW and 
Environmental Services have not been to the site, I am deeply concerned as a 
Planning Committee politician that the statutory bodies taking this approach, 
which is clearly not in line with current regulations are damaging, in my belief, 
that the stance or the advice to the Planning Committee that NRW and 
Environmental Services as statutory bodies are making is damaging, in my 
belief, the reputation of Powys County Council's planning services and does not 
do justice to our decision making powers. 
 
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the application as recommended by 
the officers and that NRW should be asked to visit the site if an environmental 
permit had not been issued. 

Tudalen 7



2022-02-03 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee 

 

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 

that the application be granted 
consent, subject to the 
conditions set out in the update 
report which is filed with the 
signed minutes and that officers 
should write to NRW asking them 
to visit the site if an 
environmental permit had not 
been issued. 

As officer’s recommendation as 
set out in the update report 
which is filed with the signed 
minutes. 

 
County Councillor L George returned to the meeting.   

 

5.  DECISIONS OF THE HEAD OF PROPERTY, PLANNING AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION ON DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  

 
The Committee received for information a list of decisions made by the Head of 
Property, Planning and Public Protection during the period between 5 January 
2022 and 26 January 2022. 

 

6.  APPEAL DECISIONS  

 
The Committee received a copy of the Planning Inspectorate’s letters regarding 
the following appeals: 

 application 21/0183/AGR - Mathafarn, C2164 From Junction with B4404 
Cemmaes Road Near Mathafarn to Junction with Access Road for 
Llanwrin, Machynlleth SY20 8QJ.  The Committee noted that the Inspector 
had dismissed the appeal. 

 application 20/2031/OUT - Church Field, Nant Glas, Llandrindod Wells, 
LD1 6PA.  The Committee noted that the Inspector had dismissed the 
appeal.  The Committee also noted that the Planning Inspector had 
refused the application for an award of costs. 

 

Rights of Way 
 

 
 

7.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest regarding the next item. 

 

8.  TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990, SECTION 257 PUBLIC PATH 
ORDER PROPOSAL  

 
The Committee considered the proposal to divert part of public footpath N1 on 
land at Ysgol Cedewain, Plantation Lane, Newtown SY16 1LH (Community of 
Newtown & Llanllwchaiarn). 
 
In response to questions regarding the fencing of the path from the school site 
the Assistant Commons Registration and Definitive Map Officer advised that they 

Tudalen 8



2022-02-03 Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee 

would seek assurance from the Education Service regarding this and add this to 
the works associated with the order.   
 
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the officer’s report and that 
assurance should be sought form the Education Service regarding the provision 
of a fence on the school side of the path. 
 
RESOLVED 
That an Order be made to divert part of footpath N1, on the land at Ysgol 
Cedewain, Plantation Lane, Newtown as shown on the plan at appendix C 
and that officers would seek assurance from the Education Service the 
path is fenced from the school site and that this is added to the works 
associated with the order.   
 
 
Reference had been made earlier in the meeting to the new Highway Code 
regarding the distance drivers should be from other road user.  The Chair agreed 
to ask Highways Officers for advice on the implications of this on the Powys 
highways. 

 
 
 

County Councillor K Lewis (Chair) 

Tudalen 9



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee 
17th March 2022 

For the purpose of the Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the 
background papers relating to each individual planning application constitute all the 

correspondence on the file as numbered in the left hand column. 
 

Applications for consideration by Committee: 
 

Application No:                                     Nature of Development: 
Community:                                          Location of Development: 
O.S. Grid Reference:                            Applicant: 
Date Received:                                     Recommendation of Head of Planning: 
 

21/1381/FUL 
 
Llanelwedd Community 
 
 
308008 253502 
 
 
27/07//2021 

Full: Erection of 2 additional broiler rearing 
units, to include the installation of air 
scrubbers, air scrubbing units to the existing 
2 existing poultry houses, feed bins, dirty 
water tanks, and an extension to the 
concrete apron. 
 
Wernhalog Farm. Llanfaredd, Builth Wells   
 
 
Keri Davies 
 
Recommendation: 
Conditional Consent 
 

20/1338/RES 
 
Kerry Community 
 
320251 290954 
 
21/08/2020 

Reserved Matters: Reserved matters 
application for details of 45 dwellings 
(appearance, scale, layout, access and 
landscaping) and all associated works in 
connection with outline approval 
P/2016/0722 
 
Land adj Shop Lane, Sarn 
 
Powys County Council 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve 
 

 

Tudalen 11

4



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

 
Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 

 

Application 
Number: 

21/1381/FUL 
 

Grid Ref: E: 308008 

N: 253502 

Community 
Council: 

 Llanelwedd Community Valid Date: 04.08.2021 

 
Applicant: Mr Keri Davies 
 
Location: Wern Halog Farm, Llanfaredd, Builth Wells, Powys, LD2 3TE  
 
Proposal: Erection of 2 additional broiler rearing units, to include the installation of air 
scrubbers, air scrubbing units to the 2 existing poultry houses, feed bins, dirty water 
tanks, and an extension to the concrete apron 
 
Application Type: Full Application 
 
 
The reason for Committee determination 
 
The application has been called in for determination by planning committee by the local 
member. 
 
Ward Councillor’s comments:  

I am writing as the Local County Councillor with regard to the above application, which I 

wish to 'call in' to be brought before the Planning Committee. 

I have received comments and written material from some of my constituents which make 

it clear to me that there are significant issues which require full and thorough evaluation.  I 

have read the papers currently on the Planning portal and assume that additional 

information will become available. 

 

Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee Received 

 
PCC-(M) Highways 1st Sep 2021 

It is recommended the following highway conditions be included within the decision notice 

Tudalen 13

4.2



 

 

should this application be approved. 

o Prior to the commencement of the development provision shall be made within the 

curtilage of the site for the parking of all construction vehicles together with a vehicle 

turning area. This parking and turning area shall be constructed to a depth of 0.4 metres 

in crusher run or sub-base and maintained free from obstruction at all times such that all 

vehicles serving the site shall park within the site and both enter and leave the site in a 

forward gear for the duration of the construction of the development. 

o Prior to the first beneficial use of either building, provision shall be made within the 

curtilage of the site for the additional parking of not less than 2 cars per and 2 heavy 

goods vehicles together with a turning space such that all vehicles serving the site may 

both enter and leave the site in a forward gear. The parking and turning areas shall be 

retained for their designated use for as long as the development hereby permitted 

remains in existence. 

 

Welsh Water 23rd Aug 2021 

SEWERAGE      

We acknowledge that you do not propose to connect to the public sewerage system, any 

new development will require the provision of satisfactory alternative facilities for sewage 

disposal.       

CATCHMENT      

The development is within a drinking water catchment under Article 7 of the Water 

Framework Directive, and that Article 7.3 requires the avoidance of deterioration in water 

quality where this may lead to additional purification treatment being required. We ask the 

developer to be mindful of this, and to refer to best practice when operating such facility 

to ensure water quality is not compromised.   

Surface Water Drainage   

The proposed development may be subject to Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water 

Management Act 2010. The development therefore may require approval of Sustainable 

Drainage Systems (SuDS) features, in accordance with national standards, and is 

strongly recommended that the developer engage in pre-application consultation with the 

Local Authority, as the relevant SuDS Approval Body (SAB), in relation to their proposals 

for SuDS features. Please note, Dwr Cymru Welsh Water is a statutory consultee to the 

SAB application process and will provide comments to any SuDS proposals by response 

Tudalen 14



 

 

to SAB consultation.  

Should it be determined that SAB consent is not required, we request that if you are 

minded to grant Planning Consent for the above development that the following Advisory 

Notes listed below are included within the consent to ensure no detriment to existing 

residents or the environment and to Dwr Cymru Welsh Water's assets.   

Advisory Notes   

The applicant is also advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be 

recorded on our maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and 

were transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes for 

Adoption of Private Sewers) Regulations 2011. The presence of such assets may affect 

the proposal.  In order to assist us in dealing with the proposal the applicant may contact 

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water. Under the Water Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water 

has rights of access to its apparatus at all times. 

Our response is based on the information provided by your application.  Should the 

proposal alter during the course of the application process we kindly request that we are 

re-consulted and reserve the right to make new representation. 

 

PCC-Ecologist 11th Nov 2021 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on planning application 21/1381/FUL which 

concerns an application for erection of 2 additional broiler rearing units, to include the 

installation of air scrubbers, air scrubbing units to the 2 existing poultry houses, feed bins, 

dirty water tanks, and an extension to the concrete apron at Wern Halog Farm, 

Llanfaredd, Builth Wells, Powys, LD2 3TE.  

I have reviewed the proposed plans, aerial images as well as records of protected and 

priority species and designated sites within 2km of the proposed development. 

The data search identified 258 records of protected and priority species within 2km of the 

proposed development. Species recorded within 2km of the proposed development 

include bat species; soprano pipistrelle, noctule, whiskered bat, brown long-eared bat, 

and otter, badger, brown hare, common lizard, freshwater crayfish, fairy shrimp, red kite, 

peregrine and numerous Environment (Wales) Act 2016 bird, insect, plant, lichen and 

fungi species. 

Three statutory designated sites were identified within 2km of the proposed development: 

 

Tudalen 15



 

 

o Colwyn Brook Marshes (North & South) Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) - 

approximately 695m from the proposed development 

o River Wye SSSI - approximately 1.1km from the proposed development 

o River Wye Special Area for Conservation (SAC) - approximately 885m from the 

proposed development 

One non-statutory designated site was identified within 2km of the proposed 

development: 

o Llanelwedd Road Verge Nature Reserve (RVNR) - approximately 1.5km from the 

proposed development 

One or more Ancient Woodland (AW) sites were identified within 2km of the proposed 

development.  

The proposed development is for housing of 90,000 broilers in addition to existing 

housing on site for 90,000 birds. Therefore, the development falls within Schedule 1 of 

the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 

2017 and an Environmental Statement (ES) produced by Ian Pick Associates Ltd., dated 

July 2021, has been submitted with the application. Chapter 7 concerns potential 

ecological impacts arising from the proposed development, including from ammonia 

emissions; a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) is provided in Appendix 3 and an 

Ammonia Emissions Impact Assessment in Appendix 6. Manure management, which also 

has potential to impact biodiversity, including protected sites, is covered in Chapter 9 and 

Appendix 2. The ES identifies that the predicted impact of the proposed development on 

ecological features, including protected sites, is 'Low/Positive (not significant). Mitigation 

will be required to reduce levels of ammonia emissions, which will be achieved by 

installation of ammonia scrubbers on both new housing units and both existing units. A 

European Protected Species (EPS) licence will be required for the construction phase to 

avoid adverse effects on the local great crested newt population.  

The PEA produced by Craig Emms and Dr Linda Barnett dated March 2021 included an 

Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey. The survey was conducted at a sub-optimal time of 

year for vegetation surveys and some animal species would not be active at the time of 

survey. The desk study was limited to identification of ponds within 500m and a protected 

sites search; detailed protected and priority species records were not made available to 

the consultant for the purposes of the PEA. The consultants considered the nature of the 

site, including previous knowledge, and the scale of the proposal and the constraints 

were not considered to affect the conclusions of the assessment.  

Habitats identified within and immediately adjacent to the proposed development site 

Tudalen 16



 

 

include: 

o Semi-improved grassland 

o Species-poor hedge and trees 

o Wooded watercourse (Cnithio Brook) 

o Ponds 

The proposed development site was surveyed for its ability to support a number of 

protected and priority species including 

o Badger 

o Bats 

o Dormice 

o Great crested newts 

o Nesting birds (including barn owl) 

o Otter 

o Reptiles  

o Water vole 

Presence of great crested newt (GCN) was confirmed in 2018 from two of the three 

ponds located within 500m of the proposed development; surveys at the time identified a 

small population of GCN. Re-assessment of the condition of the three ponds found no 

notable changes and further surveys were not required. GCN remained excluded from the 

area of a new attenuation pond installed as part of the previous development on site and 

it was confirmed that the pond's condition is currently sub-optimal for use by breeding 

GCN. The proposed development will impact sub-optimal terrestrial habitat where GCN 

may be present in low numbers. Therefore, an EPS licence will be required for the 

development. Detailed mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures have been 

provided (Conservation Strategy & Scheme of Mitigation for Great Crested Newt, by 

David Clements Ecology Ltd.) to demonstrate that the proposal would not adversely affect 

the favourable conservation status of the GCN population. The Strategy refers to a plan 

detailing the location of the existing habitat mitigation area created for 18/0475/FUL and 

the new additional area proposed but no plan has been provided. It would be helpful to 

confirm that the area proposed for compensation and enhancement is sufficient and 

suitably located. 

Tudalen 17



 

 

 

Submission of plans 4 and 5 referred to in the GCN conservation strategy is required to 

confirm mitigation details and location in relation to the red line boundary. 

The site was also inspected for presence of non-native invasive species; none were 

reported although further assessment was recommended due to the survey season. 

Given the site's proximity to a watercourse and GCN habitat, submission of a Biosecurity 

Risk Assessment would be appropriate to ensure that spread and/or introduction of 

invasive non-native species on site is avoided.  

It is, therefore, considered that submission of a Biosecurity Risk Assessment is secured 

through an appropriately worded planning condition. As further information is required, 

submission of sufficient information prior to determination of the application would avoid 

the need for a pre-commencement condition. 

It was considered that there was a low potential for presence of reptiles and suitable 

mitigation measures to avoid impact during construction were provided (also included 

within the GCN conservation strategy). The site was considered unsuitable for supporting 

roosting bats, dormouse and water vole. No evidence of badger setts was found. The 

adjacent Cnithio Brook and associated habitat was considered unsuitable for feeding, 

resting or breeding otter, although it was considered likely to be used by dispersing or 

commuting otters. It was recommended that the existing river corridor (outside of the 

redline boundary) is retained without modification. Hedgerows provided habitat for 

common species of nesting birds, hedgehog and other small mammals. 

Recommended biodiversity enhancement measures include provision of four hedgehog 

nesting boxes, six bird nest boxes and six bat roosting boxes placed at appropriate 

locations within the curtilage of the farm. The enhancements are additional to any 

measures to benefit great crested newt and are welcome, although these are likely to be 

outside of the red line boundary. Biodiversity enhancement measures are additional to 

other measures required for mitigation or compensation and should be clearly identifiable 

as such. 

A biodiversity enhancement plan is required to confirm the recommended measures can 

be secured and implemented within the existing red line boundary prior to determination 

of the application.  

The recent ecological survey identified at least two trees along the eastern development 

boundary and a hedgerow in the north-eastern corner of the site. The survey did not 

identify a line of trees/former hedge line in the centre of the site where the two new 

housing units will be located. These were identified during the survey for the previous 

application, appear on aerial imagery and are identified on the landscaping plan 

Tudalen 18



 

 

submitted for discharge of a planning condition for the previous application (19/1502/DIS). 

(The eastern boundary hedgerow identified on that landscaping plan is no longer present 

and was confirmed as post and wire fencing in the previous ecology survey of the site). 

The proposed extension of the two existing units to accommodate ammonia scrubbers, 

and both new housing units, will cross this former eastern boundary. The proposed site 

plan identifies that additional hedgerow planting will create a new eastern boundary 

extending from close to the southern attenuation pond to the northern hedgerow 

(approximately 150m), which is welcome. This new hedgerow would also compensate for 

the 2-3 existing trees that are likely to be lost from here. An additional hedgerow 

measuring 100-150m is proposed to be planted along the western boundary. (Again, this 

was shown as an existing hedgerow/tree line in the previously submitted landscape plan 

but the southern section was post and wire fence.) The recent ecological survey did not 

identify any of the previously approved landscape planting expected to extend along the 

entire southern edge of the proposed buildings (approximately 148m). This planting, if 

present, would be lost to the proposed development. The previous landscaping scheme 

included 13 trees within the new hedgerow and it is recommended that at least the same 

number is retained, as a minimum, within the new planting scheme. It is considered that 

the proposed planting along the eastern and western boundaries would compensate for 

the lost hedgerow/biodiversity enhancement previously secured and any trees/hedgeline 

recently lost or to be lost from the site.  

It is, therefore, recommended that the proposed compensatory tree and hedgerow 

planting is secured through an appropriately worded planning condition. 

An ammonia modelling report, by AS Modelling & Data Ltd., dated 27th January 2021, 

has been submitted with the application. (The title page of the report states that it was 

reviewed on 20th December 2020 - it is assumed that this is an error.) The modelling 

assessment evaluates potential impact to sensitive receptor sites resulting from the 

combined predicted emissions from the current application and the approved poultry unit, 

i.e. up to a total of 180,000 birds.  

The Assessment report identified 11 SSSIs and one SAC within 5km of the proposal; 

several Ancient Woodland (AW) sites were identified within 2km. In addition to the 

identified designated sites, Afon Irfon SSSI, Duhonw SSSI and Gwern-yfed-fach Quarry 

SSSI also fall within 5km of the proposal. Both Afon Irfon SSSI and Dunonw SSSI are 

commensurate with the extent of the River Wye SAC, which is included in the modelling 

assessment. Gwern-yfed-fach Quarry SSSI is a geological SSSI. Llanelwedd RVNR is 

located within an area covered by the modelling assessment for AW sites. 

The background ammonia concentration in the area of the proposed development was 

0.92 ug/m3. Background nitrogen deposition rate to woodland was 23.10 kg/ha/yr and to 

short vegetation was 14.56 kg/ha/yr. Background acid deposition rate to woodland was 

Tudalen 19



 

 

1.39 keq/ha/yr. The figure for acid deposition rate to short vegetation was omitted but this 

does not affect the modelling conclusions. The figures were obtained from APIS in 

January 2021.  

Preliminary modelling predicted that process contributions (PC) to ammonia 

concentrations from the two existing units currently exceed the 8% critical level threshold 

at Colwyn Brook Marshes SSSI and River Wye SSSI/SAC. PC to ammonia 

concentrations exceed 1% of the critical level threshold at Banc Hirllwyn SSSI and 

Llanelwedd Rocks SSSI. Preliminary modelling based on the inclusion of Inno+ air 

scrubbers within both existing units and the two proposed units demonstrated that a 

reduction in the ammonia concentration currently received at Colwyn Brook Marshes 

SSSI and River Wye SSSI/SAC would still exceed the 8% critical threshold but the level 

of exceedance is reduced. A reduction was also predicted at Banc Hirllwyn SSSI and 

Llanelwedd Rocks SSSI, although some parts of the sites would still receive PC in excess 

of 1% of the critical level threshold. 

With regard to AW sites and the RVNR, preliminary modelling predicted that PC to 

ammonia concentration were below the 100% critical level threshold for 34 out of 39 AW 

receptors (and the RVNR site). Five receptors for ammonia sensitive AW sites north of 

proposed development currently receive ammonia concentrations in excess of 100% 

critical level of 1ug/m3 from the two existing poultry units. Preliminary modelling based on 

the inclusion of Inno+ air scrubbers within both existing units and the two proposed units 

demonstrated that a reduction in the ammonia concentration currently received by the five 

receptor locations could be achieved. Four out of the five receptor locations would still 

receive ammonia concentrations exceeding the 100% critical level threshold but the 

amount will be lower than currently experienced. The PC to the remaining receptor would 

be reduced to below the critical level threshold.  

Detailed modelling confirmed that PC to ammonia concentration would still exceed the 

8% critical level threshold at Colwyn Brook Marshes SSSI (outside of the River Wye 

SAC). Current PC to ammonia concentration at the SSSI is up to 19.5% of the critical 

level threshold which would reduce to 9.7% if the proposed development with ammonia 

scrubbers is implemented. For the River Wye SSSI/SAC, detailed modelling predicted 

that PC were between 1% and 8% of the critical level threshold. In effect, PC to ammonia 

concentration would reduce from 13.7% of the critical level threshold currently 

experienced to 6.4% with use of ammonia scrubbers. PC to ammonia concentration at 

Banc Hirllwyn SSSI and Llanelwedd Rocks SSSI would fall to below 1% of the critical 

level threshold. 

With regard to addition of nitrogen, detailed modelling predicted that PC to nitrogen 

deposition rates currently exceeds 8% of the critical load threshold at Colwyn Brook 

Marshes SSSI and River Wye SSSI/SAC. The proposal would result in a reduction to 

Tudalen 20



 

 

between 1% and 8% of the critical load thresholds. Nitrogen deposition rate would fall 

from 10.1% to 5.0% of the critical load threshold at Colwyn Brook Marshes SSSI. The 

rate would fall from 10.7% to 5.0% at the most affected part of the River Wye SSSI/SAC. 

Two ammonia sensitive AW receptors would receive nitrogen deposition rates slightly 

exceeding the 1% critical load threshold if the development is implemented as proposed. 

Currently, five ammonia sensitive AW receptors receive nitrogen deposition rates 

exceeding the 1% critical load threshold. 

Ordinarily, a modelling assessment of cumulative impact from other ammonia emitting 

sources would be required given the level of exceedances identified. A letter from 

Isopleth ltd, dated 13/05/2021, has been submitted in lieu of a detailed modelling report. 

The letter identifies one other ammonia emission source within 5km of the proposal. In 

considering the additional contribution of ammonia to designated sites, it was identified 

that the current proposal clearly demonstrates a reduction in ammonia concentration and 

nitrogen deposition at designated sites when compared to the current scenario. A 

reduction in ammonia concentration and nitrogen deposition rate would still occur 

irrespective of other PCs from other ammonia sources. It was, therefore, concluded that 

the proposed development with installation of four ammonia scrubbers would result in 

betterment compared to the current scenario. (It is noted that figures cited as detailed 

modelling results for part of the River Wye SAC are actually from the preliminary 

modelling stage. However, this does not affect the conclusion of the assessment.)  

Given the nature of the proposed development and the proximity to the River Wye SAC 

the Local Planning Authority is required to undertake a Habitats Regulations Assessment 

Test of Likely Significance as required by Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats 

and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), to establish whether the proposed 

development could result in a likely significant impact to the River Wye SAC and/or its 

associated features. The submitted information has been used to undertake a Habitats 

Regulations Assessment Screening, this screening concluded that a likely significant 

effect to the River Wye SAC and/or its associated features could not be ruled out. (This 

conclusion was reached by assessing the proposed development in the absence of 

mitigation as required by recent CJEU ruling.) An Appropriate Assessment of the 

application has, therefore, been undertaken to determine whether the proposed 

development would result in an adverse effect on the integrity of the national site network. 

The report concludes that subject to inclusion of appropriate conditions the proposed 

development would result in betterment compared to the current scenario and so not 

result in an adverse effect to the integrity of the River Wye SAC in light of its conservation 

objectives. I have attached a copy of the Habitat Regulations Appropriate Assessment 

report. 

 

Tudalen 21



 

 

In accordance with the requirements of the Regulations, NRW as the Statutory Nature 

Conservation Body will need to be consulted to confirm that they are in agreement with 

the conclusion of the Appropriate Assessment prior to determination of the application. 

The following conditions must be applied to any consent to secure the proposed 

mitigation measures identified within the Appropriate Assessment (subject to NRW 

comment): 

i) Prior to first beneficial use of the development hereby permitted, evidence (prepared by 

a suitably qualified industry professional) must be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority to confirm that the ammonia scrubbing equipment as 

detailed in the report titled 'A Report on the Modelling of the Dispersion and Deposition of 

Ammonia from the Existing and Proposed Broiler Chicken Rearing Houses at Wern Halog 

Farm, Llanfaredd, Builth Wells, Powys', by AS Modelling & Data Ltd., dated 27th January 

2021 have been installed in the two poultry units hereby approved as well as the two 

existing poultry units on site respectively and are fit for purpose. The air scrubber units 

shall be operated and maintained thereafter. 

ii) All manure and dirty waters generated by the development hereby permitted, and all 

ammonia scrubber liquor from the four poultry units at Wern Halog, Llanfaredd, Builth 

Wells, shall be exported to an appropriately licensed anaerobic digester facility. None of 

the above material shall be spread on any land. 

iii) The development shall be undertaken strictly in accordance with the submitted Method 

Statement and Pollution Prevention Plan for Proposed Broiler Unit at land west of Wern 

Halog, Llanfaredd, Builth Wells, by Ian Pick, dated July 2021. The measures identified 

shall be adhered to and implemented in full. 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2 in relation to The 

Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 

February 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

I have reviewed the submitted Method Statement for Manure Management which 

identifies that all manure and dirty water generated by the proposal will be exported off-

site to a licensed AD Plant. A letter from G Biotec Ltd confirms that the organic material 

can be accepted in principle. Removal of all manure and dirty water (including ammonia 

scrubber liquor) from site removes potential for pollution of adjacent surface water 

features with excessive nutrients. 

It is, therefore, recommended that adherence to the proposed manure management 

strategy is secured through an appropriately worded planning condition.  

Tudalen 22



 

 

 

The submitted Site Drainage Plan and confirms that dirty and clean surface waters will be 

managed separately minimising the risk of pollution. Surface waters from roofs of the two 

proposed units will be directed to the existing attenuation pond. All waters from the apron 

at the front of the sheds will be directed to a SSAFO compliant dirty water tank. Used 

ammonia scrubber liquor will be stored in two separate SSAFO compliant tanks. A Flood 

Consequence Assessment and Surface Water Management Plan has also been 

submitted which confirms that the additional surface water can be accommodated in 

principle through extension of the attenuation pond. Given the size of development, a 

SAB approved SuDS will be required for the proposal. 

It is, therefore, recommended that adherence to the submitted Site Drainage Plan is 

secured through an appropriately worded planning condition.  

I have reviewed the submitted Method Statement and Pollution Prevention Plan, prepared 

by Ian Pick, dated July 2021, which demonstrates that construction and operation of the 

site will be undertaken in accordance with best practice and in a manner that minimises 

risk of pollution impacting the environment and biodiversity.  

It is, therefore, recommended that adherence to the identified pollution prevention 

measures is secured through an appropriately worded planning condition. 

Further comment will be provided once the requested information regarding great crested 

newt mitigation and biodiversity enhancements has been received. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 

DPAS 

7th Sep 2021 

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales about the 

above, which we received on 06/08/2021, and for allowing more time for us to respond. 

We have concerns with the application as submitted because inadequate information has 

been provided in support of the proposal. To overcome these concerns, you should seek 

further information from the applicant regarding pollution prevention and Manure 

Management. If this information is not provided, we would object to this planning 

application. Further details are provided below.  

Requirement 1: Protected Sites: Further information is submitted to enable the Local 

Planning Authority to carry out a Habitat Regulation Assessment (HRA) under regulation 

63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) prior to 

the determination of the planning application. The HRA should demonstrate that there will 

Tudalen 23



 

 

be no adverse effect on site integrity.  

We also advise that based on the information submitted to date, the documents identified 

below should be included in the approved plans and documents condition on the decision 

notice. Without the inclusion of these conditions and documents we would object to this 

planning application.  

 The installation of air scrubbers on both the existing and proposed buildings, as set 

out by the detailed aerial emissions report Dispersion and Deposition of Ammonia 

from the Existing and Proposed Broiler Chicken Rearing Houses at Wern Halog 

Farm, Llanfaredd, B AS Modelling & Data Ltd dated 20th December 2020.  

 The implementation of the GCN Mitigation Strategy (reference Anon. (2021) 

Conservation Strategy & Scheme of Mitigation for Great Crested Newt. David 

Clements Ecology. Unpublished), subject to the issuing of an EPS licence.  

 The implementation of the pollution prevention plan document titled ‘Method 

Statement and Pollution Prevention Plan for Proposed Broiler Unit at land west of 

Wern Halog, Llanfarred, Builth Wells’ by Ian Pick, dated July 2021.  

 The implementation of the Method Statement for Manure Management, Proposed 

Broiler Unit at land west of Wern Halog, Llanfarred, Builth Wells’ by Ian Pick, dated 

July 2021 

Protected Sites and Habitat Regulations Assessment - River Wye SAC  

We note the application site is within the catchment of the River Wye Special Area of 

Conservation (SAC). As you are aware, on the 21st January 2021, we published an 

evidence package outlining phosphorus levels for all river SACs across Wales. As part of 

this package, we issued a Planning Position Statement, in which we advised that any 

proposed development that might increase the amount of phosphate (or phosphorus) 

within a river SAC catchment could lead to damaging effects to the SAC. Therefore such 

proposals should be screened through a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), to 

determine whether they are likely to have a significant effect on the SAC.  

Requirement 1: Protected Sites: Further information is submitted to enable the Local 

Planning Authority to carry out a Habitat Regulation Assessment (HRA) under regulation 

63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) prior to 

the determination of the planning application. The HRA should demonstrate that there will 

be no adverse effect on site integrity. The drawing states that the dirty water tanks will be 

complaint with The Water Resources (Control of Agriculture Pollution) (Wales) 

Regulations 2021.  

Tudalen 24



 

 

1. Please could the statement above be demonstrated in the form of a diagram. The dirty 

water tanks for washing down appear to be near a small watercourse.  

2. Clarification is required on whether any part of the drainage system will be within 10m 

of any watercourse. We will provide further advice upon receipt of further information.  

Aerial Emissions  

Agricultural units have the potential to impact protected sites through aerial emissions of 

ammonia. We consider the need for assessment of the air quality impact a unit may have 

on sites of the National Site Network and Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) within 

a screening distance of 5km of the proposal site.  

We have reviewed the detailed modelling report (document titled ‘A Report on the 

modelling of the Dispersion and Deposition of Ammonia from the Existing and Proposed 

Broiler Chicken Rearing Houses at Wern Halog Farm, Llanfaredd Builth Wells, Powys’, by 

AS Modelling & Data Ltd dated 20th December 2020) submitted with this proposal.  

The report confirms two poultry sheds will be built at the farm, and that there are two 

existing poultry houses at the farm. As part of the proposal, the proposed buildings will be 

fitted with Inno+ ammonia scrubbers, and the two existing poultry buildings will be 

retrofitted also with Inno+ ammonia scrubbers. The resulting development would provide 

accommodation for up to 180,000 broiler chickens.  

There are 11 SSSI within 5km of the development. We advise the ammonia critical levels 

and nitrogen critical load figures which have been used in the assessment are 

acceptable. The report provides the results of detailed aerial modelling assessments of 

the development and existing scenarios in tables 5a and 5b respectively.  

Table 5a shows the predicted process contribution of the proposed units and the 

retrospective installation of ammonia scrubbers on the existing units. The results show 

the as proposed scenario would emit a considerably lower process contribution to the 

protected sites within 5km of the unit.  

The predicted process contributions are lower than the existing scenario. However the 

figures are at a level of significance, and must be considered for the River Wye SAC. We 

would therefore advise an in-combination assessment is required.  

An in-combination assessment by Matt Stoaling of Isopleth dated 13th May 2021 

referenced 01.0217.001 v1 has been submitted with the proposal. We have reviewed this 

document and have no further advice to provide. This Stage 1 HRA for the River Wye 

SAC.  

Tudalen 25



 

 

Manure Management Plan  

We have reviewed the Manure Management Plan, document title Manure Management, 

Proposed Broiler Unit at land west of Wern Halog, Llanfaredd, Builth The manure 

management plan states that all litter and all dirty water from wash down and scrubbers 

will be exported off site to GP Biotec Anaerobic Digester (AD) plant. If any 

manure/digestate etc will be returned to the site, further information on Nitrogen and 

Phosphate loading of ALL slurry, Farm Yard Manure and litter will be required. This 

should take into consideration limits on N application which will be implemented in 

January 2023 with The Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) 

Regulations 2021. By January 2023 it should be recorded in a Nutrient Management 

Plan. Application of Nitrogen (by spreading or livestock deposit) should not exceed a max 

application of 250km/ha and a holding limit of 170km/ha. All imported or exported material 

should be recorded and included in the NMP.  

Pollution Prevention Plan  

We have reviewed the document titled ‘Method Statement and Pollution Prevention Plan 

for Proposed Broiler Unit at land west of Wern Halog, Llanfaredd, Builth Wells’ by Ian 

Pick, dated July 2021.  

Provided the proposal is built and operates in accordance with this plan, the proposal is 

unlikely to cause pollution to the wider environment.  

Flood Consequences Assessment  

We have reviewed the Ltd Flood Consequences Assessment and Surface Water 

Management Plan Wern Halog Farm by Lidar-Logic. The application site is not 

considered to be at risk of flooding from a main river and not shown to be within the 

mapped 0.1% flood outline.  

Part of the site lies within zone B on the Development Advice Map (DAM) and the FCA 

assesses risks from the ordinary watercourse, adjacent to the site, surface water and 

proposed drainage plans.  

These matters will need to be assessed by the Lead Local Flood Authority and SuDS 

Approval Body within Powys CC.  

Protected Species Great Crested Newts (GCN)  

We have reviewed the preliminary ecological appraisal (reference Emms, C and Barnett, 

L. (2021). Wern Heulog, Llanfaredd, Builth Wells, Powys. Craif Emms andf Linda Barnett 

Consultant Ecologists . Unpublished Report) submitted with this consultation. We 

consider it is satisfactory for the purposes of informing the planning decision making 

Tudalen 26



 

 

process.  

We consider the submitted GCN Mitigation Strategy (reference Anon. (2021) 

Conservation Strategy & Scheme of Mitigation for Great Crested Newt. David Clements 

Ecology. Unpublished) to be satisfactory in principle. In terms of detail, we would 

welcome the following amendments:  

a. Proposed pond construction to include an additional water body (pond); and  

b. A plan is prepared that illustrates the original GCN conservation area together with the 

proposed extension and this overall area to be provided as a GIS layer to the LPA, local 

records centre and NRW. 

GCN and their breeding sites and resting places are protected under the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). Where GCN are present and a 

development proposal is likely to contravene the legal protection they are afforded, the 

development may only proceed under licence issued by Natural Resources Wales, 

having satisfied the three requirements set out in the legislation. A licence may only be 

authorised if: 

i. The development works to be authorised are for the purpose of preserving public 

health or safety, or for other imperative reasons of overriding public interest, 

including those of a social or economic nature and beneficial consequences of 

primary importance for the environment.  

ii. There is no satisfactory alternative and  

iii. The action authorised will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the population 

of the species concerned at a favourable conservation status in its natural 

range.  

Paragraph 6.3.7 of Technical Advice Note 5: Nature Conservation and Planning (TAN5) 

states that your Authority should not grant planning permission without having satisfied 

itself that the proposed development either would not impact adversely on any GCN on 

the site or that, in its opinion, all three conditions for the eventual grant of a licence are 

likely to be satisfied.  

Based on the above report, we do not consider that the development is likely to be 

detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the species concerned at a favourable 

conservation status in its natural range.  

Therefore, we do not object to the proposal but in line with the ‘Dear CPO’ letter issued 

Welsh Government on 1st March 2018, we request that the following informative is 

Tudalen 27



 

 

attached to any planning permission granted by your Authority:  

Warning: An European protected species (EPS) Licence is required for this development. 

This planning permission does not provide consent to undertake works that require an 

EPS licence. It is an offence to deliberately capture, kill or disturb EPS or to damage or 

destroy their breeding sites or resting places. If found guilty of any offences, you could be 

sent to prison for up to 6 months and/or receive an unlimited fine. To undertake the works 

within the law, you can obtain further information on the need for a licence from Natural 

Resources Wales on 0300 065 3000 or at https://naturalresources.wales/permits-and-

permissions/species-licensing/when-you-needto-apply-for-a-protected-species-

licence/?lang=en.  

Development should not be commenced until the Applicant has been granted a licence by 

Natural Resources Wales pursuant to Regulation 55 of the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations (2017) authorising the specified activity/development to go ahead, 

[or Natural Resources Wales has informed the applicant in writing that such a licence is 

not required]. Please note that any changes to plans between planning consent and the 

licence application may affect the outcome of a licence application. We advise recipients 

of planning consent who are unsure about the need for a licence to submit a licence 

application to us.  

Other Matters  

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our checklist, 

Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), which is 

published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other matters and 

do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other interests.  

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 

ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 

Please refer to our website for further details.  

Advice for the Developer  

Environmental Permit The site currently operates under an Environmental Permit from 

NRW referenced EPRAB3496HZ. The Applicant must ensure the permit is updated in 

accordance with the proposed plans. 

 

CPAT 9th Aug 2021 

Having checked the information held within the Historic Environment Record I can confirm 

that there are no archaeological implications for the additional two units to the north of the 

Tudalen 28



 

 

existing sheds. 

 

Cadw - SAM 1st Sep 2021 

Thank you for your letter inviting our comments on the information submitted for the 

above planning application.   

Advice 

Having carefully considered the information provided, we have no objection to the 

proposed development in regards to the scheduled monuments listed in our assessment 

of the application below. 

The national policy and Cadw's role in planning are set out an Annex A. 

Assessment  

RD014 Caer Einon Camp  

RD035 Colwyn Castle 

RD074 Aberedw Hill Round Barrows 

RD075 Fforest Wood Mound & Bailey Castle 

RD122 Carneddau Round Cairn 

RD123 Cwm Berwyn Camp 

RD149 Castle Bank Hillfort 

RD164 Caer Fawr Medieval Settlement 

RD169 Cwmblaenerw Enclosed Long Hut 

RD219 Carneddau, standing stone to SSW of 

RD220 Carneddau, round cairn on N end of 

RD221 Carneddau, cairn on N end of 

RD222 Cwm-berwyn round cairn 

RD226 Cilberllan ring cairn* 

RD228 Castle Bank ring cairn 

Tudalen 29



 

 

RD235 Carneddau round cairns 

RD236 Bryntwppa stone row 

RD237 The Gaer hillfort 

Eighteen scheduled monuments (identified above) are located inside 3km of the 

proposed development; however, apart from scheduled monuments RD014, RD122, 

RD222 and RD226, intervening topography and vegetation is likely to block all views 

between them. Consequently, the proposed development will not have an impact on the 

settings of any of these scheduled monuments. 

Scheduled monument RD014 Caer Einon Camp is located some 1.3km to the west of the 

proposed development. It comprises the remains of an Iron Age hillfort located on a 

south-facing promontory with strong natural defences on the east and west and around 

the southern tip. The defences enclose an area measuring some100m north south by 

some 70m. On the weaker north, a total of three lines of artificial defences can be seen, 

constructed of stone, which is now partially turfed in places. The innermost of these 

follows the contours, and, while it stands up to some 2m high across the neck of the 

promontory, it nonetheless appears to continue in a much slighter form, turf-covered, all 

the way around the hilltop. There is a simple, slightly inturned entrance in the middle of 

the more substantial northern stretch. Outside this, to the north, a further bank of similar 

scale running across the neck of the promontory appears to add complexity to the 

entrance arrangements; at its western end it curls around towards the south to meet the 

inner bank near its western end, but then moves gradually northwards away from it, 

curving round at its eastern end to a north-eastward facing inturned entrance; south of 

this it again merges with the inner bank at the start of the steeper slopes. About 20m to 

the north-west a third, rather slighter bank also blocks the easiest approach to the site; 

this may have been intended to channel approaching traffic towards the north-east facing 

entrance just described. Several hut positions have been noted in the south-western part 

of the interior of the fort. 

The hillfort was sited to control the valley of the Cnithio Brook and the route between the 

Edw and Wye Valleys now followed by the A481. As such whilst it has all round views, 

the significant ones are to the southeast in an arc from north-north-east east to south 

overlooking the valley and also to the north to observe visitors approaching the entrance.  

Scheduled monument RD122 Carneddau Round Cairn is located some 1.33km to the 

northwest of the proposed development. It comprises the remains a Bronze Age burial 

cairn, occupying a commanding position with panoramic views. The cairn is some 19m in 

diameter and some 0.8m high; its upper levels have been disturbed by the construction of 

a later stone shelter and marker cairn, though its core remains intact. 

Tudalen 30



 

 

Bronze Age funerary and ritual monument are thought to have been located so that they 

had views to and from neighbouring funerary monument, prominent natural features and 

associated settlement sites. In this case the cairn has all round panoramic views but has 

specific views to the contemporary funerary monuments the northwest to Carneddau 

round cairns (RD235), to the north-north-east to the Cwm-berwyn round cairn (RD222) 

and the Cilberllan ring cairn (RD226) and it is assumed that the associated settlement 

sites are located in valley of the Cnithio Brook to the southeast in an arc from south to the 

east. These views are the significant ones from the scheduled monument. 

Scheduled monument RD222 Cwm-berwyn round cairn is located some 0.95km to the 

north of the proposed development. It comprises the remains of a Bronze Age burial 

cairn, situated in moorland on the summit of the hill on the east side of the Carneddau. 

The grass-covered cairn is circular on plan and measures about 9.5m in diameter and up 

to 0.5m in height. 

Bronze Age funerary and ritual monument are thought to have been located so that they 

had views to and from neighbouring funerary monument, prominent natural features and 

associated settlement sites. In this case the cairn has all round views but has specific 

views to the contemporary funerary monuments the north-north-west to Carneddau round 

cairns (RD235), to the south-south-west to the Carneddau Round Cairn (RD122) and to 

the east to the Cilberllan ring cairn (RD226) and it is assumed that the associated 

settlement sites are located in valleys of the Cnithio Brook to the south and the Edw 

Valley to the east. These views are the significant ones from the scheduled monument. 

Scheduled monument RD226 Cilberllan ring cairn is located some 1.07km to the north-

north-east of the proposed development. It comprises the remains of a Bronze Age ring 

cairn, situated within open moorland on a southeast facing terrace below the summit of 

the hill on the east side of the Carneddau. The well-preserved ring cairn is circular on 

plan and measures about 15m in diameter over a substantial stony ring bank spread to 

about 3m in thickness and up to 0.6m in height. 

Bronze Age funerary and ritual monument are thought to have been located so that they 

had views to and from neighbouring funerary monument, prominent natural features and 

associated settlement sites. In this case the cairn has all round views but has specific 

views to the contemporary funerary monuments west to the Carneddau round cairns 

(RD235) and the Cwm-berwyn round cairn (RD222), and to the south-south-west to the 

Carneddau Round Cairn (RD122). It is assumed that the associated settlement sites are 

located in valleys of the Cnithio Brook to the southwest and the Edw Valley to the east. 

These views are the significant ones from the scheduled monument. 

The proposed development consists of the addition of two new poultry buildings to the 

north of the existing poultry unit. The scheduled monuments are all located at higher 

Tudalen 31



 

 

levels that the proposed units and in views from them the roofs of the buildings will be 

visible: However, intervening vegetation will provide varying levels of screening of the 

proposed buildings from the different scheduled monuments and the in all cases they will 

be seen as an extension of the existing poultry units. As such whilst there may be very 

slight visual changes in the views from the scheduled monuments this will not have any 

effect on the way that they are experienced, understood and appreciated. Consequently, 

the proposed development will have no impact on the settings of scheduled monuments 

RD014, RD122, RD222 and RD226. 

 

Community Council 17th Aug 2021 

Llanelwedd Community Council discussed the above application at a meeting held last 

night. 

The Community Council Recommend approval of the application but wish to mention that 

concerns had been raised by 2 local residents regarding noise, smell and light  

The Community Council suggest the planting of trees may reduce some of these issues 

and suggest some monitoring of their concerns. 

The Community Council feel that it will bring work to the area and would be beneficial to 

the vicinity  

 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 22nd Oct 2021 

Proposal: "Consultation re erection of 2 additional broiler rearing units, to include the 

installation of air scrubbing units to the 2 existing poultry houses, feed bins, dirty water 

tanks, and an extension to the concrete apron"  

Address: Wernhalog Farm, Llanfaredd, Builth Wells Powys LD2 3TE  

The Authority welcomes feedback from agents and applicants on the quality of the 

service received. For further information, please visit www.beacons-

npa.gov.uklp/anningsurvey to fill in a brief online survey.  

Thank you for your consultation received 21 September 2021 regarding the above full 

planning application (LPA Ref: 21/1381/FUL) which is accompanied by an Environmental 

Statement.  

We understand the current full planning application is for "erection of 2 additional broiler 

rearing units, to include the installation of air scrubbers, air scrubbing units to the 2 

Tudalen 32



 

 

existing poultry houses, feed bins, dirty water tanks, and an extension to the concrete 

apron"at Wernhalog Farm, Llanfaredd, Builth Wells. The application site is located 18km 

away from the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority (BBNPA) boundary but we 

understand the proposal is located with the River Wye Special Area of Conservation 

(SAC) catchment area which extends into areas within the BBNPA (as well as Powys 

County Council). It does not appear that BBNPA has been previously consulted on earlier 

stages of this planning application.  

Background  

Policy and legal context  

Section 63 of the Environment Act (1995) sets out the statutory purposes of the National 

Park as follows:  

 To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of the 

National Park; and 

 To promote opportunities for the public understanding and enjoyment of the 

special qualities of the National Park 

In accordance with section 62(2) of the Environment, any relevant Authority shall have 

regard to National Park purposes when performing any functions in relation to, or so as to 

affect, land in a National Park. Relevant Authorities include public bodies, government 

departments, local authorities and statutory undertakers.  

The Special Qualities of the National Park may be significantly impacted by development 

proposals on the fringes of the National Park. The Brecon Beacons National Park 

Management Plan 2015-2020 defines the Special Qualities of the Brecon Beacons 

National Park as follows: 

• A National Park offering peace and tranquillity with opportunities for quiet 

enjoyment, inspiration, relaxation and spiritual renewal. 

• A feeling of vitality and healthfulness that comes from enjoying the Park's fresh air, 

clean water, rural setting, open land and locally produced foods. 

• A sense of place and cultural identity - "Welshness" - characterised by the use of 

the indigenous Welsh language, religious and spiritual connections, unique customs and 

events, traditional foods and crafts, relatively unspoilt historic towns, villages and family 

farms. The continued practices of traditional skills developed by local inhabitants to live 

and earn a living here, such as common land practices and grazing. 

• A sense of discovery where people are able to explore the Park's hidden secrets 

Tudalen 33



 

 

and stories such as genealogical histories, prehistoric ritual sites, medieval rural 

settlements, early industrial sites, local myths, legends and geological treasures. 

• The Park's sweeping grandeur and outstanding natural beauty observed across a 

variety of harmoniously connected landscapes, including marvellous gorges and 

waterfalls, classic karst geology with caves and sink holes, contrasting glacial landforms 

such as cliffs and broad valleys carved from old red sandstone and prominent hilltops 

with extensive views in all directions. 

• A working, living "patchwork'' of contrasting patterns, colours, and textures 

comprising of wellmaintained farmed landscapes, open uplands, lakes and meandering 

rivers punctuated by smallscale woodlands, country lanes, hedgerows, stone walls and 

scattered settlements. 

• Extensive and widespread access to the Park's diversity of wildlife and richness of 

seminatural habitats, such as native woodlands, heathland and grassland, natural lakes 

and riparian habitats, ancient hedgerows, limestone pavement and blanket bogs including 

those of international and national importance. 

• In the context of the UK, geographically rugged, remote and challenging 

landscapes. 

• Enjoyable and accessible countryside with extensive, widespread and varied 

opportunities to pursue walking, cycling, fishing, water-based activities and other forms of 

sustainable recreation or relaxation. 

• An intimate sense of community where small, pastoral towns and villages are 

comparatively safe, friendly, welcoming and retain a spirit of cooperation. 

Planning Policy Wales (PPW) (Edition 11) acknowledges the statutory purposes of 

National Parks and references the "Sandford Principle", whereby if there is a conflict 

between the statutory purposes, greater weight shall be given to the first purpose of 

conserving and enhancing the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage. PPW states 

that "planning authorities have a statutory duty to have regard to National Parks and 

AONB purposes. This duty applies in relation to all activities affecting National Parks and 

AONBs, whether those activities lie within, or in the setting of, the designated areas"(see 

para 6.3.5). 

The Proposal and comments 

Based on the submission details, it is understood that the applicants operate a traditional 

beef and sheep farming enterprise from Wern Halog.  

In 2019 the applicants were granted planning permission to diversify their business into 

Tudalen 34



 

 

broiler chicken production through the erection of 2 No. poultry houses and associated 

infrastructure (18/04 75/FUL) to accommodate up to 90,000 broiler chickens. The poultry 

unit was constructed in the spring / summer of 2020 and has been operational since 

October 2020.  

The applicants are proposing to expand the poultry unit through the erection of 2 No. 

additional poultry sheds (99m x 26m and ridge height of 6.5m), and associated 

infrastructure. The additional buildings will house a further 45,000 broilers and will include 

air scrubbers to reduce ammonia. 4 no. feed bins and dirty water tanks are also 

proposed. 

Landscape and Visual Considerations: 

Given the significant separation distance between the BBNPA boundary and the 

intervening landscape features, the proposal is considered unlikely to be viewable from 

the National Park boundary. Therefore, the BBNP offer no comment from a landscape 

and visual impact perspective. 

Phosphates: We note that NRW has commented on the planning application and have 

highlighted that the application site is within the catchment of the River Wye Special Area 

of Conservation (SAC) 

As set out on NRW letter this proposal should be screened through a HRA, to determine 

whether they are likely to have a significant effect of the SAC (as result of phosphates). 

As PCC is the competent authority in this regards, we will leave PCC to undertake the 

appropriate screening and if applicable Appropriate Assessment. 

However, BBNPA notes that the submitted Manure Management Plan document by Ian 

Pick (dated July 2021) states that all litter and dirty water from wash down and scrubbers 

will be exported off-site to CP Biotec Anaerobic Digester (AD) Plant. This particular AD 

plant is located within the BBNP at Great Porthamel Faarm, neat Talgaarth - it is also 

located within the River Wye SAC catchment area. We would expect further information 

to be submitted to understand how this exported material is to be dealt with by the AD 

plant in order for the competent authority (powys County Council) to complete their 

screening and/or Appropriate Assessment. including in-combination effects. 

We trust the above comments are of assistance however if you wish to discuss any 

aspect further, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 

DPAS 

7th Dec 2021 

Tudalen 35



 

 

We have reviewed the Assessment, and have no further advice to provide. 

 

Environmental Protection  11th Feb 2022 

Noise Assessment 

I must advise that Environmental Protection have received several complaints relating to 

noise from the current operational units, these have been investigated and whilst audible 

at the property were not found to be a statutory nuisance. 

The supplied noise report demonstrates that noise from the units should not cause 

unreasonable interference at the nearest noise sensitive dwellings, as set out in the noise 

impact assessment by Paul Smith of Matrix Acoustics (M1609/R02. 23rd February 2021), 

and in accordance with BS4142 'Methods for Rating and Assessing Industrial and 

Commercial Sound' and linking to the World Health Organisation's (WHO) standards as 

set out in BS8233, which refers to 'guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction for 

buildings'. 

To fall in line with the previous granted permission (18/0475/FUL) I would suggest the 

following conditions also placed on this application: 

All deliveries to and from site in connection with this permission shall be carried out 

between the following hours, Monday to Fridays from 07.30 to 18.00 hours, Saturdays 

from 08.00 to 13.00 hours and at no time on Sundays, Bank and public holidays. 

 

Manure Management 

I note that the applicant is stating that all manure will be exported to offsite to an AD plant 

and the applicant has obtained a contract offer with GP Biotec to export the manure and 

dirty water arising from this development. Should an event occur that prevents this from 

happening, in the short term the applicants can temporarily store the manure within a 

covered manure store at Wern Halog. 

I would suggest that the above be conditioned should the application be granted to 

ensure that manure is stored undercover. 

I would also suggest all vehicles used for the movement of manure off site shall be 

sheeted and/or fully covered to mitigate odour emissions from the movement of manure. 

 

Bioaerosol 

I note the use of air scrubbers on the units, both existing and new which provide help to 

mitigate emissions of dust and therefore bio-aerosol. Given that the closest property to 

the development which does not belong to the landowner is over 115 meters from the 

development and therefore does not require a risk assessment of the bioaerosols. 

Odour 

I am satisfied with the odour impact assessment report. Odour dispersion modelling 

Tudalen 36



 

 

indicates that none of the properties outside the control of the applicant are likely to 

experience an unacceptable level of odour from the development.. 

 
 
PCC Conservation Officer  22nd Feb 2022 

Background to Recommendation 

 

Designation; 

 

Within 200 meters of grade II listed Hope Chapel. 

 

Policy Background 

 

The advice has been given with reference to relevant policies, guidance and legislation 

 

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

Planning Policy Wales 11th edition 2021 

Conservation Principles published by Cadw 

TAN24 

Managing Listed Buildings in Wales - Annexe to TAN24 

Heritage Impact Assessments in Wales - Annexe to TAN24 

Managing Conservation Areas in Wales - Annexe to TAN24 

Setting of Historic Assets in Wales - Annexe to TAN24 

Heritage Impact Assessments - Annexe to TAN24 

Historic Environment Records 

 

Local Development Plan 

Strategic Policy SP7 

DM13 Design and Resources Local Development Plan Themes and Objectives; 

Theme 4 - Guardianship of natural, built and historic assets 

LDP Objective 13 - Landscape and the Historic Environment 

 

Comment 

The proposal is to construct 2 additional broiler sheds which will be located above and 

behind the present sheds. This comment is made in relation to the setting of the nearby 

listed buildings. Sections 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation areas) 

Act 1990 requires authorities considering applications for planning permission or listed 

building consent for works which affect a listed building to have special regard to certain 

matters, including the desirability of preserving the setting of the building. The setting is 

Tudalen 37



 

 

often an essential part of a building's character especially if a park, garden or grounds 

have been laid out to complement its design or function. Also, the economic viability as 

well as the character of historic buildings may suffer and they can be robbed of much of 

their interest and of the contribution they make to townscape or the countryside if they 

become isolated from their surroundings, e.g. by new traffic routes, car parks, or other 

development. 

The existing sheds (18/0475/FUL) are coloured green, and well screened from the road 

by trees, which are in the most part taller than the shed. The main visual intervention was 

the construction of an entrance track and splays onto the highway. This saw the hedge of 

the lower field removed entirely up to the listed Hope Chapel, and did impact the 

character to a greater extent that was originally envisaged. It is, however, difficult to see 

the existing poultry sheds at all from Hope Chapel. 

In regards to the present proposal and Hope Chapel, the new poultry sheds are likely to 

be more visible due to the raised position. Hope Chapel is a small rural religious building, 

and this is reflected in its architectural design as well as its setting. The building is 

relatively isolated, in a landscape of fields and farms. It is recognised that the proposed 

development is agricultural, so not necessarily out of keeping with the history of the 

buildings. It is, however, a development of a scale that would be historically alien to 

buildings such as the Chapel. 

The level of existing established screening does not extent far enough to the East to 

completely screen the new buildings from view. It is the case that when looking at the 

Chapel the development will be seen behind the listed building. Therefore, it may be 

assessed that there is a negative impact on the setting of Hope Chapel by the 

development. 

This is in part due to the elevated position of the development, and the lack of screening 

to the East. This could be mitigated against by additional trees planted on the bank 

between Unit 2 and 3, and addition trees planted alongside the ends of the sheds to the 

East. The development would then have a neutral impact on the setting. 

 

Recommendation 

Approval on condition; 

 

o That additional screening is planted on the bank between Unit 2 and 3 and also to the 

East of the development 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) DPAS                                                7th Mar 2022 

For clarity, we provided advice in October in relation to the drainage design. Reviewing 

the drainage plan again, we can see that the clean and dirty water will be separate 

Tudalen 38



 

 

systems and that there will be no diverter valves included. We note that the drawing 

confirms that the drainage system will be compliant with The Water Resources (Control of 

Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021. We can see that from page 9 of your 

HRA that a condition can be applied to any decision notice that will ensure no manure, 

dirty waters or ammonia scrubber liquor is to be spread on any land. We would concur 

that this would be an appropriately protective measure for the River Wye SAC.  

 

Lead Local Flood Authority                                                                              9th Mar 2022 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this application.  Having considered the 
information which has been submitted, the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) would 
make the following comments/recommendations. 
 

Flood Risk 
 
Comment: The Authority holds no historical flooding information relating to this site. 
 
However, from the surface water flood mapping in our possession, there is a risk of 
surface water flooding to the site.  This flood risk information can be seen on NRW’s flood 
risk mapping webpage, in particular, flooding from surface water, where it shows areas 
with a chance of flooding from surface water.  Development should not be permitted 
within an area at risk from flooding unless it can be demonstrated that the consequences 
of any flooding would be acceptable for the development proposed and that it would not 
give rise to any unacceptable flooding impacts elsewhere.  
 
The detention pond area appears to fall within the high-risk flood zone; this is a concern 
and the applicant will need to demonstrate that the integrity of the structure will not be 
affected and that its function is not compromised during an extreme flood event.   
 

Other areas of concern are along the western boundary of the site, where the flood 
mapping also shows an area at a high risk of surface water flooding.  Within this flood risk 
area is located the proposed dirty water tank for waste washout.  The applicant is advised 
to reposition the dirty water tank and associated drainage system from this flood risk area 
or demonstrate that the system will not be compromised and lead to potential pollution if it 
were to remain as currently positioned.  
 
The applicant will need to ensure that there are no changes to contours within the surface 
water flooding areas as this could lead to unacceptable flooding elsewhere.  
 
The LLFA believes the wrong Climate Change baseline for peak rainfall intensity has 
been used within the drainage analysis for the site.  It is stated that there is a 50 year 
design life, which would take it to the 2070-2115 timeline period, meaning that the central 
estimate would be 20% and the upper estimate 40%.  The drainage design should be 
revised to take this into account. 

Tudalen 39



 

 

 
Surface Water Drainage 
 
Having assessed the Planning Application, the SuDS Approval Body (SAB) deem that the 
construction area is greater than 100m2 and therefore this proposed development will 
require SAB approval prior to any construction works commencing onsite. 
  
Please contact the SAB Team on 01597 827465 or via email sab@powys.gov.uk   
  
For further information on the requirements of SAB and where relevant application 
forms/guidance can be accessed, please visit the following website 
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB 

If for any reason you believe your works are exempt from the requirement for SAB 
approval, we would be grateful if you would inform us so we can update our records 
accordingly. 

The requirement to obtain SAB consent sits outside of the planning process but is 
enforceable in a similar manner to planning law. It is a requirement to obtain SAB consent 
in addition to planning consent. Failure to engage with compliant SuDS design at an early 
stage may lead to significant un-necessary redesign costs. 

We would recommend a SAB pre-app for this site due to its size and the surface water 
flooding issues.  

 

Representations 
There have been 135 representations of objection in relation to this development  
 
Summary of the grounds of objection 
 

 The most common ground of objection is in relation to the potential for the 
development to cause pollution to the River Wye and the knock on effect this has 
on local ecology, fishing and tourism.  

 There is the feeling that the proposal would be overdevelopment with 
there already being ‘too many’ poultry units in Powys with the over production of 
manure that can be used for agricultural benefit.  

 Export of the manure produced to an AD plant will not remove phosphate 
which will remain in the digestate and will also be spread in a phosphorus 
sensitive catchment.   

 It has been recognised that the River Wye is failing in its water quality 
targets and there is suggestion that there should be a moratorium on all new 
poultry development until the effects of such development are fully known by all 
responsible authorities. 

 There is a general dislike of the proposal and a belief that in-combination 

Tudalen 40

mailto:sab@powys.gov.uk
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB


 

 

effects have been underestimated.  

 There is concern that the proposal will result in increased impacts to 
residential amenity with particular concern that the air scrubber units will be 
closer than the existing development to a particular residence and that this has 
not been properly assessed within the noise report submitted with the 
application.  

 There is suggestion that other information submitted in support of the 
application also has omissions and therefore should be discounted.  

 The experience of people living close to such developments is that the 
impact to residential amenity is appalling.  

 There are 4 listed buildings within 500 metres of the development that 
have not been accounted for within the submitted documents.   

 There is the suggestion that existing development has not been managed 
in accordance with the approved consent so there are concerns that the 
proposed development will be more of the same.   

 Farming on such an industrial scale is unacceptable for animal welfare 
and is an unsustainable agricultural practice that should not be supported by 
policy or government targets.   

 The development will lead to a significant increase in traffic generation 
and will result in more slower moving vehicles on an A road which is detrimental 
to highway safety.  

 Concerns that runoff from the attenuation pond will flood the Cnithio 
Brook.  

 Concerns that the submission fails to take into account the manure 
spreading from the previously approved development and land spreading is a 
major source of ammonia emissions. The approved documents and previous 
approvals are inadequate to rely upon to conclude that there would not be an 
environmental impact as a result of in combination effects from the proposed 
development.   

 The application does not demonstrate that the development can achieve 
phosphate neutrality. 

 Suggestion that the additional information is necessary to ensure 
satisfactory treatment of roof and apron run off and of adequate storage for 
manures and dirty waters is required. 

 the application does not account for water consumption. 

 The Ecology Report provided in support of this application does not 
identify potential impacts immediately adjacent to the site and it falls very far 
short of assessing ecological impacts of the development as a whole. 

 There is no consideration of the social, environmental and climate change 
impacts of this heavy additional traffic load on rural roads. 

 Ammonia emissions from manure storage and land spreading are likely to 
be more than double those arising from the housing itself. While housing 
emissions from the sheds will be reduced by the installation of scrubbers and 
assuming the full 90% mitigation, the net position is that TOTAL ammonia 
emissions from the proposed enlarged development, including landspreading, 
are increased by slightly more than 1/3 over current levels. 

Tudalen 41



 

 

 The assessment of impacts on Ancient Woodland fails to take into account 
likely impacts to this irreplaceable habitat.  

 The assessment of landscape impacts is not fit for purpose and should be 
revisited. 

 Assessment of health risks required. 

 No conclusions as to the acceptability of noise impacts can be reached 
without consideration of other sources of noise nuisance.  

 No reliance can be placed on any condition which might be imposed 
regarding hours of operation, since it’s entirely likely any such protective 
condition would be removed post approval. 

 Odour implications of manure spreading and peak odour operations need 
to be assessed and appropriate reports supplied. 

 the council must take climate change impacts into account in 
consideration of this application. 

 Cumulative and in-combination impacts have not been properly assessed.  
 

 
 
 
Planning History 
 

App Ref Description Decision Date 
 
RAD/2002/030
6 

Erection of an extension to existing 
sheep shed 
SO 05 SE 

Insufficient Fee 22nd Aug 2002 

 
AGRI/2009/00
21 

Ag Notification:  Erection of a sheep 
building 

Approve 22nd May 2009 

 
SC/2017/0003 Request for an EIA Scoping Opinion 

in relation to 2 no poultry rearing 
buildings and associated works 

EIA Required 28th Sep 2017 

 
 
P/2018/0284 Householder - Demotion of shed to 

side of dwelling. Erection of 2x side 
extensions and front porch 

Consent 8th May 2018 

 
18/0475/FUL Erection of 2 No. agricultural 

buildings for poultry production, with 
associated feed bins, hardstandings, 
drainage attenuation pond and a 
new highway access to the A481 

Approve 5th Apr 2019 

 
19/0742/NMA Application for a non-material 

amendment to planning approval 
18/0475/FUL in relation to the 
rewording of condition 28 

Approve 18th Jun 2019 

Tudalen 42



 

 

 
19/1502/DIS Discharge of conditions 5, 12, 13 

and 14 from planning consent 
18/0475/FUL 

Approve 13th Nov 2019 

 
19/1656/DIS Discharge of conditions 11, 31 and 

32 of planning application 
18/0475/FUL in relation to lighting, 
private water supply details and 
manure management. 

Approve 20th Apr 2020 

 
20/0022/FUL Erection of a covered manure store Consent 7th Apr 2020 
 
20/0795/FUL Installation of a steel container 

comprising a ground source heat 
pump together with underground 
pipework and 2 No. boreholes 

Approve 30th Sep 2020 

 

 
Principal Planning Constraints 
Ancient Woodland 
Listed Buildings  
Phosphorus Welsh River SACs catchment 
Scheduled Monuments 
Mineral Safeguarding  
Floodzone B 
 
 

Principal Planning Policies 
 

Future Wales - The National Plan 2040 (2021) 
 

Policy Policy Description Year Local Plan 
    

PPW Planning Policy Wales 
(Edition 11) 2021 

 National Policy 

 
TAN5 Nature Conservation and 

Planning 
 National Policy 

 
TAN6 Planning for Sustainable 

Rural Community 
 National Policy 

 
TAN11 Noise  National Policy 
 
TAN12 Design  National Policy 
 
TAN15 Development and Flood 

Risk 
 National Policy 

Tudalen 43



 

 

 
TAN18 Transport  National Policy 
 
TAN23 Economic Development  National Policy 
 
TAN24 The Historic Environment  National Policy 
 
SP6  

 
Distribution of Growth 
across the Settlement 
Hierarchy 

  
Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
SP7 Safeguarding of Strategic 

Resources and Assets 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM4 Landscape  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM6 Flood Prevention 

Measures and Land 
Drainage 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
DM7 Dark Skies and External 

Lighting 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 

DM8 Minerals Safeguarding  Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
DM13 Design and Resources  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM14 Air Quality Management  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 

DM15 Waste Within 
Developments  

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
E2 Employment Proposals on 

Non-Allocated 
Employment Sites 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
E6 Farm Diversification  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 

Tudalen 44



 

 

T1 Travel, Traffic and 
Transport Infrastructure 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
SPG Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity SPG (2018) 
  

 
SPG       Landscape (2019) 
 
SPG       Historic Environment (2021) 
 
 
Other Legislative Considerations 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
Equality Act 2010  
 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 

 
Officer Appraisal 
 

Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2017 
 
Part 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2017 lists types of development and thresholds to define where a 
development proposal is EIA development. These are contained in Schedule 1 and 2 of 
the Regulations; Schedule 1 of the regulations lists where EIA is mandatory and 
Schedule 2 where development must be screened to determine if it is EIA development.  
 
The proposed development falls within the definition of Schedule 1 (17a) – ‘Installations 
of the intensive rearing of poultry and pigs’ as it exceeds the threshold of 85000 broilers. 
Therefore, an Environmental Statement is mandatory to accompany this planning 
application, which has been processed as EIA development in accordance with the 
2017 Regulations.   
 
Environmental Permitting Regulations   
 
The operations at the site require an environmental permit issued by Natural Resources 
Wales. This is required on the basis that the number of broilers to be reared on site 
passes the threshold for an environmental permit. It is Natural Resources Wales’ role to 
determine if the operation can be managed on an ongoing basis to prevent or minimise 
pollution.  

Tudalen 45



 

 

 
It is noted that the site currently operates under a permit and it is the responsibility of 
the applicant to ensure that the permit is updated in accordance with the proposed 
plans   
 
With regards to the extent the presence of a permit is relevant to the current planning 
application, Planning Policy Wales states that ‘The planning system should not be used 
to secure objectives which are more appropriately achieved under other legislation. The 
aim should be to maintain the principle of non-duplication, wherever possible, even 
where powers and duties resulting from other legislation may also be the concern of 
local authorities. This does not mean failing to address issues which the planning 
system should be properly concerned with’. It specifically states that ‘the granting of 
other consents should not be used to justify the granting of planning permission’. 
 
Therefore, whilst it is acknowledged that the development will require an environmental 
permit, the planning application must be considered on its merits taking account of all 
material matters, even where they overlap the considerations of a permit, and the 
presence of a permit cannot be used as a substitute for the full and proper consideration 
of planning matters.  
 
 
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
 
This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, if regard is to be had to the 
development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the Planning 
Acts, the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
The Scheme  
 
The proposed development relates to the addition of two poultry rearing buildings 
beside a previously consented scheme (reference 18/0475/FUL). The proposal now 
seeks to double operations, taking the site capacity up to 180,000 birds in total.  
 
The proposed buildings will measure 99.19m x 24.684m with an eaves height of 3m and 
a ridge height of 6.403m. Buildings containing air scrubbers will be attached the east 
elevations of both the proposed and previously consented buildings and will measure 
7.5m x 24.684m with an eaves height of 4.142m and a ridge height of 7.438m. Four 
additional feed bins are proposed with a diameter of 3.5m and a height of 8.6m as well 
as 3 additional water tanks. The hardstanding area will also be extended by 785sq.m.   
 
Access will be taken from the A481 via the existing entrance created to serve the 
previously approved poultry units. 
 
 

Tudalen 46



 

 

Site Location  
 
The application site lies within an area of open countryside within the community of 
Llanelwedd. The application site is approximately 1.8 miles to the east of the settlement 
of Llanelwedd and approximately 2.3 miles to the west of the settlement of Hundred 
House. The application site is bound to the north, east and west by agricultural land and 
to the south by the A481.The site and surrounding area are rural in character made up 
of agricultural land with dispersed residential properties and farmsteads.  
 
Policy Context 
 
Future Wales is the national development plan framework for Wales. Its focus is on 
national and regional spatial issues and as such, whilst its policies will need to be 
considered, the Local Development Plan policies provide the detailed development 
management framework in the vast majority of cases. 

Planning Policy Wales Edition 11 (PPW) confirms the key principles for the planning 
system in Wales. It establishes what development plans and decisions taken by the 
planning system must achieve and how development should be shaped to deliver the 
best possible outcomes. It is the Welsh Government’s primary statement of planning 
policy and it is supplemented by a series of Technical Advice Notes (TANs), Welsh 
Government Circulars, and policy clarification letters.  

The primary objective of PPW is to ensure that the planning system contributes towards 
the delivery of sustainable development and improves the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, as required by the Planning (Wales) Act 
2015, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and other key legislation. 
In order to achieve this, it requires decision makers to embrace the concept of 
placemaking. Ministers advised in June 2019 that placemaking should form part of all 
decisions and have considered measures to call in applications where strategic 
placemaking has not been considered. 
 
Finally, Local Development Plans must be prepared in accordance with national 
planning policies and provide certainty for developers and the public about the type of 
development that will be permitted at a particular location. By determining applications 
in line with the Development Plan and other material considerations, Local Planning 
Authorities will be promoting the delivery of sustainable development.  

 
Principle of Development 
 
Planning Policy Wales as well as Technical Advice Notes 6 and 23 accept the principle 
of appropriate agricultural development within the open countryside. Local Development 
Plan (LDP) policy SP6 regarding the distribution of growth recognises that agricultural 
development will occur in the open countryside and details that such proposals will be 
assessed against national policy and all other relevant polices of the plan.  
 

Tudalen 47



 

 

Planning Policy Wales suggests that planning authorities should adopt a constructive 
approach towards agricultural development proposals, especially those which are 
designed to meet the needs of changing farming practices or are necessary to achieve 
compliance with new environmental, hygiene or welfare legislation. However, it is also 
recognised that care should be exercised when considering intensive livestock 
developments when these are proposed in close proximity to sensitive land uses such 
as homes, schools, hospitals, office development or sensitive environmental areas. In 
particular, the cumulative impacts (including noise and air pollution) resulting from 
similar developments in the same area should be taken into account. 
 
LDP Policy E2 supports proposals for developments that are appropriate in scale and 
nature to their location and are supported by a business case which demonstrates that 
its location is justified. It is accepted that poultry rearing is a land-based business that 
requires purpose built buildings on farms that propose to run them.  
 
In addition, policy E6 states that development proposals for farm diversification will be 
permitted where the proposed diversification will be of an intensity of use appropriate to 
the location and setting as well as not having a significant detrimental effect on the 
vitality and viability of any adjacent land uses either individually or through cumulative 
impact. Policy E6 seeks to encourage diversification to take place within existing 
buildings in the first instance, or adjacent to an existing farm building complex where 
this cannot be achieved. It is recognised that intensive poultry units will usually require 
bespoke buildings and due to their scale, there is often site constraints that lead to most 
appropriate siting of the units being detached from traditional farmsteads, particularly 
when taking all material matters into account. In this instance, the proposed building will 
be sited immediately adjacent to a previously consented scheme.   
 
Therefore, subject to all other material planning matters being acceptable, the principle 
of the development at this location is considered to be acceptable in accordance with 
the planning policy framework detailed above. 
 
Need and benefits 
 
It is generally accepted that poultry units on existing farm enterprises are an appropriate 
form of diversification. The applicants operate a traditional beef and sheep farming 
enterprise from Wern Halog, Llanfaredd. In 2019 the applicants were granted planning 
permission to diversify their business into broiler chicken production through the 
erection of 2 No. poultry houses and associated infrastructure (18/0475/FUL) to 
accommodate up to 90,000 broiler chickens. The poultry unit was constructed in the 
spring / summer of 2020 and has been operation since October 2020. The applicants 
are proposing to expand the poultry unit through the erection of two additional poultry 
sheds and associated infrastructure. 
 
This proposal is one for the expansion and diversification of an existing family run 
agricultural business. The proposal will provide a further diversified income and support 
the existing traditional livestock farming business. It will make a valuable contribution to 

Tudalen 48



 

 

the local and national economy. The proposed development represents an additional 
investment of approximately £1,500,000 in the construction of the expanded poultry 
farm. In terms of employment, the site will secure the employment of the existing full-
time workers within the farming unit and will support further employment within the 
associated industries allied to the poultry industry. 
 
Principal Matters 
 
Taking into account the details submitted in respect of the development, the principal 
matters relevant to determination are considered in turn below.  
 
Landscape and Visual Impact 
 
Guidance within policy DM4 of the Powys Local Development Plan, indicates that 
development proposals outside of settlements defined in the Settlement Hierarchy will 
only be permitted where they would not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the 
valued characteristics and qualities of the Powys landscape and would be appropriate 
and sensitive in terms of integration, siting, scale and design to the characteristics and 
qualities of the landscape including its topography, development pattern and features, 
historical and ecological qualities, open views and tranquillity. Policy DM4 requires a 
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment to be undertaken where significant impacts 
are likely on the landscape and/or visual amenity and proposals should have regard to 
LANDMAP, Registered Historic Parks and Gardens, protected landscapes and the 
visual amenities enjoyed by users of the Powys landscape and adjoining areas. The 
Council’s Landscape SPG reinforces policy DM4 and provides additional guidance on 
the assessment process.    
 
The Environmental Statement includes a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 
which has accompanied the application. Officers consider that the methodology 
employed sufficiently accords with best practice principles for its use in the 
consideration of the planning application.  The report concludes that the scale and 
nature of the development and its juxtaposition to other agricultural development will 
have an overall weighted medium landscape character sensitivity. The proposals would 
have a magnitude of landscape impact that could be considered negligible as there 
would be no material change as a result of the development. Therefore, the significance 
of landscape effect can be considered minor/negligible; i.e. not significant.  
 
With regards to visual impact, the report concludes that the visual effects are minimal 
due in most part to dense interceding vegetation between the viewer and site, the 
topography in the area and the similar setting of the proposed scheme. The visual 
impact of the development on the open countryside has been assessed, at worst case 
scenario, as moderate. Mitigation in the form of additional tree and hedgerow planting, 
maintenance of existing vegetation and the colour of the building being green has been 
suggested. With suitable mitigation measures, the development is considered to have a 
minor visual impact.  
 

Tudalen 49



 

 

LANDMAP has designated the landscape as follows: 
Geological Landscape – Moderate 
Landscape Habitat – Moderate 
Visual and Sensory – High 
Historic Landscape – High  
Cultural Landscape – High  
 
Within the visual and sensory layer of LANDMAP, the landscape has been described as 
having rolling hills and valleys with strong pastoral field patterns. There are wooded 
watercourses, scattered trees and small woodlands with scattered farms. The 
landscape is described as being typical of Radnor. The application site and immediate 
surrounding area fits the description of the aspect area well in terms of its 
characteristics. LANDMAP considers it to be an attractive traditional pastoral landscape 
with strong field pattern that typifies Radnor - and results in overall moderate values as 
it is not unusual or particularly distinctive. 
 
Whilst acknowledging the scale of the proposed poultry units in terms of floor area, the 
buildings are considered to have a relatively low profile reaching a maximum height of 
7.5 metres including the buildings to contain the air scrubbers. The tallest of the 
ancillary structures will be the feed silos that reach a height of 8.6 metres. Given the 
location of the development, undulating character of the surrounding landscape together 
with existing and proposed landscaping, it is considered that the siting of the proposed 
buildings and associated infrastructure will not adversely affect the character and 
appearance of the landscape from visual receptors. It is noted that application suggests 
the use of an olive green colour on the external cladding of the proposed buildings to 
match the colour of the existing buildings. This is considered to be appropriate in the 
context of the development and will form a condition of consent to ensure its 
implementation.   
 
LANDMAP acknowledges that farmsteads are a common feature of the aspect area and 
whilst Officers accept that a large-scale agricultural development is proposed, it is 
considered that it’s siting and appearance will not significantly detract from the noted 
landscape qualities. Landscaping and its management, together with earthworks 
controlled and provided through planning conditions recommended at the end of this 
report will assist with the neutral assimilation of the development into its surroundings. It 
is noted that the proposed buildings will be sited where the landscaping proposals 
approved for the previous scheme has been indicated and therefore will prohibit its 
implementation. It is anticipated that the landscaping scheme associated with the 
proposed development will account for this and will serve to mitigate the impact of the 
development as a whole.    
 
Similarly, with regards to cumulative impacts, whilst there are other approved intensive 
livestock units in the area, the closest being at a distance of 750 metres, officers do not 
consider that the proposed development would give rise to any significant cumulative 
landscape impacts taking account of the nature of the development, the receiving 
landscape and the extent of other development in the area.  

Tudalen 50



 

 

 
Overall, officers concur with the conclusions of the LVIA and raise no objection with 
regards to landscape and visual impact also taking account of cumulative impacts.  
 
In light of the above observations and notwithstanding the scale of the proposed 
development, it is considered that the proposed development is in accordance with 
planning policy. It is recommended that any consent is subject to appropriate conditions 
to secure the implementation and retention of proposed landscaping, proposed 
earthworks and the coloured finish of the buildings. Subject to the above, Officers 
consider that the visual and landscape impact associated with the proposed broiler 
development can be appropriately managed and thereby safeguard the landscape in 
accordance with policies SP7, DM4, DM13, E6 and DM2 of the Powys Local 
Development Plan. 
 
Amenity  
 
LDP policy DM13 states that development proposals will only be permitted where the 
amenities enjoyed by the occupants of nearby or proposed properties are not 
unacceptably affected. It is acknowledged that intensive livestock units have potential to 
generate noise impact from plant/equipment (extractor fans) and general operational 
activities whilst odour impact may potentially arise at any time during the cycle but 
particularly from the cleaning of the unit at the end of the bird cycle. 
 
When considering the impact to amenity from intensive livestock units Planning Policy 
Wales states that the cumulative impacts (including noise and air pollution) resulting 
from similar developments in the same area should be taken into account. 
 
The proposed development has been located on a site relatively remote from residential 
receptors. The closest receptors are the occupiers of Hope Chapel and Lea Hall at 
distances of around 115 and 180 respectively. The impact to amenity for the occupants 
of these properties have been considered as detailed below.  
 
Noise  
 
The main noise emitting plant associated with the development will be the extractor 
fans. The proposal indicates the use of 14 gable end extract fans per shed which will be 
linked to the air scrubber system and 3 roof mounted extract fans per shed. A plant 
noise assessment accompanies the planning application which has assessed the 
ventilation extract fans (roof and air scrubber system) for the proposed broiler units in 
accordance with BS4142:2014 and also takes account of the proposed changes to the 
existing units for the installation of the air scrubbers on these units. The report 
concludes that the Rating Levels of the roof extract fans and air scrubber will both be 
below the typical background noise level during both the day and evening, indicating a 
BS4142 low noise impact in usual circumstances. As a worse case scenario, with both 
ventilation systems running at 100% capacity, the highest Rating Level has been 

Tudalen 51



 

 

determined to be 2dB above the typical background noise level. A 2dB change in noise 
is imperceptible. 
 
Overall, the report concludes that the proposed development would not have a 
significant noise impact at the nearby sensitive receptor locations assessed. 
Environmental Heath Officers have considered the report and accept the findings.  
 
It is noted that the Environmental Health Officer has suggested a condition limiting 
operating hours in accordance with the original approval (18/0475/FUL). However, this 
condition was amended under reference 19/0742/NMA to allow for the night time 
collection of birds. Officers acknowledge that night-time removal occurs to benefit the 
welfare of the birds and as this has previously been accepted by the Local Planning 
Authority. It is considered appropriate therefore, that the proposed condition aligns with 
the varied condition.   
 
The development will also generate increased traffic to and from the application site 
however, for assessment purposes, in accordance with BS4142:2014, this does not 
need to account for the passage of vehicles on public roads as this could occur 
irrespective of the development. Given existing usage of the main road, the amount of 
increased traffic generated and the distance from the closest receptors, it is considered 
unlikely that there would be any significant additional noise from traffic relating to the 
development.  
 
The noise assessment has been undertaken on the basis of predicting the likely impact 
of the development against background noise levels. As such it inherently deals with the 
issue of cumulative impact with all other existing forms of development. The report has 
also considered the impact of the changes to the existing operation with the proposed 
installation of air scrubbing.   Therefore, on the basis of the submitted noise assessment 
it can be concluded that there will be no cumulative noise impacts as a result of this 
development.     
 
 
Odour  
 
The application is accompanied by a report that has used computer modelling to assess 
the impact of odour emissions on the nearest receptors. The modelling predicts that, 
should the proposed development of the poultry units at Wern Halog proceed, the odour 
exposure would be below the Natural Resources Wales benchmark for moderately 
offensive odours, which is a maximum annual 98th percentile hourly mean 
concentration of 3.0 ouE/m3, at all nearby residential receptors considered.  
 
Given the extent of the predicted odour plume from the proposed buildings which takes 
into account the previously approved scheme at Wern Halog, the development is not 
considered to have a cumulative odour impact with any other developments.  
 
With regards to manure management, the application details that the manure will be 

Tudalen 52



 

 

exported off site to a third-party licensed Anaerobic Digester Plant and the dirty water 
will be exported by a third-party licensed waste carrier. Correspondence from these 
third-party companies has been provided by the applicant and confirms that the organic 
material can be accepted in principle. As a contingency plan for when manure cannot 
be exported off site, it could temporarily be stored in an existing building on the holding. 
The building has not been identified within the application, however, a condition 
controlling that stored manure be kept undercover on the holding will significantly 
reduce the chances of the manure storage causing amenity issues and will be an 
effective enforcement tool if it is not adhered to.  
 
It is acknowledged that manure generated as a result of the previously approved 
scheme is intended to be spread on the land within the control of the Wern Halog 
holding and the Planning Authority has received objections about the appropriateness of 
considering the current proposal in light of potential issues within the previously 
approved scheme and current regulation. Members should be clear that their role is to 
determine the current application in line with the development plan and other material 
considerations. If there is a breach of another consent, enforcement action may take 
place against that approval but it does not need to affect the consideration of the current 
application. As far as the current application is concerned, it is proposed that manure 
and dirty water will be exported from the site and will not be applied to the land at Wern 
Halog. Therefore, the potential for it to generate amenity concerns for nearby residents 
has been reduced.  
 
On the basis that the measures set out in the application are adhered to, the proposal is 
unlikely to cause any unacceptable amenity impacts. In order to secure this, planning 
conditions have been recommended as detailed at the end of this report.  
 
Dust 
 
Given the distances from sensitive receptors, it is considered unlikely that existing 
residents will be affected by dust from the development.  
 
Amenity Conclusion  
 
In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development will not have an 
unacceptable adverse impact on the amenities enjoyed by occupants of nearby 
properties by reasons of noise, odour or dust, both in terms of individual and cumulative 
impact. Therefore, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with planning policy, 
in particular LDP policies DM13 and DM14. 
 
Biodiversity, Ecology & The Environment 
 
Policy DM2 of the Powys Local Development Plan seeks to maintain and enhance 
biodiversity and safeguard protected important sites. Policy DM2 states that proposed 
development should not unacceptably adversely affect any designated site, habitat or 
species including locally important site designations. Development proposals likely to 

Tudalen 53



 

 

have an adverse effect on the conservation value of nationally protected sites, habitats 
or species either directly, indirectly or in combination will only be permitted where it can 
be demonstrated that the proposal contributes to the protection, enhancement or 
positive management or the site, habitat or species or in certain other circumstances set 
out in the policy.  The Council’s SPG on biodiversity provides guidance on assessing 
the impact of development on designated sites or protected species.  
 
Under section 28G of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the Council has a duty in so 
far as the grant of planning permission is likely to affect the flora, fauna, or geological or 
physiographical features by reason of which a SSSI is of special interest, to take 
reasonable steps to further the conservation and enhancement of those features.   
 
 
SACs and SSSIs - 
 
Intensive livestock installations have the potential to impact protected sites through 
aerial emissions (ammonia and nitrogen deposition).  
 
There are 14 SSSIs and 1 SAC within 5km of the proposal. The application has been 
supported by a modelling report by AS Modelling & Data Ltd. NRW have confirmed that 
the ammonia critical levels and nitrogen critical levels used in the assessment with 
regards to the Statutory designated sites present within 5km of the proposed 
development are considered to be correct. The report provides the results of detailed 
aerial modelling assessments taking account of the existing scenario (two sheds 
operating without air scrubbing) and the proposed scenario (4 sheds operating with air 
scrubbing). The results show the proposed scenario would emit a considerably lower 
process contribution to the protected sites within 5km of the unit. Therefore, despite the 
prediction that the development would exceed the process contribution thresholds used 
for assessment purposes for a number of the designated sites, the development is 
considered to be acceptable as it would result in a betterment from the current situation.  
 
Given the nature of the proposed development and the proximity to the River Wye SAC 
the Local Planning Authority is required to undertake a Habitats Regulations 
Assessment. An Appropriate Assessment of the application has been undertaken to 
determine whether the proposed development would result in an adverse effect on the 
integrity of the national site network. The report concludes that subject to inclusion of 
appropriate conditions the proposed development would result in betterment compared 
to the current scenario and so not result in an adverse effect to the integrity of the River 
Wye SAC in light of its conservation objectives.  
 
There have been comments received from third parties noting that the modelling does 
not take into account the impact to aerial emissions from the process of storing of 
manure and the practice of manure spreading. Members should note that the submitted 
modelling has been undertaken in accordance with current NRW guidance for 
assessment purposes and found to be acceptable. Furthermore, the current application 
proposes that manure will be exported from the site and used in an anaerobic digester. 

Tudalen 54



 

 

The emissions in relation to the storage of feedstock for anaerobic digestion was a 
matter for the planning application and permit that relate to that facility and not the 
current application.  
 
On the basis of the responses received from NRW and the Council’s Ecologist, it is 
considered that the proposed development will result in a betterment with regards to its 
impact on designated and protected sites subject to the use of the proposed air 
scrubbers. The proposal is therefore considered to be compliant with policy DM2 of the 
Powys LDP, Technical Advice Note 5 and Planning Policy Wales. A condition of 
consent has been recommended at the end of this report regarding the implementation 
of the air scrubbers.  
 
Protected Species 
 
Policy DM2 of the Powys Local Development Plan, TAN5 and PPW seek to safeguard 
protected species and their habitats. Policy DM2 states that proposed development 
should not unacceptably adversely affect any habitat or protected species. 
 
A Preliminary Ecological Assessment produced by Craig Emms and Linda Barnett 
Consultant Ecologists dated March 2021 has been submitted to inform the application. 
The PEA included an assessment of the site of the proposed development and 
surrounding habitats for their potential to support protected and/or priority species. With 
the exception of potential for Great Crested Newt (GCN), no evidence of protected 
species was confirmed within or adjacent to the proposed development footprint and 
additional survey work was not considered necessary.   
 
Presence of GCN was confirmed in 2018 from two of the three ponds located within 
500m of the proposed development; surveys at the time identified a small population of 
GCN. Re-assessment of the condition of the three ponds found no notable changes and 
further surveys were not required. The proposed development will impact sub-optimal 
terrestrial habitat where GCN may be present in low numbers. Therefore, an EPS 
licence will be required for the development. Detailed mitigation, compensation and 
enhancement measures have been provided (Conservation Strategy & Scheme of 
Mitigation for Great Crested Newt, by David Clements Ecology Ltd.) to demonstrate that 
the proposal would not adversely affect the favourable conservation status of the GCN 
population. 
 
Taking account of the nature of the development combined with the habitats 
surrounding the development, it is concluded that there is unlikely to be negative impact 
to protected species as a result of the proposed development subject to adherence to 
the recommendations identified. Appropriate conditions are detailed at the end of this 
report as recommended by NRW and the Council’s Ecologist.  
 
Ancient Woodland  
 
The biodiversity data search identified the presence of 39 parcels of Ancient Woodland 

Tudalen 55



 

 

(AW) within 2kms of the site.  
 
With regard to AW sites, preliminary modelling predicted that process contributions to 
ammonia concentration were below the 100% critical level threshold for 34 out of 39 AW 
receptors. Five receptors for ammonia sensitive AW sites north of proposed 
development currently receive ammonia concentrations in excess of 100% critical level 
of 1ug/m3 from the two existing poultry units. Preliminary modelling based on the 
inclusion of Inno+ air scrubbers within both existing units and the two proposed units 
demonstrated that a reduction in the ammonia concentration currently received by the 
five receptor locations could be achieved. Four out of the five receptor locations would 
still receive ammonia concentrations exceeding the 100% critical level threshold but the 
amount will be lower than currently experienced. The process contribution to the 
remaining receptor would be reduced to below the critical level threshold. 
 
In light of the above, the impact on Ancient Woodland as a result of the development is 
considered to be acceptable.  
 
Road Verge Nature Reserve 
 
It has been noted by the Council’s Ecologist that there is a Road Verge Nature Reserve 
– Llanelwedd RVNR present within 2km of the proposed development which has not 
been included in the ammonia and nitrogen deposition modelling. Whilst this non-
statutory site has not been included within the assessment, the Ecologist has reviewed 
the results of the modelling that has been undertaken with regards to Ancient Woodland 
and considers that this provides sufficient evidence to demonstrate that the predicted 
process contribution to the RVNR would not exceed the lower threshold (100% for non-
statutory sites) of the precautionary Critical Level for this site.  As such it is not 
considered necessary in this instance to require additional information to be submitted. 
 
Pollution Control 
 
Officers acknowledge that the proposal has the potential to pollute the environment 
through surface water runoff and associated construction and operational activities 
unless suitable control/mitigation measures are implemented. A number of third party 
representations have also been made regarding this issue.    
 
The submitted Site Drainage Plan and confirms that dirty and clean surface waters will 
be managed separately minimising the risk of pollution. Surface waters from roofs of the 
two proposed units will be directed to the existing attenuation pond. All waters from the 
apron at the front of the sheds will be directed to dirty water tanks compliant with the 
Water Resources (Control of Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021. Used 
ammonia scrubber liquor will be stored in two separate compliant tanks.  
 
A Flood Consequence Assessment and Surface Water Management Plan has also 
been submitted which confirms that the additional surface water can be accommodated 
in principle through extension of the attenuation pond. 

Tudalen 56



 

 

 
All manure, dirty water and scrubber liquor is proposed to be exported off site to an 
Anaerobic Digester. This is necessary not only to protect amenity of neighbouring 
residents but also to safeguard the environment from pollution as the application has 
detailed that there is insufficient land available within the applicants’ control in order to 
use the nutrients for agricultural benefit. In order to control these processes, planning 
conditions have been recommended at the end of this report.  
 
 
Biodiversity Enhancements  
 
Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 requires LPAs to seek to maintain 
and enhance biodiversity through the planning process. Furthermore, the Welsh 
Government wrote to all planning authorities in Wales to clarify that ‘where biodiversity 
enhancement is not proposed as part of an application, significant weight will be given 
to its absence, and unless other significant material considerations indicate otherwise it 
will be necessary to refuse permission’.  
 
It is recognised that the application proposes the loss of a number of trees as well as 
the loss hedgerow to facilitate the development. Furthermore, the landscaping proposed 
to mitigate for the previous scheme will not be able to be implemented due to the 
location of the proposed development. Mitigation in the form of additional planting along 
the eastern and western boundaries of the newly formed site have been proposed to 
compensate for this. However, the application also demonstrates a net gain to 
biodiversity as a result of the proposed development though provision of four hedgehog 
nesting boxes, six bird nest boxes and six bat roosting boxes placed at appropriate 
locations within the curtilage of the farm. The Council’s Ecologist has recognised that 
these may be located outside of the application site area, however, as they are on land 
within the control of the applicant, officers are satisfied that a planning condition can be 
used to secure their provision. Overall, it is considered that the proposals are sufficient 
to ensure that the LPA has met its duty under Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment 
(Wales) Act 2016.  
 
 
Biodiversity, Ecology & the Environment Conclusion 
 
Having carefully considered the proposed development, it is not considered that the 
proposed development will have an unacceptable adverse impact on designated sites, 
protected species or the environment, both in terms of individual and cumulative impact. 
In addition, appropriate levels of biodiversity enhancements have been included within 
the application.  As such, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with policies 
DM2 and DM13 of the Powys LDP, Technical Advice Note 5, Planning Policy Wales and 
the Council’s duty under Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
 
Highway Safety and Movement 

Tudalen 57



 

 

 
Policy DM13 confirms that applications must demonstrate that the development has 
been designed and located to minimise the impacts on the transport network - journey 
times, resilience and efficient operation - whilst ensuring that highway safety for all 
transport users is not detrimentally impacted upon. In accordance with policies DM13 
and T1, development proposals are expected to meet all highway access requirements, 
(for all transport users), vehicular parking standards and demonstrate that the strategic 
and local highway network can absorb the traffic impacts of the development without 
adversely affecting the safe and efficient flow of traffic on the network or that traffic 
impacts can be managed to acceptable levels to reduce and mitigate any adverse 
impacts from the development. 
 
Access to the site will be provided via the existing entrance off the A481 which was 
constructed to accommodate the existing poultry units at the site. The access has been 
designed to accommodate HGV traffic with 15m radii and 6m width as well as visibility 
splays of 2.4m x 215m to the east and west. The Local Highway Authority have 
suggested conditions relating to parking and turning provision for cars and HGVs both 
during the construction and operational phases of the development which have been 
attached to the recommended conditions detailed at the end of this report.   
 
The application is also accompanied by a breakdown of associated traffic movements 
and the type of vehicles used for each activity. It is indicated that there are likely to be 
73 one way movements per flock cycle, totalling 457 in an average year. This is an 
increase of 225 movements from the existing situation.  Officers consider that the report 
offers a reasonable and realistic assessment of traffic generation and likely highway 
safety impacts in order for the Local Planning Authority to assess the impact of the 
development on the highway network and its users. 
 
The Highway Authority have been consulted on the application and offer no objection to 
the proposed development subject to conditions which are detailed at the end of this 
report. Overall, it is considered that the proposed development will not have an 
unacceptable adverse impact on highway safety and movement, and there is sufficient 
capacity within the existing highway network to absorb the traffic created as a result of 
this development. Officers are satisfied that the proposed development is in accordance 
with policies T1 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan, Technical Advice 
Note 18 – Transport and Planning Policy Wales. 
 
Cultural Heritage  
 
Listed Buildings 
The Planning Authority is required have special regard to the desirability of preserving 
listed buildings or their settings under section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  
 
The grade II listed Hope Chapel is located 150 metres distant from the proposed poultry 
units and 100 metres from the closest proposed air scrubber on the existing units. Hope 

Tudalen 58



 

 

Chapel is currently a residential property but was formally a small rural religious building 
and this is reflected in its architectural design as well as its setting. The Council’s 
Conservation Officer recognises that the proposed development is agricultural, so not 
necessarily out of keeping with the history of the building, however, the proposed 
development is of a scale that would be historically alien to buildings such as the 
chapel. Furthermore, whilst existing vegetation screens the existing development from 
the former chapel, the proposed poultry units are likely to be slightly more elevated. In 
order to mitigate this, it is suggested that additional trees are planted on the bank 
between Unit 2 and 3 and alongside the ends of the sheds to the east of the 
development. Subject to the inclusion of this additional planting, which can be controlled 
via planning conditions, the development would have a neutral impact on the setting of 
Hope Chapel.  
 
Three further listed buildings are located within 500 metres of the proposed 
development, these being Neuadd Fach, Neuadd Fach Barn and Maesbryncoch.  
Neuadd Fach is a cruck frame farmhouse which is grade II listed for its special 
architectural interest as a well-preserved small C17 farmstead with earlier origins. The 
barn at Neuadd fach is also grade II listed and is noted for retaining its C19 character. 
Together they form a strong farm group and are an example of a well-preserved small 
farmstead of a type once common in the region.  Maesbryncoch is listed for its special 
architectural interest as a farmhouse retaining definite C19 character in the vernacular 
tradition, a type once common in the region but now rarely well preserved.  
 

The scheme under consideration is for an agricultural development grouped with an 
existing development. Whilst the scale of the development is noted and will double the 
scale of the existing development, it is considered that the overall impact to these listed 
buildings and their settings will remain unharmed particularly when taking into account 
the proposed landscaping that will be secured via planning conditions and the colour of 
the external cladding of the buildings.  Having taken special regard of the settings of 
these listed buildings, including their proximity to the proposed development and the 
intervisibility between them, officers are satisfied that there would be no harm to the 
settings of any of the identified listed buildings as a result of the proposed development.     
 
 
Scheduled Monuments 
 
There is a policy presumption in favour of safeguarding Scheduled Ancient Monuments 
and their settings. There are 18 Scheduled Monuments located within 3 kilometres of 
the proposed development. However, for 14 of these there will be no direct views 
between the site and the assets due to intervening topography and vegetation. 
Consequently, the proposed development will not have an impact on the settings of any 
of these scheduled monuments. 
 
The remaining four Scheduled Monuments are RD014 Caer Einon Camp which is 
located some 1.3km to the west of the proposed development, RD122 Carneddau 
Round Cairn - located some 1.33km to the northwest, RD222 Cwm-berwyn round cairn 
- located some 0.95km to the north and RD226 Cilberllan ring cairn - located some 

Tudalen 59



 

 

1.07km north-north-east. Whilst it has been noted by Cadw that the roofs of the 
buildings will be visible from these monuments, vegetation will provide varying levels of 
screening and in all cases the proposal will be seen as an extension of the existing 
poultry units. As such, whilst there may be very slight visual changes in the views from 
the scheduled monuments, this will not have any effect on the way that they are 
experienced, understood and appreciated. Consequently, the proposed development 
will have no impact on the settings of scheduled monuments RD014, RD122, RD222 
and RD226. 
 
In their consultation response, CPAT confirm that there are no archaeological 
implications for the proposed development.  
 

Cultural Heritage Conclusion 
 
Having considered the potential impact of the proposed development on built heritage 
assets, it is concluded that the proposed will not have an unacceptable adverse impact 
on the setting of any listed buildings or scheduled monuments. In light of the above, 
Officers consider the proposed development to be in accordance with policy SP7 of the 
Local Development Plan, TAN 24 and Planning Policy Wales. 
 
Public Rights of Way 
 
Local Development Plan Policy DM13 criterion 9 states that proposals will only be 
supported where the public rights of way network are enhanced and integrated within 
the layout of the development proposal; or appropriate mitigation measures are put in 
place where necessary. Policy SP7 lists the public right of way network as a 
recreational asset and states that development proposals must not have an 
unacceptable adverse impact on the asset or its operation.  
 
Whilst it is recognised that there are public rights of way within the vicinity of the 
development, none are to be directly impacted as a result of this development. 
Furthermore, it is considered that sufficient distance is retained between the proposed 
development and the public rights of way to ensure that the development would not 
negatively impact upon any users.  
 
As such the proposed development is considered to be compliant with policies SP7 and 
DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan and Planning Policy Wales.  
 
Impact on Tourism Assets  
 
Policy DM13 of the Local Development sets out that developments must not have an 
unacceptable impact upon existing and established tourism assets and attractions. The 
Council is committed to safeguarding tourism in Powys as the significant contribution it 
makes to the local economy is recognised. As such, new development proposals should 
not decrease the attraction to assets important to the tourism offer.  
 

Tudalen 60



 

 

It is noted that a number of representations make reference to the development 
affecting the tourism appeal of the area with particular concern around the effects of the 
development on the River Wye and what this may mean for fishing and other 
recreational uses. As has been previously detailed within this report and the associated 
HRA Appropriate Assessment, providing that the development is managed in 
accordance with the submitted information, which will also controlled via planning 
conditions, it is considered that the proposed development is unlikely to have an effect 
on the River SAC or its qualifying features. As there is no direct link between the 
proposed development and the River Wye, it would be difficult to conclude that the 
proposed scheme would unacceptably affect the asset.  
 
 
Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage 
 
The proposed sheds would be located within Flood Zone A on the Development Advice 
Map i.e. beyond the 1:1000 year fluvial flood extent (not at risk from fluvial flooding). 
However, part of the site including the existing attenuation pond is located in Flood 
Zone B, which is land known to have been flooded in the past as evidenced by 
sedimentary deposits. In accordance with TAN15, Zone B is used as part of a 
precautionary approach to indicate where site levels should be checked against the 
extreme (0.1%) flood level. If site levels are greater than the flood levels used to define 
adjacent extreme flood outline there is no need to consider flood risk further. In this 
instance, the existing attenuation pond borders the 1:1000 year event outline, however, 
as the scheme does not propose any development in this location that would either be 
vulnerable from flooding itself or likely to result in additional flooding elsewhere, Officers 
have concluded that there is no need to consider flood risk further in this instance.      
 
The comments from the Lead Local Flood Authority are noted and highlight certain 
matters in relation to the dirty water tank and the attenuation pond that will require 
further investigation before the scheme can gain SAB consent. The application has 
been supported by a Flood Consequence Assessment and a Surface Water 
Management Plan which notes that the vulnerability of the land use will remain the 
same as existing and there are acceptable means for managing run off as a result of the 
development. Officers are therefore satisfied that flood risk remains low and that 
satisfactory provision can be made for land drainage through the use of Sustainable 
Drainage Systems (SuDS). Full details of the proposed drainage scheme can be 
secured through the use of a planning condition which is recommended as detailed at 
the end of this report.   
 
To manage surface water effectively on site, clean water from roof and clean surfaces 
has been identified as being drained to clean water drainage system each side of the 
buildings which is then discharged to the existing attenuation pond located to the south-
east of the proposed poultry sheds that already serves the two poultry units on site. The 
attenuation pond outfalls into the Cnithio Brook to the south of the attenuation pond 
through a restricted orifice which limits discharge to the appropriate greenfield rate.  
 

Tudalen 61



 

 

Water used during the cleaning operations and all rainfall over the aprons would drain 
into dirty water tanks which will be managed separately from clean water. These tanks 
would periodically be pumped out and their contents transported to a local AD Plant.  
 
Based on the information available, the development would accord with the provisions 
of the Local Development Plan, in particular, policies DM5 and DM6 as well as 
Technical Advice Note 15 and Planning Policy Wales.    
 
The Best and Most Versatile Agricultural Land  
 
It is recognised that agricultural land of grades 1, 2 and 3a of the Agricultural Land 
Classification system (ALC) is the best and most versatile, and should be conserved as 
a finite resource for the future as set out within Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11).  
In this instance, the site is on grade 3b land and further consideration does not need to 
be given to its safeguarding in this respect.  
 
 
Minerals Safeguarding  
 
Mineral safeguarding areas have been designated for sand and gravel, sandstone, 
limestone, igneous rocks and surface coal. LDP policy DM8 requires development 
proposals in mineral safeguarding areas to be subject to additional considerations to 
ensure that mineral resources are not needlessly sterilised by other development, and 
they remain accessible to future generations.  
 
According to the aggregate safeguarding maps, part of the site would be over an area of 
sub-alluvial sand and gravel (category 2). Given the presence of the existing poultry 
units and other development within the locality, it is considered unlikely that extraction 
would meet the tests of environmental acceptability or community benefit and the 
benefits of the development with regards to food production are considered to be an 
overriding factor in this instance.  
 
Cumulative Impact  
 
Within a letter to all Chief Planning Officers dated 12th June 2018, Welsh Government 
highlighted the need to exercise particular care when considering developments which 
would bring livestock units within close proximity to sensitive land uses such as homes, 
schools, hospitals, office development or sensitive environmental areas. Importantly, it 
states, ‘while an individual intensive livestock development may be acceptable, the 
cumulative impacts resulting from similar developments nearby should also be taken 
into account’.   
 
It also states that ‘Intensive agricultural units particularly pig and poultry farms, can 
affect both sensitive habitats and the local population. This is largely through the 
release of pollutants, including: ammonia; nutrients from manure, litter and slurry; 
effluent discharges; dust; odour; and noise.’  

Tudalen 62



 

 

 
All material planning matters have been considered taking into account cumulative 
impacts where these are relevant to the development, the site, its context and the issue 
being considered. It is recognised that that there are proposed and operating large 
scale poultry business within the locality of the proposed unit but it is considered that 
the development does not give rise to any unacceptable cumulative impacts as has 
been detailed within the individual sections of the report and summarised below, with 
specific reference to the issues raised within the chief planning officer letter and 
Planning Policy Wales.   
 
With regards to cumulative impacts, consideration has been given to similar 
developments located within five kilometres of the site that have been through the 
planning system and are operational, permitted or applied for. The following sites have 
been identified -    
 
Tramaen Farm, Llanfaredd – 0.75km South South West of the site – 1 No. free range 
egg unit.  
Gwernfach, Bettws Disserth – 4.3km North East of the site – 1 No. free range egg unit. 
Penarth Farm, Cregrina – 4.4km East of the site – 1 No. free range egg unit. 
 
For some environmental matters, such as noise, odour and dust, the impacts of a 
poultry unit are localised and are unlikely to act in-combination or contribute to a 
cumulative impact due to the remote nature of the proposal from another source and the 
proximity to sensitive receptors. The application has been supported by a noise report 
that has taken into account the impact of the development in relation to background 
data and therefore the scheme has been considered against all existing development.  
The application has also been submitted with an odour assessment report and given the 
extent of the predicted odour plume from the proposed buildings; the development is 
considered to not have an unacceptable cumulative odour impact with any other 
developments. Similarly, due to the isolated nature of the development and the 
proximity to a sensitive receptor, the dust produced is not likely to act in combination 
with any other development.   
 
Manure generated as a result of the development will be exported off site to an 
anaerobic digester. The anaerobic digester has the benefit of planning permission and 
must operate in accordance with that permission and any other regulations or permits 
associated with it. The cumulative impact of nutrient use from the sludge produced as a 
result of the process was a matter for the consent relating to the AD plant and not this 
current planning application.   
 
Finally, it is recognised that the development will generate aerial emissions and will 
contribute to those already present in the atmosphere from various sources. However, 
the development has incorporated best available technologies (scrubbers) to reduce the 
development’s contribution to a level which is considered to be a betterment from the 
current situation even when acting in combination with other developments.    
 

Tudalen 63



 

 

A number of representations have been received stating cumulative impact as a ground 
of objection, however, some of these appear to be a general concern relating to 
intensive livestock units at a strategic level rather than a specific concern relating to this 
development in conjunction with another specific unit on any particular individual matter.     
 
Climate Change 
 
PPW states that the planning system has a vital role to play in making development 
resilient to climate change, decarbonising society and developing a circular economy for 
the benefit of both the built and natural environments and to contribute to the 
achievement of the well-being goals. The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 sets a legal 
target of reducing greenhouse gas emissions in Wales by at least 80% in 2050 with 
interim targets set for 2020, 2030 and 2040. Welsh Government also have a legal 
commitment to net zero by 2050 and an ambition to achieve this sooner if possible.  
 
There are two parts to the issue of climate change within planning, these being the 
extent a development contributes towards the generation greenhouse gasses and the 
extent a development has considered and adopted means to make the operation 
resilient to the effects of climate change.   
 
It is evident that the proposal will make some contribution to greenhouse gas emissions, 
as do many operations and developments, however, this does not in itself mean that it 
is unacceptable. It is accepted that there are climate change implications from 
transportation required to serve the poultry unit but a wider argument could also be put 
forward in support of the application in that it will contribute to British self-sufficiency in 
poultry meat production and the principle of reducing imported food stock which will 
have a significant reduction in carbon emissions from transportation overall. As it 
currently stands there are no specific planning policy requirements that dictate a certain 
amount of greenhouse gas generation from a development would be unacceptable and 
neither does it state intensive livestock units should not be supported for this reason. 
Rather, by making determinations in line with the development plan, it can be reconciled 
that the development is acceptable in planning terms.     
 
With regards to climate change resilience, the environmental statement has detailed 
that the development will incorporate the use of renewable technologies in the form of a 
ground source heat pump which will reduce reliance on energy from fossil fuels. 
Furthermore, mitigation for climate change is factored into the sustainable drainage 
design proposals which includes the appropriate additional capacity for climate change 
within the designed system. 
 
Taking account of the information available to Development Management Officers as is 
reasonable for an individual planning decision, it is believed that the proposal provides a 
well-considered approach to climate change in so far as it is material to the decision 
making process.  
 
 

Tudalen 64



 

 

Planning Balance 
 
It is recognised that there are arguments both for and against the sustainability of 
intensive livestock units in the UK as well as the overall impact of the development on 
the environment and local populations. All development has an impact and it is the role 
of the planning authority to assess whether the impact is acceptable or unacceptable 
taking into account material planning matters.  
 
The application is in respect of a development to accommodate an additional 90,000 
broilers at Wern Halog, Llanfaredd. Having been assessed by Development 
Management and taking into account the comments of consultees and members of the 
public, the development is considered to not unacceptably affect the environment 
subject to adherence of the information submitted with the application which can be 
controlled via the conditions detailed below.  The development is considered to be 
compliant with local and national planning policy and it is for that reason that the 
development is supported.  
 
The information submitted within the Environmental Statement has been 
considered in full in reaching the decision made on this application.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Conditional consent.  
 
 
Conditions 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than 
the expiration of five years from the date of this permission. 
2. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved 
plans and documents: IP/KD/01, IP/KD/02, IP/KD/03, IP/KD/04, IP/KD/05A, IP/KD/06, 
Method Statement and Pollution Prevention Plan produced by Ian Pick and dated July 
2021 and Method Statement for Manure Management produced by Ian Pick and dated 
July 2021.The measures identified shall be adhered to, implemented in full and 
maintained thereafter. 
3. Prior to first beneficial use of the development hereby permitted, evidence 
(prepared by a suitably qualified industry professional) must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to confirm that the ammonia 
scrubbing equipment as detailed in the report titled 'A Report on the Modelling of the 
Dispersion and Deposition of Ammonia from the Existing and Proposed Broiler Chicken 
Rearing Houses at Wern Halog Farm, Llanfaredd, Builth Wells, Powys', by AS Modelling 
& Data Ltd., dated 27th January 2021 have been installed in the two poultry units 
hereby approved as well as the two existing poultry units on site respectively and are fit 
for purpose. The air scrubber units shall be operated and maintained thereafter. 
4.  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order 

Tudalen 65



 

 

with or without modification), no extensions or alterations to the units shall be erected 
without the consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
5.  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
Order 1987and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
Order 1995 as amended or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory 
instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification, the 
premises shall not be used for any purpose other than that hereby authorised. 
6. The poultry units hereby approved shall be limited to occupation by 90,000 
broilers. 
7.  No external lighting shall be installed unless a detailed external lighting plan is 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The external 
lighting scheme shall identify measures to avoid impacts on nocturnal wildlife in 
accordance with the Bat Conservation Trust and Institution of Lighting Professionals 
Guidance Note 08/18 Bats and artificial lighting in the UK Bats and the Built 
Environment series and shall be implemented as approved and maintained thereafter. 
8.  All manure and dirty waters generated by the development hereby permitted, and 
all ammonia scrubber liquor from the four poultry units at Wern Halog, Llanfaredd, Builth 
Wells, shall be exported to an appropriately licensed anaerobic digester facility. None of 
the above material shall be spread directly on any land. Documentary records 
demonstrating receipt of all exported material by the anaerobic digester facility shall be 
maintained by the operator of the development hereby permitted and be made available 
to Local Planning Authority upon request.  
9. During such occasions where manure generated by the birds accommodated 
within the buildings hereby approved cannot be directly exported from the site, it must 
only be stored undercover within buildings at Wern Halog, Llanfaredd. At no time must 
this manure be stored externally of the confines of a building. 
10.  All manure exported off site (Wern Halog, Llanfaredd) must be sheeted or fully 
covered. 
11.  All deliveries to and from site in connection with this permission shall be carried 
out between the following hours – 07.00 – 21.00 (with the exception of live bird transport 
which can be undertaken outside of these hours). 
12.  The external cladding of the buildings and the feed silos shall be Olive Green in 
colour for the lifetime of the development. The external elements of the mechanical fans 
shall also be Olive Green or Black in colour for the lifetime of the development. 
13. No development shall take place until details of hard landscape works have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. These details shall 
include: 
i) earthworks showing existing and proposed finished levels; 
ii) any means of enclosure and retaining structures; and 
iii) hard surfacing materials. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
14. No development shall take place until details of landscaping plans have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. These details shall 
include: 
i) planting plans;  
ii) written specifications including cultivation and other operations associated with plant 

Tudalen 66



 

 

and grass establishment; and 
iii) schedules of plants noting species, plant supply sizes and proposed densities.  
15. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of 
the building or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner; and any 
trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development 
die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of similar size and species. 
16. No development shall take place until a plan detailing the location of the proposed 
biodiversity mitigation and enhancement measures as detailed within the 
Recommendation for Mitigation and Further Survey Section of the Preliminary 
Ecological Appraisal Report produced by Craig Emms and Dr Linda Barnett dated 
March 2021 together with a timeframe for their implementation has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The identified measures must be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details.   
17. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the mitigation 
measures identified in the Recommendation for Mitigation and Further Survey Section 
of the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Report produced by Craig Emms and Dr Linda 
Barnett dated March 2021 (Pages 24 – 26 (inclusive)). The identified measures shall be 
adhered to and implemented in full and maintained thereafter. 
18. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the GCN Mitigation 
Strategy (reference Anon. (2021) Conservation Strategy & Scheme of Mitigation for 
Great Crested Newt. David Clements Ecology. Unpublished). The identified measures 
shall be adhered to and implemented in full and maintained thereafter. 
19. No development shall take place until a biosecurity risk assessment to include 
appropriate measures to control any INNS on site, if present, together with a timeframe 
to undertake the measures has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The identified measures must be implemented in accordance with 
the approved details and timescales.   
20. No development for the construction of the buildings hereby permitted shall 
commence until provision is made within the curtilage of the site for the parking of all 
construction vehicles together with a vehicle turning area.  The parking and turning area 
shall be constructed to a depth of 0.4 metres in crusher run or sub-base and maintained 
free from obstruction at all times such that all vehicles serving the site shall park within 
the site and both enter and leave the site in a forward gear for the duration of the 
construction of the development. 
21.  Prior to the first beneficial use of the development, provision shall be made within 
the curtilage of the site for the parking of not less than two cars and two heavy goods 
vehicles together with a turning space such that all vehicles serving the site may both 
enter and leave the site in a forward gear. The parking and turning areas shall be 
retained for their designated use for as long as the development hereby permitted 
remains in existence.  
22. No development shall commence until details of a scheme for the disposal of 
surface water has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details 
prior to the first use of the development to accommodate livestock and must be retained 

Tudalen 67



 

 

in perpetuity. 
 
 
Reasons  
 
1.  Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 
2.  To ensure adherence to the plans stamped as approved in the interests of clarity 
and a satisfactory development. 
3.  To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP Policy DM2 in relation to The 
Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 
11, February 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of 
the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
4 to 6. In order to control the development which has the potential to have adversely 
affect the amenity of the area and local biodiversity in contradiction to Policy DM13 and 
DM2 of the Powys Local Development Plan and Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 
February 2021). 
7.   To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP Policies DM2 and DM7 in relation 
to The Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales 
(Edition 11, February 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 
Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
8 to 10. In the interests of pollution prevention and amenity in accordance with policies 
DM2 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan (2018) and Planning Policy 
Wales (Edition 11, February 2021). 
11.  In order to control the development which has the potential to adversely affect 
the amenity of local residences in contradiction to Policy DM13 of the Powys Local 
Development Plan and Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021). 
12 to 15. In the interests of amenity and the protection of the settings of listed buildings 
in accordance with polices DM4, DM13 and SP7 of the Powys Local Development Plan 
(2018), Technical Advice Notes 12 and 24 and Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 
February 2021). 
16 to 19. To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP Policy DM2 in relation to the 
Natural Environment and meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 
February 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016 
20 & 21. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with policies DM13 and T1 of 
the Powys Local Development Plan (2018), Technical Advice Note 18 and Planning 
Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021).  
22. To ensure that the surface water drainage scheme is compliant with Policy DM6 of 
the Powys Local Development Plan and Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 
2021). 
 

Advisory Notes 

Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (Wales) 

Regulations 2017  

Tudalen 68



 

 

The application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement. The Environmental 

Statement addresses the significance of the development on the environment in relation 

to the impact to ecology from ammonia deposition, landscape and visual impact, odour, 

noise and dust. The information submitted within the Environmental Statement has 

been considered in full in reaching the decision made on this application and, in the 

opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the development is unlikely to have a significant 

effect on the environment subject to adherence of the conditions detailed within this 

decision.  

Warning: An European protected species (EPS) Licence is required for this 

development. This planning permission does not provide consent to undertake works 

that require an EPS licence. It is an offence to deliberately capture, kill or disturb EPS or 

to damage or destroy their breeding sites or resting places. If found guilty of any 

offences, you could be sent to prison for up to 6 months and/or receive an unlimited 

fine. To undertake the works within the law, you can obtain further information on the 

need for a licence from Natural Resources Wales on 0300 065 3000 or at 

https://naturalresources.wales/permits-and-permissions/species-licensing/when-you-

needto-apply-for-a-protected-species-licence/?lang=en.  

Development should not be commenced until the Applicant has been granted a licence 

by Natural Resources Wales pursuant to Regulation 55 of the Conservation of Habitats 

and Species Regulations (2017) authorising the specified activity/development to go 

ahead, [or Natural Resources Wales has informed the applicant in writing that such a 

licence is not required]. Please note that any changes to plans between planning 

consent and the licence application may affect the outcome of a licence application. We 

advise recipients of planning consent who are unsure about the need for a licence to 

submit a licence application to us.  

The site currently operates under an Environmental Permit from NRW referenced 
EPRAB3496HZ. The Applicant must ensure the permit is updated in accordance with 
the proposed plans. 
 

Bats - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). 
It is an offence for any person to: 

 Intentionally kill, injure, or take any bats. 

 Intentionally or recklessly damage, destroy or obstruct access to any place that a 
bat uses for shelter or protection. This is taken to mean all bat roosts whether 
bats are present or not.  

Under the Habitats Regulations it is an offence to: 

Tudalen 69



 

 

 Damage or destroy a breeding site or resting place of any bat. This is an 
absolute offence - in other words, intent or recklessness does not have to be 
proved. 

 
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017 (as amended) that works to trees or buildings where that work 
involves the disturbance of a bat is an offence if a license has not been obtained from 
Natural Resources Wales. If a bat is discovered while work is being undertaken, all work 
must stop, and advice sought from Natural Resources Wales and the Council's 
Ecologist. You can also call the National Bat helpline on 0345 1300 228 or email 
enquiries@bats.org.uk. 
 
Great Crested Newts – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) 
Great Crested Newts are known to be present in the vicinity of the proposed 
development site. The great crested newt is fully protected under schedule 5 of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and Schedule 2 of The Conservation 
of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). 
 
It is therefore an offence to: 

 Deliberately capture, injure or kill a great crested newt. 

 Deliberately disturb a great crested newt in such a way as to be likely to 
significantly affect the local distribution, abundance or the ability of any 
significant group of great crested newts to survive, breed, rear or nurture their 
young. 

 Damage or destroy a great crested newt breeding site or resting place. 

 Intentionally or recklessly disturb a great crested newt; or 

 Intentionally or recklessly obstruct access to a breeding site or resting place. 
 
If a great crested newt is discovered while work is being undertaken, all work must stop, 
and advice sought from Natural Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. This 
advice may include that a European protected species licence is sought. 
 
Reptiles – Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 
All species of reptiles known to occur within Powys, namely the common lizard, slow-
worm, grass snake and adder, are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981 (as amended). 
 
It is therefore an offence to: 

 Intentionally kill or injure these species of reptiles, 

 Trade (live or dead animals) i.e. sale, barter, exchange, transporting for sale 
and advertising to sell or to buy. 

The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of each offence - is a fine of up 
to 5,000 pounds, six months imprisonment or both.  
 

Tudalen 70

mailto:enquiries@bats.org.uk


 

 

In addition, these species of reptiles are also listed in Part 1 Section 7 of the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016 – which is a list of the living organisms of principal 
importance for the purpose of maintaining and enhancing biodiversity in relation to 
Wales. Species of reptiles known to occur in Powys are also listed as Species of 
Conservation Concern on the Powys LBAP. 
 
If reptiles are discovered while work is being undertaken, all work must stop, and advice 
sought from Natural Resources Wales and/or the Council's Ecologist.  
 
Birds - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 
All nesting birds, their nests, eggs and young are protected by law and it is an offence 
to: 

 intentionally kill, injure or take any wild bird  

 intentionally take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird whilst it is in use or 
being built  

 intentionally take or destroy the egg of any wild bird 

 intentionally (or recklessly in England and Wales) disturb any wild bird listed on 
Schedule1 while it is nest building, or at a nest containing eggs or young, or 
disturb the dependent young of such a bird.  

 
The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of a single bird, nest or egg - is 
a fine of up to 5,000 pounds, six months imprisonment or both.  
 
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to remove or work on any hedge, tree or building 
where that work involves the taking, damaging or destruction of any nest of any wild bird 
while the nest is in use or being built (usually between late February and late August or 
late September in the case of swifts, swallows or house martins). If a nest is discovered 
while work is being undertaken, all work must stop, and advice sought from Natural 
Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. 
 
SUDS Approval Body Advice  
The SuDS Approval Body (SAB) deem that the construction area is greater than 100m2 
and therefore this proposed development will require SAB approval prior to any 
construction works commencing onsite. Please contact the SAB Team on 01597 
826000 or via email sab@powys.gov.uk  
 
For further information on the requirements of SAB and where relevant application 
forms/guidance can be accessed, please visit the following website 
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-DrainageApproval-Body-SAB  
 
If for any reason you believe your works are exempt from the requirement for SAB 
approval, I would be grateful if you would inform us so we can update our records 
accordingly.  
 
The requirement for to obtain SAB consent sits outside of the planning process but is 

Tudalen 71

mailto:sab@powys.gov.uk


 

 

enforceable in a similar manner to planning law. It is a requirement to obtain SAB 
consent in addition to planning consent. Failure to engage with compliant SuDS design 
at an early stage may lead to significant un-necessary redesign costs. 
 
 

Dwr Cymru advisory notes  
The applicant is also advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be 

recorded on our maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned 

and were transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes 

for Adoption of Private Sewers) Regulations 2011. The presence of such assets may 

affect the proposal.  In order to assist us in dealing with the proposal the applicant may 

contact Dwr Cymru Welsh Water. Under the Water Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh 

Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times. 

 
 

 
__________________________________________________ 
Case Officer: Louise Evans, Planning Officer 
Tel: 01938 551127 E-mail: louise.evans1@powys.gov.uk     

 

Tudalen 72



T
udalen 73



M
ae'r dudalen hon w

edi'i gadael yn w
ag yn fw

riadol



 

 

Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 
 

Application 
Number: 

20/1338/RES 
 

Grid Ref: E: 320251 

N: 290934 

Community 
Council: 

 Kerry Community Valid Date: 21.08.2020 

 
Applicant: Powys County Council 
 
Location: Land Adjacent Shop Lane, Sarn, Newtown, Powys, SY16 4DQ  

 
Proposal: Reserved matters application for details of 45 dwellings (appearance, scale, layout, 
access and landscaping) and all associated works in connection with outline approval 
P/2016/0722 
 
Application Type: Reserved Matters 
 
The reason for Committee determination 
 
Major application in which Powys County Council is the applicant 
 
Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee Received 

 
Hafren Dyfrdwy  

No comments received at the time of writing this report. 

PCC-(N) Highways 31st Jan 2022 

The County Council as Highway Authority for the County Class III Highway, C2136 

Wish the following recommendations/Observations be applied 

Recommendations/Observations 

The Highway Authority (HA) has reviewed the most recently revised drawings/detail and 

wish to make the following comments. 

We understand that due to SAB and amenity requirements, the carriageway of Road 2 

and the internal footways have been reduced in width to accommodate the required 

highway infrastructure. Whilst this is the case, we have worked with the applicant to 

ensure that the infrastructure complies with Manual for Streets, the Active Travel Act 

Tudalen 75

4.3



 

 

Guidance and the Common Standards Guide. 

Subject to the following conditions being attached to any consent given, the HA would not 

object. 

Notwithstanding the submitted details on drawing numbers OV-PL-300 Rev B, OV-LS-

301 Rev B, OV-VB-302 Rev D, OV-RT-303 Rev D, OV-GA-305 Rev C, OV-RC-306 Rev 

A, the Highway Authority wish the following conditions to be applied to any consent given. 

1. No development shall commence until provision is made within the curtilage of the 

site for the parking of all construction vehicles together with a vehicle turning area.  The 

parking and turning area shall be constructed to a depth of 0.4 metres in crusher run or 

sub-base and maintained free from obstruction at all times such that all vehicles serving 

the site shall park within the site and both enter and leave the site in a forward gear for 

the duration of the construction of the development. 

2. No other development shall commence until the access has been constructed so 

that there is clear visibility from a point 1.05 metres above ground level at the centre of 

the access and 2.4 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining carriageway, to points 

0.6 metres above ground level at the edge of the adjoining carriageway and 43 metres 

distant in each direction measured from the centre of the access along the edge of the 

adjoining carriageway.  Nothing shall be planted, erected or allowed to grow on the 

area(s) of land so formed that would obstruct the visibility and the visibility shall be 

maintained free from obstruction for as long as the development hereby permitted 

remains in existence. 

3. Upon formation of the visibility splays as detailed above the centreline of any new 

or relocated hedge should be positioned not less than 1.0 metre to the rear of the visibility 

splay and retained in this position as long as the development remains in existence. 

4. Upon the construction of the access as Condition 2 above the existing means of 

access onto the C2136 shown on Drawing Number OV-RT-303 Rev D (northwestern 

roadside frontage onto the C2136) shall be stopped up, in materials to be agreed in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority and this shall be retained for as long as the 

development is in existence. 

5. Notwithstanding the submitted details, within 10 days from the commencement of 

the development detailed highway engineering drawings covering the highway works 

within the site, including the provision of a 20mph Zone, traffic calming measures and 

appropriate signing, shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 

of construction. 

Tudalen 76



 

 

6. Prior to first occupation of any dwelling on the site, a 20mph Zone shall be 

implemented that covers the internal estate road. 

7. Before any other development is commenced the area of the access to be used by 

vehicles is to be constructed to a minimum of 410mm depth, comprising a minimum of 

250mm of sub-base material, 100mm of bituminous macadam base course material and 

60mm of bituminous macadam binder course material for a distance of 10 metres from 

the edge of the adjoining carriageway. Any use of alternative materials is to be agreed in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the access being constructed. 

8. Prior to the occupation of each of the dwellings hereby approved, provision shall 

be made within the corresponding plot for the parking of vehicles as detailed on the 

approved site plan OV-RT-303 Rev D. The parking areas shall be retained for their 

designated use for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

9. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby approved the area of the access 

to be used by vehicles is to be finished in a 40mm bituminous surface course material for 

a distance of 10 metres from the edge of the adjoining carriageway. This area will be 

maintained to this standard for as long as the development remains in existence. 

10. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling, the footway works shown on Drawing 

Number OV-VB-302 Rev D along the A489, shall be fully completed to the written 

satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and shall be retained for their designated use 

for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

11. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied before the estate road carriageway 

and footways are constructed to binder course level to an adoptable standard including 

the provision of any salt bins, surface water drainage and street lighting in front of that 

dwelling and to the junction with the existing county highway. 

12. The estate road carriageway and all footways shall be fully completed, in 

accordance with the details to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, upon 

the issuing of the Building Regulations Completion Certificate for the last house or within 

two years from the commencement of the development, whichever is the sooner. The 

agreed standard of completion shall be maintained for as long as the development 

remains in existence. 

13. Any vehicular entrance gates installed within the application site shall be 

constructed so as to be incapable of opening towards the highway and shall be retained 

in this position and form of construction for as long as the dwelling/development hereby 

permitted remains in existence. 

14. The gradient from the back of the footway/verge to the vehicle parking areas shall 

Tudalen 77



 

 

be constructed so as not to exceed 1 in 20 and shall be retained at this gradient for as 

long as the dwellings remain in existence. 

15. The gradient of the access shall be constructed so as not to exceed 1 in 30 for the 

first 10 metres measured from edge of the adjoining carriageway along the centre line of 

the access and shall be retained at this gradient for as long as the development remains 

in existence. 

16. No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 

county highway. 

17. The garages to be provided shall be kept available for the parking of motor 

vehicles at all times. 

Advisory Notes 

The developer shall pay the reasonable costs incurred by Powys County Council for the 

procurement and implementation of the requisite Traffic Regulation Order, in addition to 

the manufacture and erection of all associated  signage. Further information relating to 

Traffic Regulation Orders can be found in Section E of the CSS Wales Common 

Standards Guide 2020. 

All off-site highway works shall be subject to an agreement (supported by a road bond) 

under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980. The design and detail required as part of a 

Section 278 Agreement shall be prepared by the applicant and approved by Powys 

County Council. Implementation of the  approved scheme shall be at the expense of the 

developer. Further information relating to Section 278 requirements can be found in 

Section E of the CSS Wales Common Standards Guide 2020. 

Where development results in (or retains the potential to) the creation of a private street 

(typically development in excess of 5 dwellings) Powys County Council has a statutory 

duty to issue and enforce an Advance Payment Code Notice (APC) under the provisions 

of Sections 219/220 of the Highways act 1980. The Notice requires the applicant to 

secure a sum or bond with the local highway authority that covers the estimated costs of 

the identified street works. Applicants/developers may choose to discharge their private 

street works obligations by entering into a formal road adoption agreement with the local 

highway authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980. Further information 

relating to the APC procedure and Section 38 road adoption agreements can be found in 

Section E of the CSS Wales Common Standards Guide 2020. 

NOTE: THE ATTENTION OF THE APPLICANT MUST BE DRAWN TO RELATED 

HIGHWAYS LEGISLATION WHICH MAKES PROVISION FOR THE FOLLOWING; 

1. Under Section 50 of the New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 it is a requirement 

Tudalen 78



 

 

that a Streetworks licence is obtained from the Highway Authority to place, or to retain, 

apparatus in the highway and thereafter to inspect, maintain, adjust, repair, alter or renew 

the apparatus, change its position or remove it.   

2. The need to inform and obtain the consent of Statuary Undertakers (Electricity, 

Water, Gas, BT), Land Drainage Authority, etc. to the works. 

3. The New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 requires that all works, be properly 

notified and approved prior to commencement.   

Further advice on the above highway matters can be obtained from:- 

http://www.powys.gov.uk/en/roads-transport-parking/  

street.works@powys.gov.uk  

Street Works 

Powys County Hall 

Spa Road East 

Llandrindod Wells 

Powys 

LD1 5LG 

0845 6027035 

 

Environmental Protection 3rd Sep 2020 

Environmental Protection has no objection to the application. 

PCC-Countryside Services Manager  

No comments received at the time of writing this report. 

PCC-Affordable Housing Officer  

No comments received at the time of writing this report. 

PCC-Ecologist 15th Jul 2021 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on planning application 20/1338/RES which 

concerns a reserved matters application for details of 45 dwellings (appearance, scale, 

Tudalen 79



 

 

layout, access and landscaping) and all associated works in connection with outline 

approval P/2016/0722 at Land Adjacent Shop Lane, Sarn, Newtown, Powys, SY16 4DQ 

Conditions 9 and 10 of approval P/2016/0722 remain valid. 

Condition 9 requires that:  

The recommendations (page 28 &29 of the extended phase 1 habitat survey report) 

regarding Bats, Hedgerows, and trees (paragraphs 11.1, 11.2 and 11.3) Birds (11.5), 

lights (11.4), Pollution prevention plan and buffer zone around watercourse (11.6) and 

Ecological enhancement (11.7) of the Ecological Report by Rachel Price dated June 2016 

shall be adhered to and implemented in full. 

Condition 10 requires that: 

Prior to commencement of development, a detailed Ecological Enhancement Plan, 

Lighting Plan, Pollution Prevention Plan and Tree and Hedgerow Protection Plan shall be 

submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority all of which shall include 

details of the timing for implementation. The plans must be implemented in accordance 

with the agreed details. 

The submitted Planning Statement mentions that information has been submitted to 

enable discharge of the pre-commencement planning conditions and that ecology matters 

have been addressed (condition 9). No information has been submitted in relation to 

condition 10. Having reviewed the Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey submitted for 

P/2016/0722 it is considered that the information required to be submitted to satisfy 

condition 10 must be provided; this demonstrates compliance with parts of condition 9. 

Please note that the tree protection measures on the submitted Proposed Site Plan are 

not sufficiently detailed. The Tree and Hedgerow Protection Plan must have sufficient 

detail and demonstrate compliance with BS 5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, 

demolition and construction – Recommendations.  The External Lighting Design Scheme 

must demonstrate compliance with the recommendations outlined in the BCT and ILP 

Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial Lighting (12th September 2018). Full details can be 

found at https://theilp.org.uk/publication/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/. It is 

recommended that preparation of the Pollution Prevention Plan refers to relevant 

guidance including GPP 1: A general guide to preventing pollution and GPP5 Works and 

maintenance in or near water, which can be found at: 

https://www.netregs.org.uk/environmental-topics/pollution-prevention-guidelines-ppgs-

and-replacement-series/. (The series supersedes that referred to in the ecology report). 

The applicant should also be aware that para. 11.1 (birds) refers to use of netting to 

exclude nesting birds from any hedgerow to be removed. Best practice guidance has 

been updated and this is no longer considered appropriate. It is noted that all existing 

hedgerows are to be retained within the development, which is welcome. Regarding 

Tudalen 80



 

 

biodiversity enhancements, para. 11.7 of the ecology report suggests potentially suitable 

measures. The Proposed Site Plan indicates a ‘surface water ecological swale’ as part of 

a proposed SuDS design. SuDS provides excellent opportunities to incorporate 

biodiversity enhancement, through native species planting for instance, and is a statutory 

consideration as part of the SAB approval process. However, sufficient information must 

be provided to the LPA and features of wildlife enhancement measures proposed as part 

of the development should be clearly identified and detailed on submitted plans (i.e. 

locations, dimensions, numbers, species, etc. included) and be achievable. 

Further information is required to enable discharge of condition 10. Alternatively, the 

condition should be retained and be subject to a separate application prior to 

commencement of development. 

I have reviewed the submitted Proposed Site Plan, which identifies the location of the 

existing boundary hedgerows and three mature trees to be retained within the 

development. A number of trees and landscaped areas are indicated, plus a new native 

species hedgerow along Shop Lane. No further details are provided. It is recommended 

that details of any landscaping proposed are submitted in a detailed Landscape Planting 

Scheme to include proposed species mixes, planting and aftercare schedules.  

It is, therefore, recommended that submission of a Landscaping Plan is secured through 

an appropriately worded planning condition. Provision of sufficient details prior to 

determination of the application would remove the need for a pre-commencement 

condition. 

The Site Plan also identifies that each plot boundary will comprise a 1.8m high feather 

edge timber fence. Poorly designed and installed boundary features are considered 

highly detrimental to hedgehog populations because they hinder commuting, foraging and 

dispersal. Hedgehog is included on the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, s7 list of species 

of priority conservation importance within Wales. Therefore, in accordance with Powys 

LDP Policy DM2, all permanent fencing installed as part of a development is required to 

include gaps of sufficient size and number at ground level to enable hedgehogs to move 

through sites. 

Access points comprising gaps of 130mm x 130mm (5” x 5”) should be created within the 

fence line at ground level with at least one gap along each aspect of every fenced 

boundary. If gravel boards are to be used, hedgehog friendly designs are available and 

should be used.  

It is, therefore, recommended that provision of hedgehog friendly fencing within the 

proposed development scheme is secured through an appropriately worded planning 

condition. Provision of sufficient details prior to determination of the application would 

Tudalen 81



 

 

remove the need for a pre-commencement condition. 

Therefore, should you be minded to approve the application without submission of further 

information I recommend inclusion of the following further conditions: 

Notwithstanding the details submitted, prior to commencement of development, a detailed 

landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. The submitted landscaping scheme shall include a scaled drawing and a 

written specification clearly describing the species, sizes, densities and planting numbers 

proposed as well as aftercare measures. Drawings must include accurate details of any 

existing trees and hedgerows to be retained with their location, species, size and position. 

The approved scheme shall be implemented in full and maintained thereafter. 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP Policies DM2 in relation to The 

Natural Environment and DM4 in relation to Landscape, and to meet the requirements of 

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and 

Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 

Access points to facilitate movement of hedgehog and small mammals shall be 

incorporated into all fencing forming any part of the site boundary or boundary between 

individual plots. A minimum of one access point comprising gaps of 130mm x 130mm (5” 

x 5”) shall be installed along each fenced aspect of the boundary. If gravel boards are to 

be used, hedgehog friendly designs shall be used. The access points shall be maintained 

thereafter. 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP Policies DM2 in relation to The 

Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, 

February 2021), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

PCC-(N) Land Drainage 14th Oct 2020 

All: Having assessed the Planning Application Ref 20/1338/RES, the SuDS Approval 

Body (SAB) deem that the construction area is greater than 100m2 and therefore this 

proposed development will require SAB approval prior to any construction works 

commencing onsite.  

Please contact the SAB Team on 01597 826000 or via email sab@powys.gov.uk  

For further information on the requirements of SAB and where relevant application 

forms/guidance can be accessed, please visit the following website 

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB 

If for any reason you believe your works are exempt from the requirement for SAB 

Tudalen 82



 

 

approval, we would be grateful if you would inform us so we can update our records 

accordingly. 

The requirement to obtain SAB consent sits outside of the planning process but is 

enforceable in a similar manner to planning law. It is a requirement to obtain SAB consent 

in addition to planning consent. Failure to engage with compliant SuDS design at an early 

stage may lead to significant un-necessary redesign costs. 

PCC-Schools Service  

No comments received at the time of writing this report. 

Community Council 30th Sep 2020 

Council has no objections to this application but wishes to highlight the following: 

Comment: There remain some community concerns with regard to the size of the 

development and the potential affect that it may have on the village, as Sarn is a very 

small community. However as outline approval has already been granted we 

acknowledge that the design appears to be sympathetic to surrounding properties and 

has preserved the oak trees, which had been requested previously. 

Flood concerns:  

1. We have all witnessed flooding at the proposed site, in fact in some years it has been 

quite extensive - to that end the Sarn councillors would like it noted that we have ongoing 

concerns related to potential future flooding given the uncertainty surrounding climate 

change.  

2. The proposed site (pre-development) currently provides some flood attenuation to the 

surrounding area - what measures are in place to ensure that the development does not 

have an adverse effect on existing properties/ infrastructure adjacent to the site? 

3. The indicative flood attenuation measures on the plan - what are they designed to 

achieve? 

4. Essentially, we would like to be assured that the flood mitigation plans for the site are 

designed to ensure that neither the site nor the adjacent areas will be affected by future 

flooding post construction. 

Scope of development in Sarn Village: 

On the basis that the above application is approved and proceeds as planned this will 

increase the number of homes in Sarn Village by over 50 (including the new agricultural 

cottages), this is a significant increase for the size of the village. As Sarn is classed as a 

Tudalen 83



 

 

small village with regard to PCC Land Development may we formally request that, 

subsequent to the approval of this application, no further developments are considered in 

Sarn for 10 years post construction of these 45 properties. 

Sarn Village does not have the infrastructure to support increased expansion and the 

character of the village will be adversely altered if more development is approved. 

PCC-Building Control  

No comments received at the time of writing this report. 

Representations 
 
Following the display of a site notice on 13/01/2022 and publication in the County Times 
on 18/09/2021, one public representation has been received at the time of writing this 
report. A summation of the points raised are detailed below: 
 

 Has sewerage been considered? Problems along Min y Sarn 
 
Planning History 
 

App Ref Description Decision Date 
 
P/2016/0722 Outline application for residential 

development and associated 
infrastructure with all matters 
reserved 

Consent 13th Sep 2017 

 

Principal Planning Constraints 
 

 

 
Principal Planning Policies 
 

Policy Policy Description Year Local Plan 
 
PPW Planning Policy Wales 

(Edition 11, February 
2021) 

 National Policy 

 
NATPLA Future Wales - The 

National Plan 2040 
 National Policy 

 
TAN2 Planning and Affordable 

Housing 
 National Policy 

 
TAN5 Nature Conservation and 

Planning 
 National Policy 

Right of Way  

Tudalen 84



 

 

 
TAN12 
 
TAN 15 

Design 
 
Development and Flood 
Risk 

 National Policy 
 
National Policy 

 
TAN18 Transport  National Policy 
 
TAN23 Economic Development  National Policy 
 
TAN24 The Historic Environment  National Policy 
 
SP1 Housing Growth  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP3 Affordable Housing Target  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP5 Settlement Hierarchy  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP6 Distribution of Growth 

across the Settlement 
Hierarchy 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
SP7 Safeguarding of Strategic 

Resources and Assets 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM1 Planning Obligations  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM3 Public Open Space  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM4 Landscape  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM5 Development and Flood 

Risk 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM6 Flood Prevention 

Measures and Land 
Drainage 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

Tudalen 85



 

 

 
DM7 Dark Skies and External 

Lighting 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM8 Minerals Safeguarding  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM13 
 
 
DM15 

Design and Resources 
 
 
Waste Within 
Developments 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 
 
Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
T1 Travel, Traffic and 

Transport Infrastructure 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H1 Housing Development 

Proposals 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H2 Housing Sites  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H3 Housing Delivery  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H4 Housing Density  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H5 Affordable Housing 

Contributions 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H7 Householder Development  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGAH Affordable Housing SPG 

(2018) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGBIO Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity SPG (2018) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGLAN Landscape SPG  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGOBS Planning Obligations SPG 

(2018) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 

Tudalen 86



 

 

SPGRES Residential Design  Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
Other Legislative Considerations 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
Equality Act 2010  
 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 

Officer Appraisal 
 

Site Location and Description 
 
The application site is located within the Community Council area of Kerry and adjacent 
to Sarn which is defined as a small village by the Powys Local Development Plan 
(2018). The application site is a single agricultural field incorporating three mature oak 
trees with existing residential development lying to the north, east and west. 
 
Outline consent was granted consent by Planning Committee for the residential 
development and associated infrastructure with all matters reserved under planning 
reference P/2016/0772. The number of dwellings secured was 45 units with a 20% 
affordable housing contribution with open space to be provided within the development 
site.  
 
Consent is sought for the approval of the reserved matters under planning permission 
P/2016/0722, namely access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale in relation to 
the residential development of 45 units. 
 
The proposed development includes the following housing types: 
 

- 4 x 3 bed bungalows (Oak Bungalow) 
o Plot 1 – 79.4sqm 
o Plot 7 – 80.3sqm 
o Plot 43 – 79sqm 
o Plot 45 – 80.3sqm 

- 4 x 3 bed dwelling (Elm) 
o Plots 2, 5, 33 & 42 – 81.2sqm 

- 4 x 2 bed bungalow (Hawthorn Bungalow) 
o Plots 3 & 28 – 69.8sqm 

- 3 x 3 bed dwelling (Larch) 
o Plots 4, 31 & 35 – 88.6sqm 

Tudalen 87



 

 

- 6 x 3 bed dwelling (Willow) 
o Plots 6, 23, 34, 38, 41 & 44 – 76.5sqm 

- 10 x 2 bed dwelling (Alder – Semi-detached) 
o Plots 8-11, 18, 19, 24-27 – 60.8sqm 

- 9 x 2 bed dwelling (Alder – Terrace) 
o Plots 12-17 & 20-22 – 60.8sqm 

- 5 x 4 bed dwelling (Maple) 
o Plots 29, 30, 36, 37 & 40 – 124.7sqm 

 
Principle of Development 
 
By way of background to the application site, consent was previously sought and 
granted under planning consent P/2016/0722 in outline for the erection of up to 45 on 
Land Adjacent Shop Lane, Sarn, Newtown, Powys. It is therefore considered that the 
principle of development has been appropriately considered under this previous outline 
consent for 45 dwellings. All that is now outstanding is the reserved matters which will 
be addressed as follows: 
 
Density 
 
Policy H4 of the Local Development Plan seeks to ensure that all housing development 
proposals should seek to make the most sustainable and efficient use of land. The 
density for any proposed housing development should be in accordance with the guide 
ranges as indicated within the policy. Densities may be varied where justified by 
evidence of local circumstances or constraints. 
 
Sarn is identified as being a Small Village under the Local Development Plan therefore 
in line with policy H4 a density of 20-25 units per hectare is anticipated. The site area in 
question measures approximately 1.92ha. In line with policy H4 a requirement of 
between 38-48 units is required. It is therefore considered that a density of 45 dwelling 
for the site as proposed and secured at outline (condition 14) is appropriate for the site 
and in accordance with relevant planning policy.  
 
Access 
 
Policy DM13 part 10 states that development proposals should meet all highway access 
requirements and parking standards. A safe access and parking are a fundamental 
requirement of any development of any development. Consent has been sought for the 
provision of a new vehicular access off the C2053 (Shop Lane).  
 
The Authority’s Highways Officer has been consulted to consider access and has had 
previous discussions with the agent and has reviewed additional information on the 
matter. The Highways Officer, having considered the latest set of information, notes that 
due to SAB and amenity requirements, the carriageway of Road 2 and the internal 
footways have been reduced in width to accommodate the required highway 
infrastructure. Whilst this is the case, Highways have worked with the applicant to 

Tudalen 88



 

 

ensure that the infrastructure complies with Manual for Streets, the Active Travel Act 
Guidance and the Common Standards Guide. 
 
Based on the latest set of information, the Highways Authority have raised no objection 
to the proposed development, subject to conditions in respect of access, visibility, 
highway works, parking, footway, drainage and the retention of garages for parking of 
vehicles be attached to any granting of planning permission.  Officers consider the 
proposed conditions to be appropriate and reasonable and will therefore be attached to 
any granting of planning permission.  
 
In light of the above and subject to the proposed conditions, it is therefore considered 
that the proposed development fundamentally complies with relevant planning policy. 
 
Appearance & Layout 
 
The Powys Local Development Plan’s (2018) policies H3 and DM13, TAN 12 and 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) all refer to good design and how development proposals 
should be of a good design and have consideration to the surrounding area. PPW refers 
to good design as having a relationship between all elements of the natural and built 
environment. Policy H3 states that housing development proposals must be of an 
appropriate scale and is supported by Policy DM13 of the Powys Local Development 
Plan which states that proposals must demonstrate a good quality design and shall 
have regard to the qualities and amenity of the surrounding area. 
 
Policy DM13 specifically states that proposals will only be permitted where development 
has been designed to complement and/or enhance the character of the surrounding 
area in terms of siting, appearance, integration, scale, height, massing and design 
detailing. The development must also contribute towards the preservation of local 
distinctiveness and sense of place. 
 
Consent is sought for a mixture of dwellings featuring semi-detached, detached, 
terraces and bungalows. The range of housing types across the site is welcomed and 
will provide a benefit visually as the range of design will help break up the uniformity of 
a housing development site. The varying mix of dwellings design is welcomed and 
compliant with LDP policy H3 of the Powys.  
 
The proposed residential development provides a range of housing types with existing 
two storey residential development directly to the north of the site which the proposed 
development will complement.  
 
Given the range of housing types provided, a range of materials have also been 
proposed to enhance the character of the development and provide a visual break 
between property types. The materials proposed include:  
 

- White UPVC casement windows,  
- Brickwork Hanson Cadeby Red Multi 

Tudalen 89



 

 

- Roof Tiles Marley Modern Smooth Grey 
- Orange ridge tile 
- White painted aluminium/upvc French doors 
- Black upvc rainwater goods 
- Timber stable effect entrance door in black 
- Fascia and soffits in black 
- Grey Colour Casement upvc windows 
- Garage doors in black 
- Cream colour render 

 
The materials proposed are typical of a range of materials evident across Sarn and 
would be considered to reflect the character of the local area and therefore appropriate 
for the proposed development.  
 
The indicative site layout details a main access with cul-de-sacs, consistent with other 
residential developments in the surrounding area. The dwellings have been 
appropriately orientated on site to provide natural overlooking to communal areas. The 
proposed development is considered to be a well thought out design making best use of 
the land available for the intended purpose and constraints. Areas for play and have 
been suitably located for easy access with other informal areas of green space present 
across the site which help provide a visually interesting development.  
 
In light of the above it is considered that the proposed development complies with 
relevant planning policy. 
 
Scale 
 
Policy H3 of the LDP states that housing development proposals must be of an 
appropriate scale and shall provide a suitable mix of housing types to meet the range of 
identified local housing needs.  
 
The proposed development will consist of a mixture of 1-, 2-, 3- and 4-bedroom 
properties. It is considered that the scale of dwellings proposed meet a range of housing 
needs and will help provide affordable dwellings within Sarn and the surrounding area. 
Given the scale of the dwellings proposed, officers consider that the scheme put 
forward is therefore capable of securing the 20% contribution of affordable dwellings as 
the majority of the dwellings meet the size requirements as stated within the Affordable 
Housing SPG. 
 
It is therefore considered that the scale and housing types proposed fundamentally 
comply with relevant planning policy. 
 
Landscaping 
 
An indicative landscaping scheme has been submitted in support of this application 
which shows the retention of the three mature oak trees on site along with additional 

Tudalen 90



 

 

tree and shrub planting and boundary hedgerows. The landscaping plan also provides a 
planting schedule, maintenance and aftercare measures which are considered 
appropriate in order to ensure the landscaping measures have opportunity to integrate 
with the site. 
 
Officers note that condition 10 of the outline planning permission, P/2016/0722, 
amongst other things secured that a Hedgerow Protection Plan be submitted. The 
discharge of this condition is still required, however the retention of existing hedgerow 
along with provision of additional tree and shrub planting across the site is considered 
appropriate landscaping measures given the nature of development proposed. It is 
considered that the proposed development can be appropriately landscaped ensuring 
that the proposed dwellings are well incorporated into the surrounding area.  
 
Amenities enjoyed by occupiers of neighbouring properties 
 
In considering the amenities enjoyed by occupiers of neighbouring properties 
consideration has been given to the Powys Residential Design SPG & LDP: DM13 (Part 
11). 
 
Having considered the proposed layout of the residential development and the 
proposed landscaping plan it is not considered the proposed residential development 
would adversely impact any neighbouring amenities in terms of loss of light and loss of 
privacy or overlooking. It is not considered that the proposed development will have a 
detrimental impact on the amenities of any neighbouring properties given the distances 
between and the existing and proposed landscaping measures.  
 
The layout of the scheme has been well designed to ensure that there are no blank 
frontages with natural overlooking of amenity areas by the positioning of dwellings to 
maintain safety and security. The formal play area is sufficiently distanced from the 
proposed dwellings to reduce any potential impact on amenity.  
 
It is noted that a number of conditions were attached to the outline planning consent 
P/2016/0722 in respect of amenity which are still considered relevant and will require to 
be separately discharged. The conditions relate to working hours and noise and dust 
control.  
 
In light of the above it is therefore considered that the proposed development 
fundamentally complies with relevant planning policy. 
 
Public Open Space 
 
Policy DM3 of the Local Development Plan seeks to ensure that provision for new Open 
Space will, subject to viability, be sought from all housing developments of 10 or more 
dwellings.  
 
The type and nature of the provision will be determined by the deficiencies identified in 

Tudalen 91



 

 

the Open Space Assessment for the locality and, depending on the individual 
circumstances, may be provided on or off site. 
 
A condition was attached to outline consent P/2016/0722 which stated that: 
 
Upon the submission of the reserved matters referred to in conditions 1 and 2, a 
scheme for the provision of on-site recreational facilities shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall accord with the 
Fields in Trust Standards and shall also involve arrangements for the long term 
management of the area together with the timing of construction and completion in 
relation to the housing units hereby permitted. The scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the agreed details. 
 
The provision of recreational facilities is proposed within an area of landscaped public 
open space located on the north-eastern side of the development site.  
 
The scheme of on-site recreational facilities proposed accords with the Fields in Trust 
Standards for housing developments of 10 – 200 dwellings, comprising: 
 
• A Local Equipped Area for Play (LEAP) – a 20m x 20m area of open space specifically 
designated to be provided with features including equipment for children who are 
beginning to go out and play independently close to where they live.  
 
The LEAP is located within a large (0.23ha.) area of public open space that will provide 
significant recreational opportunities.  
 
The recreational facility shall be managed by a Management Company appointed to 
manage and maintain the facilities, securing the recreational facilities in perpetuity. 
Officers note that no information has been submitted which details when the 
management company will be set up or the timing of the construction of the LEAP area 
and the timeframe of completion in relation to the housing works. Officers therefore 
consider that this condition has not been satisfied in accordance with the submitted 
information and a further condition will therefore be attached to any granting of reserved 
matters planning permission to secure this information prior to development 
commencing on site.  
 
In light of the above and subject to a condition securing the above it is therefore 
considered that the proposed development fundamentally complies with relevant 
planning policy. 
 
Biodiversity 
 
Policy DM2 of the Powys Local Development Plan, TAN5 and PPW seek to safeguard 
protected species and their habitats. Policy DM2 states that proposed development 
should not unacceptably adversely affect any habitat or protected species.  
 

Tudalen 92



 

 

It is noted that ecological matters were previously considered at the outline stage of the 
development. The Ecologist has been consulted on this application and noted that 
conditions 9 and 10 of outline approval P/2016/0722 remain valid. 
 
The submitted Planning Statement mentions that information has been submitted to 
enable discharge of the pre-commencement planning conditions 9 and 10. The 
Ecologist has been consulted on the information submitted, and notes that no 
information has been submitted in relation to condition 10 and having reviewed the 
Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey submitted at outline, it is considered that the 
information required to be submitted to satisfy condition 10 is still required as this 
demonstrates compliance with parts of condition 9.  
 
The tree protection measures provided are not sufficiently detailed and must 
demonstrate compliance with BS: 5837:2012 in relation to design, demolition and 
construction. 
 
The external lighting design scheme must demonstrate compliance with the 
recommendations outline in the BCT and ILP Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial 
Lighting (12th September 2018). 
 
The preparation of a Pollution Prevention Plan should refer to the relevant guidance 
including GPP1 and GPP5. 
 
The submitted information also makes reference to the use of netting to exclude nesting 
birds from any hedgerow to be removed. Best practice guidance on this matter has 
been updated and this is no longer considered appropriate. 
 
Biodiversity enhancement measures have been put forwarded which are considered 
suitable, however it is noted that the ‘surface water ecological swale’ is proposed as 
part of the SuDs design. However, sufficient information must be provided to the LPA 
and features of wildlife enhancement measures proposed as part of the development 
should be clearly identified and detailed on submitted plans (i.e. locations, dimensions, 
numbers, species, etc. included) and be achievable. 
 
Given that insufficient information has been submitted in order to discharge condition 10 
of the outline planning permission this condition will remain valid and will require 
discharge by a separate application.  
 
The Ecologist, having reviewed the landscaping measures noted that a number of trees 
and landscaped areas are proposed along with a new native species hedgerow along 
Shop Lane, but no further information was provided. Officers note that a revised 
Landscaping Scheme has been provided which clearly demonstrates the species mix, 
planting and aftercare measures required which is now considered appropriate and will 
therefore be conditioned with any granting of planning permission. 
 
The site plan also indicates that each plot will comprise a 1.8m high feather edge timber 

Tudalen 93



 

 

fence. Poorly designed and installed boundary features are considered highly 
detrimental to hedgehog populations because they hinder commuting, foraging and 
dispersal. Hedgehog is included on the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, s7 list of species 
of priority conservation importance within Wales. Therefore, in accordance with Powys 
LDP Policy DM2, all permanent fencing installed as part of a development is required to 
include gaps of sufficient size and number at ground level to enable hedgehogs to move 
through sites. The Ecologist has therefore recommended that provision of hedgehog 
friendly fencing within the proposed development scheme is secured through an 
appropriately worded planning condition. 
 
In light of the above and subject to a condition securing the above it is therefore 
considered that the proposed development fundamentally complies with relevant 
planning policy. 
 
Countryside Services 
 
The application site is crossed by one public right of way which leads through the 
northern side of the site. Countryside Services have been consulted on the proposed 
development however no comments have been received at the time of writing this 
report. Officers note the proposed layout plan has made provision for re-routing the right 
of way through the site. The re-routing of a right of way is dealt with by separate 
legislation outside of the planning process. Officers will therefore include the Right of 
Way informative with any granting of planning permission which details the legal 
requirements in respect of Rights of Way. 
 
In light of the above it is therefore considered that the proposed development 
fundamentally complies with relevant planning policy. 
 
Drainage and Surface Water 
 
The application site proposes to dispose of foul flows by mains sewer with a condition in 
respect of this having been included with the outline planning consent. This condition 
requires formal discharge which will be dealt with by a separate application.  
 
The application site is in excess of 100sqm meters and therefore SUDs approval by the 
SAB will be required, which has been introduced since the outline planning consent was 
granted. Officers note that the site is also subject to surface water flooding with 
conditions attached at the outline planning consent in respect of surface water which will 
also be required to be discharged by a separate application. There are also assets 
belonging to PCC in respect of surface water which cross the site with the safeguarding 
of these to be controlled by the conditions attached to the outline planning consent.   
 
Conclusion 
 
Officers are satisfied that the proposed development complies with the relevant policies 
within the Powys County Council Local Development Plan and the recommendation is 

Tudalen 94



 

 

one of approval in line with the conditions as set out below. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve 
 
Conditions 
 

1. The development hereby granted approval of reserved matters shall be begun 
before the expiration of two years from the date of this approval, or before the 
expiration of five years from the date of the outline planning permission whichever 
is the longer. 
 

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans and documents: 
 

- PL05 Sarn Powys Proposed Layout Rev D 
- PL10 Hawthorn type 1 rev A 
- PL11 Hawthorn type 1 Handed rev A 
- PL12 Hawthorn type 2 rev A 
- PL13 Hawthorn type 3 rev A 
- PL20 Oak type 1 rev A 
- PL21 Oak type 2 rev A 
- PL22 Oak type 2 Handed rev A 
- PL23 Oak type 3 rev A 
- PL30 Alder Semi-Detached rev A 
- PL31 Alder Terrace rev A 
- PL32 Alder Terrace Handed rev A 
- PL40 Willow type 1 rev A 
- PL41 Willow type 1 Handed rev A 
- PL42 Willow type 2 rev A 
- PL43 Willow type 3 rev A 
- PL50 Maple type 1 rev A 
- PL51 Maple type 1 Handed rev A 
- PL52 Maple type 2 rev A 
- PL60 Elm type 1 rev A 
- PL61 Elm type 1 Handed rev A 
- PL70 Single Garage rev A 
- PL80 Larch type 1 rev A 
- PL81 Larch type 1 - Handed rev A 
- OV-PL-300 Rev B – Proposed Levels & Kerbing 
- OV-LS-301 Rev B – Longitudinal Section 
- OV-VB-302 Rev D – Visibility and Bus Shelter 
- OV-RT-303 Rev D – Refuse Tracking Plan 
- OV-GA-304 Rev B – General Arrangement Plan 
- OV-GA-305 Rev C – General Arrangements Plan 
- Planning Statement August 2020 

Tudalen 95



 

 

- Sarn, Powys Proposed LEAP Play Area 
- Application Form 

 
3. No development shall commence until provision is made within the curtilage of the 

site for the parking of all construction vehicles together with a vehicle turning area.  
The parking and turning area shall be constructed to a depth of 0.4 metres in 
crusher run or sub-base and maintained free from obstruction at all times such that 
all vehicles serving the site shall park within the site and both enter and leave the 
site in a forward gear for the duration of the construction of the development. 

 
4. No other development shall commence until the access has been constructed so 

that there is clear visibility from a point 1.05 metres above ground level at the 
centre of the access and 2.4 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining 
carriageway, to points 0.6 metres above ground level at the edge of the adjoining 
carriageway and 43 metres distant in each direction measured from the centre of 
the access along the edge of the adjoining carriageway.  Nothing shall be planted, 
erected or allowed to grow on the area(s) of land so formed that would obstruct the 
visibility and the visibility shall be maintained free from obstruction for as long as 
the development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

 
5. Upon formation of the visibility splays as detailed above the centreline of any new 

or relocated hedge should be positioned not less than 1.0 metre to the rear of the 
visibility splay and retained in this position as long as the development remains in 
existence. 

 
6. Upon the construction of the access as Condition 4 above the existing means of 

access onto the C2136 shown on Drawing Number OV-RT-303 Rev D 
(northwestern roadside frontage onto the C2136) shall be stopped up, in materials 
to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and this shall be retained for 
as long as the development is in existence. 
 

7. Notwithstanding the submitted details, within 10 days from the commencement of 
the development detailed highway engineering drawings covering the highway 
works within the site, including the provision of a 20mph Zone, traffic calming 
measures and appropriate signing, shall be submitted and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details of construction. 

 
8. Prior to first occupation of any dwelling on the site, a 20mph Zone shall be 

implemented that covers the internal estate road. 
 

9. Before any other development is commenced the area of the access to be used by 
vehicles is to be constructed to a minimum of 410mm depth, comprising a minimum 
of 250mm of sub-base material, 100mm of bituminous macadam base course 
material and 60mm of bituminous macadam binder course material for a distance 
of 10 metres from the edge of the adjoining carriageway. Any use of alternative 

Tudalen 96



 

 

materials is to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
access being constructed. 

 
10. Prior to the occupation of each of the dwellings hereby approved, provision shall be 

made within the corresponding plot for the parking of vehicles as detailed on the 
approved site plan OV-RT-303 Rev D. The parking areas shall be retained for their 
designated use for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in 
existence. 

 
11. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby approved the area of the access 

to be used by vehicles is to be finished in a 40mm bituminous surface course 
material for a distance of 10 metres from the edge of the adjoining carriageway. 
This area will be maintained to this standard for as long as the development 
remains in existence. 

 
12. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling, the footway works shown on Drawing 

Number OV-VB-302 Rev D along the A489, shall be fully completed to the written 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and shall be retained for their 
designated use for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in 
existence. 

 
13. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied before the estate road carriageway 

and footways are constructed to binder course level to an adoptable standard 
including the provision of any salt bins, surface water drainage and street lighting in 
front of that dwelling and to the junction with the existing county highway. 

 
14. The estate road carriageway and all footways shall be fully completed, in 

accordance with the details to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
upon the issuing of the Building Regulations Completion Certificate for the last 
house or within two years from the commencement of the development, whichever 
is the sooner. The agreed standard of completion shall be maintained for as long 
as the development remains in existence. 

 
15. Any vehicular entrance gates installed within the application site shall be 

constructed so as to be incapable of opening towards the highway and shall be 
retained in this position and form of construction for as long as the 
dwelling/development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

 
16. The gradient from the back of the footway/verge to the vehicle parking areas shall 

be constructed so as not to exceed 1 in 20 and shall be retained at this gradient for 
as long as the dwellings remain in existence. 

 
17. The gradient of the access shall be constructed so as not to exceed 1 in 30 for the 

first 10 metres measured from edge of the adjoining carriageway along the centre 
line of the access and shall be retained at this gradient for as long as the 
development remains in existence. 

Tudalen 97



 

 

 
18. No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 

county highway. 
 

19. Notwithstanding the details submitted, prior to commencement of development, a 

detailed landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The submitted landscaping scheme shall include a 

scaled drawing and a written specification clearly describing the species, sizes, 

densities and planting numbers proposed as well as aftercare measures. 

Drawings must include accurate details of any existing trees and hedgerows to be 

retained with their location, species, size and position. The approved scheme 

shall be implemented in full and maintained thereafter. 

 

20. Access points to facilitate movement of hedgehog and small mammals shall be 

incorporated into all fencing forming any part of the site boundary or boundary 

between individual plots. A minimum of one access point comprising gaps of 

130mm x 130mm (5” x 5”) shall be installed along each fenced aspect of the 

boundary. If gravel boards are to be used, hedgehog friendly designs shall be 

used. The access points shall be maintained thereafter. 

 
21. Notwithstanding the submitted information regarding recreational facilities, prior to 

the commencement of development a scheme outlining the long-term 

management of the play area together with the timing of construction and 

completion in relation to the housing units hereby permitted shall be submitted to 

the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance 

with the agreed details.  

 
22. Within 3 months of the play area having been constructed, details of the 

management company shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 
 

23. In relation to the affordable dwellings (Plots 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 20, 21 and 22) 
the provisions of schedule 2, part 1, classes A, B, C, D and E of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended for 
Wales) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without 
modification), no extensions, alterations, alterations to the roof etc shall be 
erected other than those expressly authorised by this permission. 
 

 

Reasons 
 

1. Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 

Tudalen 98



 

 

2. To ensure adherence to the plans stamped as approved in the interests of clarity 
and a satisfactory development. 

3. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

4. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

5. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

6. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

7. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

8. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

9. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

10. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

11. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

12. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

13. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

14. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

15. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

16. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

17. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

18. In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of Powys 
LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (Criterion 10). 

19. To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP Policies DM2, DM4, DM7 and to 
meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021), 
TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

20. To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP Policies DM2, DM4, DM7 and to 
meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11, February 2021), 
TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

21. In order to secure adequate amenity space in accordance with policy DM3 of the 
Powys Local Development Plan (2018). 

22. In order to secure adequate amenity space in accordance with policy DM3 of the 
Powys Local Development Plan (2018). 

Tudalen 99



 

 

23. In order to control further development which has the potential to impact upon the 
affordability of the dwelling in accordance with the Powys Local Development 
Plan (2018), Supplementary Planning Guidance Affordable Housing (2018) and 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities 
(2010) and to minimize the impact of the development upon the landscape in 
accordance with Planning Policy Wales and Policy Dm4 of the Powys Local 
Development Plan (2018).  

 
Informative Notes 
 
Highways 
 

Advisory Notes 
 
 The developer shall pay the reasonable costs incurred by Powys County 
Council for the procurement and implementation of the requisite Traffic Regulation 
Order, in addition to the manufacture and erection of all associated  signage. 
Further information relating to Traffic Regulation Orders can be found in Section E 
of the CSS Wales Common Standards Guide 2020. 
 
 All off-site highway works shall be subject to an agreement (supported by a 
road bond) under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980. The design and detail 
required as part of a Section 278 Agreement shall be prepared by the applicant 
and approved by Powys County Council. Implementation of the  approved 
scheme shall be at the expense of the developer. Further information relating to 
Section 278 requirements can be found in Section E of the CSS Wales Common 
Standards Guide 2020. 
 
 Where development results in (or retains the potential to) the creation of a 
private street (typically development in excess of 5 dwellings) Powys County 
Council has a statutory duty to issue and enforce an Advance Payment Code 
Notice (APC) under the provisions of Sections 219/220 of the Highways act 1980. 
The Notice requires the applicant to secure a sum or bond with the local highway 
authority that covers the estimated costs of the identified street works. 
Applicants/developers may choose to discharge their private street works 
obligations by entering into a formal road adoption agreement with the local 
highway authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980. Further information 
relating to the APC procedure and Section 38 road adoption agreements can be 
found in Section E of the CSS Wales Common Standards Guide 2020. 
 
 
NOTE: THE ATTENTION OF THE APPLICANT MUST BE DRAWN TO 
RELATED HIGHWAYS LEGISLATION WHICH MAKES PROVISION FOR THE 
FOLLOWING; 
 

Tudalen 100



 

 

1. Under Section 50 of the New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 it is a 
requirement that a Streetworks licence is obtained from the Highway Authority to 
place, or to retain, apparatus in the highway and thereafter to inspect, maintain, 
adjust, repair, alter or renew the apparatus, change its position or remove it.   
 
2. The need to inform and obtain the consent of Statuary Undertakers 
(Electricity, Water, Gas, BT), Land Drainage Authority, etc. to the works. 
 
3. The New Roads & Street Works Act 1991 requires that all works, be 
properly notified and approved prior to commencement.   
 
Further advice on the above highway matters can be obtained from:- 
http://www.powys.gov.uk/en/roads-transport-parking/  
street.works@powys.gov.uk  
Street Works 
Powys County Hall 
Spa Road East 
Llandrindod Wells 
Powys 
LD1 5LG 
0845 6027035 

 
Sustainable Drainage  
 
All: Having assessed the Planning Application Ref 20/1338/RES, the SuDS Approval 
Body (SAB) deem that the construction area is greater than 100m2 and therefore this 
proposed development will require SAB approval prior to any construction works 
commencing onsite.  
 
Please contact the SAB Team on 01597 826000 or via email sab@powys.gov.uk  
 
For further information on the requirements of SAB and where relevant application 
forms/guidance can be accessed, please visit the following website 
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB 
If for any reason you believe your works are exempt from the requirement for SAB 
approval, we would be grateful if you would inform us so we can update our records 
accordingly. 
The requirement to obtain SAB consent sits outside of the planning process but is 
enforceable in a similar manner to planning law. It is a requirement to obtain SAB 
consent in addition to planning consent. Failure to engage with compliant SuDS design 
at an early stage may lead to significant un-necessary redesign costs. 
 
Rights of Way 
 

 Development over, or illegal interference with, a public right of way, is a criminal 
offence and enforcement action will be taken against a developer who ignores 

Tudalen 101

http://www.powys.gov.uk/en/roads-transport-parking/
mailto:street.works@powys.gov.uk


 

 

the presence of affected public rights of way. This includes temporary 
obstructions such as rubble mounds, building materials, parked vehicles etc…   

 

 Landscaping & Surfacing - .Advice will need to be sought before interfering or 
surfacing a public right of way. 

  

 New fencing or boundaries – The developer will need to seek a licence for a 
new structure if intending to create a boundary across a public footpath or 
bridleway. We cannot authorise a structure across a Restricted Byway or Byway 
Open to All Traffic. 

 

 Temporary closures – The developer can seek a temporary closure of a public 
right of way from the council if they feel the public may be at risk during 
development.   

 

 Legal Diversion – If development directly affects a public right of way, the 
developer will need to seek advice and apply for a legal diversion from the 
Council. No development can take place on a public right of way until a legal 
order is confirmed and the process may take at least 6 months.  For more 
information please discuss with Countryside Services at the earliest available 
opportunity.  

 
Biodiversity 
 
Protected Species 
 
Work should halt immediately and Natural Resources Wales (NRW) contacted for 
advice in the event that protected species are discovered during the course of the 
development. To proceed without seeking the advice of NRW may result in an offence 
under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and/or the Wildlife & 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) being committed. NRW can be contacted by phone 
at 0300 065 3000. 
 
Birds – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 
 
All nesting birds, their nests, eggs, and young are protected by law and it is an offence 
to: 
• intentionally kill, injure or take any wild bird 
• intentionally take, damage or destroy the next of any wild bird whilst it is in use or 
being built  
• intentionally take or destroy the egg of any wild bird 
• intentionally (or recklessly in England and Wales) disturb any wild bird listed on 
Schedule 1 while it is nest building, or at a nest containing eggs or young, or disturb the 
dependent young on such a bird. 
The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of a single bird, nest or egg - is 
a fine of up to 5,000 pounds, six months imprisonment or both. 

Tudalen 102



 

 

The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to remove or work on any hedge, tree or building 
where that work involves the taking, damaging or destruction of any nest of any wild bird 
while the nest is in use or being built (usually between late February and late August or 
late September in the case of swifts, swallows or house martins). If a nest is discovered 
while work is being undertaken, all work must stop, and advice sought from Natural 
Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Case Officer: Richard Edwards, Senior Planning Officer 
Tel: 01597 827218 E-mail: richard.edwards2@powys.gov.uk     

 

Tudalen 103



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



T
udalen 105



M
ae'r dudalen hon w

edi'i gadael yn w
ag yn fw

riadol



Application No. Proposal Location

21/1822/FUL Change of use of land for 
the siting of 3 moveable 
holiday pods, creation of 
parking area and 
installation of treatment 
plant and drainage field.

Glan Yr Afon 
Abbey Cwm-Hir
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 6PS

22/0147/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 4 attached to 
permission P/2018/0487 
in relation to a 
Construction 
Environmental 
Management Plan

Land At Coed Sarnau, 
Abbey- Cwm-Hir
Rhayader
LD1 6PL

21/1295/FUL Erection of steel portal 
framed building to cover 
the existing manure 
storage area, over an 
existing concrete area, 
and all other associated 
works

Cwm 
Bwlch-Y-Ffridd
Newtown
SY16 3JD

21/1757/VAR Application to remove 
Section 106 planning 
obligation to permission 
M19976 related to 
occupancy restriction

Ty Newydd
Glan-y-nant
Aberhafesp
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3HB

Aberhafesp 
Community

Approve 12/07/2021 Full Application 28/01/2022

S106 
Discharged

15/09/2021 Discharge/Modificatio
n of S106

17/02/2022

Abbey Cwm-Hir 
Community

Approve 06/10/2021 Full Application 09/03/2022

Approve 31/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

24/02/2022

Delegated List 

212 Applications

Excel Version
Go Back

Parish Name Decision Date Application Application Type Date Decision 
Issued

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 1 of 48

T
udalen 107

5



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1856/FUL Renovation and 
extensions to existing 
dwelling, conversion of 
traditional outbuilding, 
installation of sewage 
treatment plant, 
alterations to existing 
vehicular access and 
alterations to existing 
residential curtilage

Tenement
Llandyssil
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6LR

21/1985/LBC Listed building consent for 
internal and external 
alterations involved in the 
proposed conversion of 2 
dwellings into 1  dwelling 
including demolition of 
greenhouse

Coach House Cottages
The Old Rectory
Llandyssil
Montgomery
SY15 6LQ

22/0135/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 3 and 7 
attached to permission 
21/0227/FUL, in relation 
to landscaping, bio 
diversity enhancements 
and passing bay

Gors 
Llangadfan
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 0PS

21/1315/FUL Repositioning of an 
existing access

Land Adjacent To Belin 
Mount 
Crew Green
Shrewsbury
Powys

Bausley With 
Criggion 
Community

Approve 14/07/2021 Full Application 10/02/2022

Banwy 
Community

Approve 17/02/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

25/02/2022

Abermule And 
Llandyssil 
Community

Approve 19/10/2021 Full Application 09/02/2022

Approve 02/11/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

31/01/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 2 of 48

T
udalen 108



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1445/LBC Demolition of former 
20thC side extension and 
erection of new 
traditionally detailed side 
extension; alterations to 
existing porch; re-
insertion of first floor sash 
windows; insertion of new 
french doors to rear 
elevation; minor internal 
alterations.

Old Vicarage 
Criggion Lane
Tre-Wern
Welshpool
SY5 9AY

21/1444/HH Demolition of former 
20thC side extension and 
erection of new 
traditionally detailed side 
extension; alterations to 
existing porch; re-
insertion of first floor sash 
windows; insertion of new 
french doors to rear 
elevation; minor internal 
alterations.

Old Vicarage 
Criggion Lane
Tre-Wern
Welshpool
SY5 9AY

21/1870/HH Two-storey extension to 
existing residential 
dwelling

The Bwlch
Beguildy
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1UG

Beguildy 
Community

Approve 18/10/2021 Householder 17/02/2022

Approve 10/09/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

08/03/2022

Consent 15/08/2021 Householder 08/03/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 3 of 48

T
udalen 109



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1965/FUL Change of use of ground 
floor from public house to 
residential (whole building 
to be one residential unit)

Lloyney Inn
Lloyney
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1RG

21/2091/DIS Discharge of condition no. 
4 & 5 attached to planning 
approval 21/1652/HH 
(tree protection plan and 
lighting layout)

Town House 
Beguildy
Knighton
LD7 1YG

21/2233/FUL Siting of 3 holiday units, 
formation of new 
vehicular access 
roadway, parking areas, 
installation of septic tank 
and all associated works

Cwm Bugail 
Beguildy
Knighton
LD7 1UG

21/2284/AGR Extension to existing 
agricultural building for 
storage of grain/hay 
bales.

Criggin
Felindre
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1YP

22/0087/AGR Steel frame implement 
store

Land Adj Dol Y Wern 
Knucklas
Knighton
LD7 1PL

Permitted 
Developm
ent

20/01/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

17/02/2022

18/02/2022

Approve 04/01/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

04/02/2022

Approve 05/11/2021 Full Application 14/02/2022

Approve 19/11/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

16/02/2022

Approve 30/12/2021 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 4 of 48

T
udalen 110



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1850/FUL Formation of new 
vehicular access into 
woodland for 
maintenance purposes

Land NE Of Panney
Pentre Llifior
Berriew
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8QJ

21/2067/FUL Erection of a cover to an 
existing manure store

Plas Dwpa 
Berriew
Welshpool
SY21 8PS

22/0012/DIS Discharge of condition 12 
and 13 of planning 
approval P/2017/0318 in 
relation to External 
lighting and Landscaping 
plan

Plot South Of Oakleigh 
Refail
Berriew
SY21 8AJ

20/1133/FUL Proposed new 
dwelling,formation of 
access and associated 
services

Development 20 Meters 
North Of The Vicarage
Glan Yr Afon
Aberriw
Welshpool
Powys

22/0202/AGR Erection of an extension 
to an agricultural building 
for fodder and machinery 
storage (22.86m wide)

Pen Y Ffridd 
Castle Caereinion
Welshpool
SY21 9AU

Approve 10/08/2020 Full Application 27/01/2022

07/02/2022

Approve 15/02/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

23/02/2022

Berriew 
Community

Approve 25/10/2021 Full Application 31/01/2022

Approve 15/11/2021 Full Application 16/02/2022

Approve 19/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 5 of 48

T
udalen 111



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2056/AGR Yard Covering Upper Garth 
Aberhafesp
Newtown
SY16 3LN

21/2105/LBC Roof covering and 
chimneys refurbishment

Pipton Farm 
Three Cocks
Brecon
LD3 0SH

21/1866/FUL Proposed full planning 
application for proposed 
change of use of existing 
carers accommodation to 
a separate independent 
residential dwelling

Stockley Cottages
Erwood
Builth Wells
Powys

21/1919/HH Demolition of garage and 
replacement with lean-to 
extension

Madryn
6 Broadway
Builth Wells
Powys
LD2 3DB

21/2186/LBC Reinstatement of window 
to kitchen in original 
opening and removal of 
modern ventilation 
equipment. Removal of 
modern sanitary fittings 
and furnishings from 
ladies washrooms to 
create a study.

Plas Dolguog Hotel
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8UJ

Cadfarch 
Community

Approve 11/12/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

07/03/2022

Builth Wells 
Community

Approve 25/10/2021 Householder 10/02/2022

Bronllys 
Community

Consent 18/11/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

08/03/2022

Refused 20/10/2021 Full Application 08/02/2022

Bettws 
Community

Approve 10/01/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

04/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 6 of 48

T
udalen 112



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2364/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 6 of permission 
21/0936/FUL in relation to 
reasonable avoidance 
measures for nesting 
birds

Land At Mynydd Eithaf
Glas Pwll
Machynlleth
Powys

20/1512/RES Reserved matters 
application for 
appearance, siting, 
design, landscaping and 
access in connection with 
outline approval of 5 
dwellings P/2017/0368

Land At Church House 
Farm
Llanwnnog
Caersws
Powys

21/1345/LBC Replacement of existing 
boiler and flue

Gwyn Eira 
Llanwnog
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5JG

21/0175/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 19, 22 & 24 of 
planning approval 
18/0466/FUL

Parc Yr Esgob
Llanwnog
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5NY

21/1624/HH Creation of a dropped 
kerb for additional parking 
and wheelchair access

1 Ffordd-dol-llin
Carno
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5LD

18/02/2022Carno 
Community 
Council

Approve 28/10/2021 Householder

Caersws 
Community

Approve 23/09/2020 Reserved Matters 24/02/2022

Approve 23/09/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

10/02/2022

Split 
Decision

02/02/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

14/02/2022

Refused 29/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

16/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 7 of 48

T
udalen 113



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1159/DIS Discharge of condition 4 
of listed building consent 
P/2017/0699 in relation to 
method statement for 
removal of wood burning 
stove and opening up of 
fireplace

Plas Newydd
Carno
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5JR

21/1824/FUL Siting of 2 holiday units 
and all associated works

Land At Fferm Wylfa 
Carno
Caersws
SY17 5JS

21/2257/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 of 
planning permission 
P/2017/1154 (approved 
plans for Plot 3)

Land At Swallows Meadow
Swallows Meadow
Castle Caereinion
Welshpool
Powys

22/0099/AGR Agricultural notification for 
lean to extension to 
existing agricultural 
building

Lower Cefn
Castle Caereinion
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9BA

22/0082/FUL Change of use of 
agricultural buildings for 
use as log cabin 
construction and sawmill 
and all associated works 
(resubmission of 
21/1195/FUL)

Buildings At The Gaer 
Farmhouse 
Golfa
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9BD

Castle 
Caereinion 
Community

Consent 21/12/2021 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

07/02/2022

Planning 
Permission 
Required

13/01/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

09/02/2022

Refused 19/01/2022 Full Application 01/03/2022

Approve 11/08/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

15/02/2022

Approve 26/10/2021 Full Application 18/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 8 of 48

T
udalen 114



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2217/TRE Felling of 1 ash tree and 1 
spruce tree together with 
pruning of 2 ash trees.

The Pinfold
Hyssington
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6AY

22/0146/TRE Application for works to 
trees in a conservation 
area

Elmhurst
Churchstoke
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6AF

22/0244/DIS Discharge of conditions 4 
and 7 of planning 
permission 20/1966/FUL 
(visibility splays and 2 no 
passing bays)

Corndon Malt House
Old Churchstoke
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6EL

21/0653/FUL Siting of up to 10 self-
storage containers on 
existing areas of 
hardstanding within a 
secure compound 
including erection of new 
2.4 m high fence and 
gates and alterations to 
existing access

Old Timber Yard
Snead
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6EB

18/02/2022

Churchstoke 
Community

Approve 23/12/2021 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

01/02/2022

Approve 20/01/2022 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

01/03/2022

Approve 15/02/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

09/03/2022

Consent 24/05/2021 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 9 of 48

T
udalen 115



Delegated List 

212 Applications

22/0289/DIS Discharge of conditions 
12,13,14,15 and 16 of 
planning permission 
P/2017/0120 in relation to 
biodiversity enhancement, 
tree and hedgrow 
protection plan, hedge 
translocation, planting 
species list and external 
lighting scheme

Land At Tower Hill 
Cilmeri
Llanafan Road
Builth Wells
LD2 3PB

21/2015/FUL Change of use of existing 
annex to holiday let

Hendom Barn 
Clyro
Hereford
HR3 5JX

21/2177/DIS Discharge of condition 4 
(pollution prevention 
plan), condition 5 
(external lighting design 
scheme) and condition 6 
(biodiversity enhancement 
plan) of planning approval 
21/0277/HH

Mill Cottage
Clyro
Hereford
Powys
HR3 5SE

21/1474/HH Erection of extensions to 
two storey dwelling

Cock-y-Roostyn
Clyro
Hereford
Powys
HR3 5SQ

Clyro 
Community

Approve 16/11/2021 Full Application 03/03/2022

Approve 30/11/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

01/02/2022

Refused 10/08/2021 Householder 16/02/2022

Cilmery 
Community

Approve 21/02/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

25/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 10 of 48

T
udalen 116



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2269/FUL Change of use of Garden 
Centre (mixed use) to 
residential curtilage 
(domestic), to include 
retention of  the existing 
residential dwelling

Greenacre Garden Centre
Howey
Builth Wells
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5PL

20/2076/FUL Proposed development of 
3 holiday units and 
associated works

Pant Y Rhiw 
Llandewi'r-Cwm
Builth Wells
LD2 3RZ

21/0453/RES Reserved Matters 
Application for a single 
dwelling and associated 
works, approved under 
Outline Planning 
Application P/2017/1152 
(Appearance, 
Landscaping, Layout and 
Scale)

Land Adjoining The Garage
Adfa
Newtown
Powys

21/2226/HH Replace conservatory 
with single-storey 
extension to side 
elevation

Tretirion 
Llandefalle
Brecon
LD3 0NR

Felin-Fach 
Community

Approve 06/12/2021 Householder 01/02/2022

Dwyriw 
Community

Approve 11/03/2021 Reserved Matters 10/02/2022

Duhonw 
Community

Refused 18/12/2020 Full Application 27/01/2022

Disserth And 
Trecoed 
Community

Approve 31/12/2021 Full Application 07/03/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 11 of 48

T
udalen 117



Delegated List 

212 Applications

22/0261/NMA Non material amendment 
against planning 
permission P/2002/0067 
for the removal of  one of 
the entrance screens to 
the front. Change from 2 
dwellings to 1 dwelling. 
Insertion of 1x window. 
Removal of 5no. roof-
lights to the rear . 
Reduction of roof-lights to 
the front from 8 to 7 (4 x 
escape windows and 3 x 
standard roof-lights).

Lower Penwaun 
Llan-Ddew
Brecon
LD3 9TA

22/0323/DIS Discharge of condition no. 
3 attached to planning 
approval 21/1560/FUL 
(landscaping scheme)

Dolgarreg 
Cilcewydd
Welshpool
SY21 8LN

19/0639/DIS Discharge of conditions 5, 
19, 23, 24, 25, 26 and 27 
from planning consent 
P/2011/0156 in regards to 
a noise survey, lighting 
assessment, manure 
management plan, 
ammonia, odour 
management plan, and fly 
management plan

Lower Leighton 
Buttington
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8HH

Forden With 
Leighton & 
Trelystan Com

Approve 01/03/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

04/03/2022

Split 
Decision

30/05/2019 Discharge of 
Condition

23/02/2022

Approve 16/02/2022 Non-Material 
Amendment

04/03/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 12 of 48

T
udalen 118



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2358/DIS Discharge of condition 14 
of 19/1522/RES (highway 
engineering drawings)

Land Adjacent To Church 
Barn
Gladestry
Kington
Powys

21/2357/DIS Discharge of condition 7 
of outline planning 
consent P/2015/1078 (foul 
drainage)

Land Adjacent To Church 
Barn
Gladestry
Kington
Powys

21/0293/FUL Erection of a rural 
enterprise dwelling and 
garage, alterations to 
access, installation of a 
treatment plant and 
associated works

Land At Craig Y Gronfa 
Mallwyd
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8JG

21/1274/FUL Siting of four shepherd 
huts for holiday use, 
formation of vehicular 
access road, parking area 
and all associated works

Land At 1 Goledd Dyfi
Commins Coch
Machynlleth
SY20 8LZ

21/1488/HH Proposed single storey 
extension to front and first 
floor extension to rear

Cwm Bychan Bach
Commins Coch
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8LL

Glantwymyn 
Community

Approve 15/02/2021 Full Application 27/01/2022

Approve 09/07/2021 Full Application 15/02/2022

Approve 09/08/2021 Householder 07/03/2022

Gladestry 
Community

Approve 24/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

11/02/2022

Consent 24/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

25/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 13 of 48

T
udalen 119



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1905/HH Erection of new garage / 
workshop

Rosterick Cottage
Ceinws
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 9HA

21/0496/FUL Change of use from 
existing disused chapel to 
residential dwelling

Capel Nebo
Cemmaes Road
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8JZ

22/0207/AGR Alterations to existing 
forestry track

Penlan Thin 
Ceinws
Powys

21/0039/CLE Application for Certificate 
of lawfulness for an 
existing use namely use 
of Glasbury House, 
outbuildings and land for 
camping and outdoor 
pursuits.  

Glasbury House Outdoor 
Pursuits Centre 
Glasbury
Hereford
HR3 5NW

21/1959/HH The extension of the 
existing residential 
dwelling

Waun 
Llowes
Hereford
HR3 5LZ

Permitted 
Developm
ent

10/02/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

24/02/2022

Glasbury 
Community

Approve 16/02/2021 Certificate of 
Lawfulness - Existing

11/02/2022

Consent 02/11/2021 Householder 07/02/2022

31/01/2022

Consent 22/03/2021 Full Application 02/02/2022

Approve 22/10/2021 Householder

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 14 of 48

T
udalen 120



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1459/FUL Construction of two 
holiday chalets, 
improvements to existing 
access and installation of 
associated sewage 
treatment

Land At Dan Y Llan
Garthbrengy
Brecon
Powys
LD3 9TG

21/1818/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 14 and 16 
attached to permission 
P/2014/1127, in relation to 
landscaping and land 
contamination

Lle Tawel 
St Davids Church
Garthbrengy
Brecon
Powys
LD3 9TW

21/2328/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 5 attached to 
permission 21/1233/HH in 
relation to on-site parking

Caelydan Bungalow
Dolfor
Llandrindod Wells
Newtown
Powys
SY16 4AL

21/2339/DIS Discharge of condition 3 
(access), 10 (passing 
bays) and 24 
(photographic survey) of 
planning approval 
21/0223/FUL

Barn Adjoining Oak Tree 
House 
Abermule
Montgomery
SY15 6NR

22/0085/VAR Application for discharge 
of the S106 agreement 
attached to permission 
P/2014/0095

The Joiners
Dolfor
Newtown
Powys
SY16 4BN

Kerry 
Community

Approve 08/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

27/01/2022

Approve 10/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

07/02/2022

Approve 13/01/2022 Discharge/Modificatio
n of S106

18/02/2022

Honddu Isaf 
Community

Consent 06/08/2021 Full Application 11/02/2022

Split 
Decision

18/10/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

17/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 15 of 48

T
udalen 121



Delegated List 

212 Applications

22/0011/FUL Erection of extension to 
infill between existing 
buildings (to cover 
existing yard) and 
erection of extension to 
cover existing yard

Block Farm 
Kerry
Newtown
SY16 4PJ

22/0119/FUL Siting of 3 no. holiday 
pods, formation of access 
track, parking area and 
installation of sewage 
treatment plant

Land At Cloddiau
Kerry
Newtown
Powys
SY16 4DY

21/1181/FUL Proposed Holiday-let 
Development, formation 
of a new access and 
associated works

Land At New House
Sarn
Newtown
Powys
SY16 4ER

21/2112/FUL Change of use of the 
existing building from A2 
to a mixed use comprising 
of A2 on the ground floor 
(accountants) together 
with residential 
accommodation (C3) on 
the first and second floors 
together with minor 
alterations internally and 
to the rear and side 
elevations

8 Broad Street
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1BL

Refused 02/07/2021 Full Application 04/03/2022

Knighton 
Community

Approve 19/11/2021 Full Application 17/02/2022

09/03/2022

Approve 28/01/2022 Full Application 28/02/2022

Approve 17/01/2022 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 16 of 48

T
udalen 122



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2297/HH Proposed single storey 
side extension

Alpine 
Garth Lane
Knighton
LD7 1SB

21/2211/AGR Storage of Straw/Fodder Oak View 
Woodhouse Lane
Rhos-Y-Meirch
Knighton
LD7 1NG

21/2086/HH Oak Sunroom Extension Green Meadows 
Davids Well
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 6YP

21/2223/DIS Discharge of condition 3 
attached to planning 
approval 21/0745/FUL 
(landscaping scheme)

Abergwenlas Farm 
Llanbadarn Fynydd
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 6YA

21/2031/FUL Minor improvements to 
existing track, removal of 
bumps and widening to a 
width of 3.1 metres

Pennant Uchaf 
Pennant
Llanbrynmair
SY19 7BJ

22/0071/ADV Display of a temporary 
free standing (non - 
illuminated) double sided 
advertisement sign on 2m 
high timber support 

Sign is a temporary 
advertisement for the sale 
of the adjacent 2no 
properties which are 
currently under 
construction.

Land At Bwlch-Yr-Iaen
Llanbrynmair
Powys
SY19 7BA

Llanbrynmair 
Community

Approve 29/11/2021 Full Application 18/02/2022

Approve 18/01/2022 Advertisement 
Consent

28/02/2022

16/02/2022

Llanbadarn 
Fynydd 
Community

Approve 16/11/2021 Householder 15/02/2022

Approve 10/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

17/02/2022

Approve 12/01/2022 Householder 08/03/2022

Prior 
Approval 
Approved

17/12/2021 Agricultural 
Notification

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 17 of 48

T
udalen 123



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1897/FUL Erection of an Agricultural 
Barn/Service Building

B4518 From Junction 
C2175 At Llanbrynmair To
Bidge Bont Bryn-Coch
Llanbrynmair
Powys
SY19 7DL

21/1710/HH Proposed replacement 
outbuilding

Standel 
Llan-Ddew
Brecon
LD3 9SY

22/0158/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 4 of planning 
approval 21/1580/FUL in 
relation to tree protection 
plan

Waen Llwydion
Llandinam
Powys
SY17 5AH

21/2291/FUL Car park extension and 
associated works

Car Park 
Western Promenade
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5HU

21/2379/HH Erection of timber 
summer house in corner 
of garden (retrospective)

18 Dolydd Pentrosfa
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5NZ

21/2261/HH Partial demolition of 
existing garage and 
erection of two storey side 
extension

6 Clywedog Drive
Llandrindod Wells
Powys 
LD1 5BZ

Llandrindod 
Wells 
Community

Approve 15/12/2021 Full Application 07/03/2022

Approve 21/12/2021 Householder 10/02/2022

Approve 29/12/2021 Householder 27/01/2022

Llandinam 
Community

Approve 26/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

18/02/2022

Llanddew 
Community

Consent 20/09/2021 Householder 27/01/2022

Refused 15/11/2021 Full Application 28/01/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 18 of 48

T
udalen 124



Delegated List 

212 Applications

22/0052/TRE Works to trees in a 
conservation area 
application to remove two 
coniferous trees  to the 
rear

Commodore Hotel
Spa Road
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5ER

22/0014/FUL Erection of a half way 
house

Llandrindod Wells Golf Club
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5NY

21/2180/HH Extension of first floor to 
create a bedroom and 
office and add an ensuite 
to existing bedroom. Also 
to extend the existing 
utility

The Hollies
Wellington Road
Llandrindod
Powys
LD1 5NB

21/0438/FUL Change of use from A1 
(shop) to add use class 
B1(a) (business, office), 
installation of UPVC 
window and door 
(retrospective)

Leamington House
Temple Street
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5DL

21/1563/FUL Erection of slurry store 
and all associated works

Maesderw 
Pool Quay
Welshpool
SY21 9LA

Llandrinio And 
Arddleen 
Community

Approve 20/08/2021 Full Application 24/02/2022

Consent 14/01/2022 Householder 28/02/2022

Refused 30/03/2021 Full Application 08/02/2022

10/02/2022

Approve 19/01/2022 Full Application 24/02/2022

Approve 13/01/2022 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 19 of 48

T
udalen 125



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1773/DIS Discharge of conditions 3, 
13 and 14 of planning 
permission P/2016/0912 
(surface water drainage, 
passing bays and 
landscaping scheme)

Land Formerly Of Penrhos 
Farm
Llansantffraid-ym-mechain
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6QH

21/2167/DIS Discharge of planning 
condition no's 5, 8 & 27 of 
outline planning approval 
P/2017/0977 (affordable 
housing details, lighting 
scheme and construction 
method statement)

Land Adjacent To 
Trederwen View
Arddleen
Llanymynech
Powys

21/1139/RES Reserved matters 
application following 
outline permission 
P/2017/0977 for the 
erection of 17 dwellings, 
formation of vehicular 
access, formation of 
school car park with new 
access and all associated 
works

Land Adjacent To 
Trederwen View
Arddleen
Llanymynech
Powys

10/02/2022

Approve 01/10/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

07/03/2022

Approve 26/11/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

16/02/2022

Consent 06/07/2021 Reserved Matters

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 20 of 48

T
udalen 126



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/0754/OUT Outline - Erection of 
electric vehicle service 
area to include drive thru 
with parking and 
associated works

Land Adj Green Field 
House
Four Crosses
Llanymynech
Powys

21/0157/RES Reserved matters 
application for the 
erection of a dwelling 
following outline 
permission P/2017/0521

Land Adjacent Henllys
Cwmbach
Builth Wells
Powys

21/1734/HH Erection of a rear 
extension

Ger Y Nant 
Dolanog
Welshpool
SY21 0HU

21/2271/NMA Non Material Amendment 
to planning approval 
19/1710/HH (2 storey 
extension) to allow 
amended plans - 
amendments to roof 
design and materials

Clyniarth Cottage
Cyfronydd
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9HB

22/0127/NMA NMA to vary the triggers 
of Conditions 6, 8b, 9, 20 
and 22 in relation to 
planning approval 
P/2018/0266

Cross Farm 
Llanfair Caereinion
Welshpool
SY21 0DP

Llanfair 
Caereinion 
Community

Approve 05/10/2021 Householder 22/02/2022

Approve 11/01/2022 Non-Material 
Amendment

09/03/2022

Approve 31/01/2022 Non-Material 
Amendment

23/02/2022

Llanelwedd 
Community

Refused 27/01/2021 Reserved Matters 14/02/2022

Llandysilio 
Community

Consent 06/05/2021 Outline planning 09/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 21 of 48

T
udalen 127



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2038/FUL Erection of a Garage Land Adjacent To The 
Cemetery
Llanfihangel-yng-ngwynfa
Llanfyllin
Powys

22/0192/AGR Proposed general 
purpose agricultural 
building

Cefn Coed Isaf 
U2124 Access To Cefncoed 
Isaf
Llanfihangel
Llanfyllin
SY22 5JF

20/1770/FUL Erection of a Steel Portal 
Framed Agricultural 
Building for the Housing 
of Livestock (Broilers) 
installation of feed bins, 
together with all other 
associated works.

Tan House Farm 
Dolau
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5TL

21/0772/DIS Discharge of conditions 8, 
9, 11 and 19 of 
permission P/2017/0823

Development At Cefn Llan
Llangammarch Wells
Powys

22/0208/NMA Application for non-
material amendments to 
planning permission 
P/2009/1037  in relation to 
code for sustainable 
homes and approved 
plans

Plot 12 
Dol Pistyll
Llanfihangel Talyllyn
Brecon
LD3 7TJ

Llangors 
Community 
Council

Approve 09/02/2022 Non-Material 
Amendment

17/02/2022

Llangammarch 
Community

Split 
Decision

27/04/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

17/02/2022

Llanfihangel 
Rhydithon 
Community

Refused 13/11/2020 Full Application 18/02/2022

Llanfihangel 
Community

Approve 06/01/2022 Full Application 09/03/2022

Permitted 
Developm
ent

09/02/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

21/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 22 of 48

T
udalen 128



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2077/FUL Conversion of an 
agricultural barn to form 
additional residential 
accommodation linked to 
existing cottage

Upper Firley 
Llangunllo
Knighton
LD7 1SY

21/2160/FUL Proposed roof over 
existing muck store and 
associated works

Treburvaugh 
Knighton
LD7 1SG

21/1170/FUL Erection of rural 
enterprise dwelling, 
agricultural building, 
creation of vehicular 
access, landscaping 
scheme together with all 
other associated works

Bron Felin 
Old Hall
Llanidloes
SY18 6PW

21/1808/FUL The installation of 2 no. 
Electric Vehicle (EV) 
Quick Charging points 
and 2 no. electrical 
cabinets, associated 
cabling and ancillary 
works, including the 
installation of stainless 
steel bollards around the 
proposed equipment

Blue Bell Inn
Llangurig
Llanidloes
Powys
SY18 6SG

21/1119/FUL Conversion and extension 
in height of attached 
outbuildings to form a two 
storey extension to 
existing dwelling

Cefn Cownen
Pantmawr
Llanidloes
Powys
SY18 6SX

Llangurig 
Community

Approve 22/06/2021 Full Application 23/02/2022

Approve 10/12/2021 Full Application 16/02/2022

Consent 28/07/2021 Full Application 11/02/2022

Llangunllo 
Community

Approve 26/11/2021 Full Application 17/02/2022

Approve 15/12/2021 Full Application 23/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 23 of 48

T
udalen 129



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2288/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 of 
permission 20/0887/HH to 
allow for amended plans

Clywedog Caravan Park 
Van
Llanidloes
SY18 6NE

21/2347/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 of 
planning permission 
21/1242/FUL (approved 
drawings)

Land Adjacent To Dolafon
Newtown Road
Llanidloes
Powys

21/2276/DIS Discharge of conditions 4 
and 5 of planning 
permission 20/0637/FUL 
(remediation scheme and 
monitoring and 
maintenance scheme)

Green Villa
Llangurig Road
Llanidloes
Powys
SY18 6ES

21/2376/DIS Discharge of condition 4 
of planning approval 
21/0464/FUL - 
Biodiversity enhancement 
plan

Land At Hafren Forest
Old Hall
Llanidloes
Powys

Llanidloes 
Without 
Community

Approve 30/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

07/02/2022

Llanidloes 
Community

Approve 16/12/2021 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

03/02/2022

Approve 22/12/2021 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

24/02/2022

Approve 17/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

09/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 24 of 48

T
udalen 130



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1976/SC Scoping opinion under 
regulation 14 of the EIA 
(Wales) regulations 2017 
in relation to renewable 
energy park development 
(including associated 
cabling and electrical 
connections and 
structures and 
infrastructure to include 
plans for battery storage 
within standard 
containers.)

Land Adjacent To Bryn 
Posteg Landfill Site
Tylwch
Llanidloes
Powys
SY18 6JJ

21/2325/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 5, 6, and 7 
from planning permission 
P/2017/0211 in relation to 
tree and hedgerow 
protection plan, 
landscaping planting and 
biodiversity enhancement

Waters Edge 
Llanthomas Lane
Llanigon
Hereford
HR3 5PU

21/0620/REM Section 73 application in 
relation to variation of 
conditions 2 and 4 of 
planning permission 
P/2017/0230 (approved 
plans and proposed 
windows)

Capel Glanafon
Waterfall Street
Llanrhaeadr-ym-mochnant
Oswestry
Powys
SY10 0JX

Llanrhaeadr-Ym-
Mochant 
Community

Refused 14/04/2021 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

28/02/2022

Llanigon 
Community

Approve 20/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

14/02/2022

Closed 05/11/2021 Scoping Opinion 10/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 25 of 48

T
udalen 131



Delegated List 

212 Applications

22/0156/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 3 and 5 
attached to permission 
18/0857/FUL, relating to 
building recording and 
ecological requirements

The Fields
Llansantffraid-ym-mechain
Powys
SY22 6TE

21/1714/HH Erection of a single storey 
extension (timber 
orangery)

Berthllwyd
Moelfre
Oswestry
Powys
SY10 7QW

22/0305/NMA Application for non-
material amendments to 
permission 19/1613/RES 
to allow for amended 
plans

Land Adjacent To Dol Y 
Coed
Llanwrthwl
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6NU

21/1541/FUL Conversion and extension 
of barn to form a dwelling, 
demolition of adjoining 
barn,  installation of new 
sewage treatment for 
farmhouse and barn 
together with associated 
works

Llwyngychwydd 
Llanwrtyd Wells
LD5 4TL

21/2240/FUL Change of use and 
alterations to function 
room building to create 
offices, to include all 
associated works (Part 
Retrospective)

The New Inn Offices 
Robbin Close
Newbridge-On-Wye
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6HY

Llanyre 
Community

Approve 23/12/2021 Full Application 24/02/2022

Llanwrtyd Wells 
Community

Consent 18/08/2021 Full Application 18/02/2022

Llanwrthwl 
Community

Approve 22/02/2022 Non-Material 
Amendment

25/02/2022

Llansilin 
Community

Approve 06/10/2021 Householder 14/02/2022

Llansantffraid 
Community

Approve 02/02/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

04/03/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 26 of 48

T
udalen 132



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2378/TPO Felling of a silver burch 
tree leaning towards the 
applicant's property

Beckwood
7 Highbury Fields
Llanyre
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6NF

22/0083/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 3 and 4 of 
planning approval 
21/0055/FUL in relation to 
landscaping, Biodiversity 
and External Lighting 
Plan'

Upper Cilgee
Doldowlod
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6HD

21/2224/NMA Application for non-
material amendments to 
permission 19/1224/FUL 
to allow for amended 
plans, and to alter the 
tenure of barn 1

Bronydd Mawr Barns 
Llywel
Brecon
Powys
LD3 0RD

22/0092/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 10 attached to 
permission 20/0109/FUL 
in relation to highway 
requirements

Holiday Letting Units
Blaenclydach Stables
Llywel
Brecon
Powys
LD3 8RD

Llywel 
Community

Approve 23/11/2021 Non-Material 
Amendment

27/01/2022

Approve 28/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

07/03/2022

Approve 20/01/2022 Works to Trees 
subject to a TPO

17/02/2022

Approve 01/02/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

10/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 27 of 48

T
udalen 133



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/0856/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 of 
planning consent 
P/2017/0583 (Residential 
development)  to allow an 
additional 2 years to 
submit reserved matters

Land Adjacent To 
Ridgemount
Newbridge On Wye
Llandrindod Wells
Powys

21/2267/HH Demolition of existing side 
extension and erection of 
an extension

27 Cae Crwn
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8HF

22/0065/DIS Application to discharge 
condition no's  4, 5, 6 & 7 
attached to planning 
approval 21/1663/FUL 
(Geo Environmental & 
Geo-Technical Report)

Industrial Unit At Unit C2a
Treowain Enterprise Centre
Treowain Industrial Estate
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8EG

21/1114/FUL Conversion and extension 
of former council storage 
building to form a dwelling 
and all associated works  
(resubmission of 
20/1924/FUL)

Former Council Storage 
Building 
At The Plas 
Heol Pentrerhedyn
Machynlleth
SY20 8ER

Machynlleth 
Community

Approve 14/12/2021 Householder 03/02/2022

Approve 24/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

16/02/2022

Consent 15/06/2021 Full Application 01/03/2022

Refused 07/05/2021 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

17/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 28 of 48

T
udalen 134



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1115/LBC Listed building consent for 
alterations and 
renovations of former 
council storage building in 
connection with proposed 
conversion to form a 
dwelling (resubmission of 
20/1925/LBC)

Former Council Storage 
Building 
The Plas 
Heol Pentrerhedyn
Machynlleth
SY20 8ER

21/2351/HH Construction of a half 
storey extension above 
existing extension

10 Garden Village
Machynlleth
SY20 8HA

21/1174/HH Single-storey extension to 
side elevation

Ty Gwennol 
Pentre-Bach
Brecon
LD3 8UB

21/2097/FUL Proposed Erection of a 
detached ancillary 
domestic building (Gym)

Ceunant
Llanfair Caerinion
Manafon
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 0DG

21/2113/HH Proposed demolition of 
rear lean-to and erection 
of rear and side 
extensions and all 
associated works

Smithy 
Llanfyllin
Powys
SY22 5NA

Meifod 
Community

Approve 08/11/2021 Householder 28/02/2022

Manafon 
Community

Approve 18/11/2021 Full Application 08/02/2022

Maescar 
Community

Consent 22/06/2021 Householder 17/02/2022

01/03/2022

Refused 24/12/2021 Householder 18/02/2022

Consent 15/06/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 29 of 48

T
udalen 135



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2272/DIS Discharge of condition 3 
(Archaeological Building 
Survey) and condition 4 
(hedgerow replacement 
and aftercare plan) of 
planning approval 
21/1498/HH

The Fron 
Sarnau
Llanymynech
SY22 6QP

21/2303/DIS Discharge of conditions 5 
and 9 of planning 
approval 20/2030/FUL 
(landscaping and bat and 
bird boxes)

Maesnewydd
Meifod
Powys
SY22 6HP

21/2292/FUL Agricultural shed to cover 
existing slurry store

Pentre Farm 
Methyr Cynog 
Brecon
Powys
LD3 9SD

21/1514/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 3 from planning 
permission P/2018/0306 
in relation to Pollution 
Prevention

Glandulas Farm Caravan 
Park
Llanidloes Road
Llanllwchaiarn
Newtown
Powys
SY16 4HZ

22/0091/AGR Erection of an agricultural 
building for fodder, 
implement and general 
purpose

Pen Y Bryn 
Mochdre
Newtown
Powys 
SY16 4JY

Mochdre 
Community

Approve 27/08/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

31/01/2022

Approve 25/01/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

02/02/2022

Merthyr Cynog 
Community

Approve 15/12/2021 Full Application 31/01/2022

Approve 14/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

03/02/2022

Approve 20/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

03/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 30 of 48

T
udalen 136



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1322/FUL Change of use and 
conversion of 2x 
agricultural barns into 2x 
residential dwellings, 
demolition of pole barn 
and associated works

Penstrowed Hall 
Penstrowed
Caersws
SY17 5SG

22/0205/AGR Roof covering over 
existing concrete yard. It 
will consist of a steel 
portal frame structure with 
fibre cement sheeting roof 
and associated rainwater 
goods.

Cwm Graig 
Dolfor
Newtown
SY16 4AF

21/2241/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 14, 19 and 20 
attached to permission 
P/2017/1289, relating to 
proposed materials, 
passing bay and external 
lighting

Land At Pwll Farm 
Hendomen
Montgomery
SY15 6EZ

22/0008/DIS Discharge of condition 3 
attached to permission 
21/1502/LBC in relation to 
proposed materials

Caerhowel Hall 
Caerhowel
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6HE

21/2285/DIS Discharge conditions 4 
and 5 attached to 
permission 21/1501/FUL 
relating to landscaping 
and bio diversity

Caerhowel Hall 
Caerhowel
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6HE

24/02/2022

Montgomery 
Community

Approve 08/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

16/02/2022

Approve 05/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

16/02/2022

Approve 07/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

01/02/2022

Consent 28/07/2021 Full Application 14/02/2022

Permitted 
Developm
ent

10/02/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 31 of 48

T
udalen 137



Delegated List 

212 Applications

22/0253/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 3 and 4 
attached to permission 
20/1065/RES, relating to 
materials and landscaping 
scheme

Land At Pwll Farm 
Hendomen
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6EZ

21/1527/FUL Siting of 5 glamping pods, 
access improvements and 
installation of treatment 
plant and drainage

Land At Daverneithon 
Nantmel
Rhayader
Powys 
LD6 5PD

21/1820/FUL Proposed Rural Workers 
Dwelling and Associated 
works

Nantglas Church Farm 
Nantglas
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 6PA

21/2176/HH Erection of single storey 
rear and side extension, 
replacement windows and 
replacement sunroom

The Victory
Crossgates
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6RF

Discharge of 
Condition

21/02/2022

Nantmel 
Community

Approve 22/09/2021 Full Application 03/02/2022

Approve 08/10/2021 Full Application 10/02/2022

Approve 30/11/2021 Householder 04/02/2022

Approve 15/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 32 of 48

T
udalen 138



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1997/FUL Retrospective change of 
use of land to playing field 
for Radnor Valley Football 
Club (non-profit), siting of 
temporary structures and 
engineering works to 
improve existing access.

All elements of the 
proposal are 100% 
removeable.

Football Pitch At 
Agricultural Field Adjacent 
A44 Near New Radnor
New Radnor
Presteigne
Powys

21/2350/LBC Installation of a water 
source heat pump in an 
existing outbuilding

The Grove
Broad Street
New Radnor
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2SS

18/0428/DIS Discharge of conditions 7, 
9, 11, 13, 20, 22, 33, 34 
and 35 from planning 
permission P/2016/1167

Former Timber Wharf
Lower Canal Road
Newtown
Powys

21/1288/FUL Demolition of garages 
and erection of a dwelling

Workshop And Premises
10 Crescent Street
Newtown
Powys
SY16 2HB

Newtown And 
Llanllwchaiarn 
Community

Approve 26/09/2018 Discharge of 
Condition

01/03/2022

Approve 13/07/2021 Full Application 18/02/2022

New Radnor 
Community

Approve 03/12/2021 Full Application 24/02/2022

Consent 22/12/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

01/03/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 33 of 48

T
udalen 139



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1259/HH Refurbishment and 
extension to existing 
property including 
demolition works

Milford Hall 
Milford Road
Newtown
SY16 3HF

21/1260/LBC Listed building consent for 
refurbishment and 
extension to dwelling 
including some demolition 
works

Milford Hall 
Milford Road
Newtown
SY16 3HF

21/1579/FUL Installation of 
Replacement Air Handling 
Unit (following SAGE 
advice on improved 
ventilation for public 
buildings) erection of 
screen fencing and the 
infill of 3 No picture 
windows to theatre 
auditorium at Ground 
Floor Level

Theatr Hafren
Llanidloes Road
Newtown
Powys
SY16 4HU

21/1604/CAC Demolition of existing 
garages and workshop 
space, to create new 
dwelling

Workshop And Premises 
10 Crescent Street
Newtown
SY16 2HB

21/1678/HH Extension to existing 
dwelling

The Close 
Milford Road
Newtown
SY16 2EQ

Approve 02/09/2021 Conservation Area 
Consent

18/02/2022

Approve 16/09/2021 Householder 31/01/2022

17/02/2022

Approve 25/08/2021 Full Application 08/02/2022

Approve 26/07/2021 Householder 17/02/2022

Approve 26/07/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 34 of 48

T
udalen 140



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1722/FUL Change of use and 
conversion of offices to 
create 6 residential units 
and retail floor space, to 
include the installation of 
an external staircase and 
walk way, the demolition 
of a lean to, internal and 
external alterations and all 
associated works 

31 Market Street, Extending 
Over 30 Market Street And 
The Building To The Rear 
Of No 31
Newtown
Powys 
SY16 2PG

21/1961/FUL Proposed residential 
development comprising 
32 no. residential 
apartments and 6 no. 
terrace dwellings together 
with site facility building 
and all associated works

Land At Former Travis 
Perkins Site
New Road
Newtown
Powys

21/2373/DIS Discharge of conditions 3, 
5, 10, 11, 12, 14, 16 and 
17 of planning permission 
19/0816/FUL (details of 
temporary ramp, 
construction traffic 
management plan, 
schedule of external 
materials, joinery details 
for doors and windows, 
landscaping and external 
lighting details)

All Saints Church
Commercial Street
Newtown
Powys
SY16 2BW

Approve 03/11/2021 Full Application 21/02/2022

Approve 14/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

01/02/2022

Approve 11/10/2021 Full Application 22/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 35 of 48

T
udalen 141



Delegated List 

212 Applications

22/0042/ADV Erection of a free 
standing single post 
illuminated totem sign

Burger King
Pool Road
Newtown
Powys
SY16 1DB

21/0228/FUL Erection of 4 dwellings 
and all associated works

Land At Hendidley Way
Newtown 
Powys

21/0819/HH Replacement of modern 
windows to match original 
shuttered georgian 
windows

Rock House
Rock Farm
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3BH

21/0820/LBC Replacement of modern 
windows to match original 
shuttered georgian 
windows

Rock House
Rock Farm
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3BH

Consent 27/05/2021 Householder 01/02/2022

Consent 27/05/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

01/02/2022

Approve 11/01/2022 Advertisement 
Consent

16/02/2022

Consent 22/02/2021 Full Application 04/03/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 36 of 48

T
udalen 142



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1723/LBC Internal and external 
alterations to the building 
to facilitate its conversion 
to 6 residential units and 
retail floor space, to 
include the erection of an 
external staircase and 
walk way, and the 
demolition of a lean-to 
building

31 Market Street, Extending 
Over 30 Market Street And 
The Building To The Rear 
Of No 31
Newtown
Powys 
SY16 2PG

20/1800/FUL Change of use from retail 
back to residential use

14 The Bank
Newtown
SY16 2AB

21/1689/LBC Replace all windows 
(currently single paned) 
with double glazed 
windows

Bryn House
Bryn Lane
Llanllwchaiarn
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3LZ

21/2221/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 of 
planning permission 
21/0408/HH in relation to 
approved plans

Lower Thorne
Evenjobb
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2NN

21/2196/DIS Discharge of condition 7 
attached to planning 
approval 21/0497/FUL - 
Archaeological watch brief

Hindwell
Walton
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2NU

Refused 24/12/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

16/02/2022

Old Radnor 
Community

Approve 06/12/2021 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

24/02/2022

Approve 09/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

04/02/2022

Consent 11/10/2021 Listed Building 
Consent

22/02/2022

Refused 10/11/2020 Full Application 16/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 37 of 48

T
udalen 143



Delegated List 

212 Applications

20/0831/LBC Listed building consent for 
retention of glazing and 
doors to convert existing 
carport to games room, 
installation of a new wood 
burning stove to games 
room with landscape 
feature chimney in garden 
above and investigative 
works around 
unauthorised inset 
fireplace in living room.

Old Burfa 
Evenjobb
Presteigne
LD8 2SH

21/1831/REM Removal of conditions 2 
and 3 of permission 
PR616900, in relation 
restrictions of use

Meadow View
Evenjobb
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2SA

13/02/2022

Consent 29/09/2021 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

31/01/2022

Consent 02/06/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 38 of 48

T
udalen 144



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2087/NMA Non material amendment 
to 19/0783/RES (outline 
planning approval 
P/2016/0454) in relation 
to removal of condition 3 
of 19/0783/RES and 
amendment of condition 4 
of 19/0783/RES to the 
following: The access 
arrangement detailed on 
Plan 4786/4A referenced 
under condition 4 of 
18/0416/RES shall be 
retained for perpetuity as 
linked to P/2016/0454

Land South Of Corner 
House
Kinnerton
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2PE

21/0472/FUL Erection of a rural 
workers enterprise 
dwelling, formation of 
vehicular access, 
installation of sewage 
treatment plant and all 
associated works

Land At T Bwlch Y Cefn 
Farm
Llandegley 
Llandrindod
Powys
LD1 5SP

21/2331/AGR Erection of a general 
purpose agricultural 
building for the storage of 
machinery.

Geulan Barn
Penybont
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5SR

21/2075/HH Proposed creation of new 
access including a 
dropped kerb and three 
off-street parking spaces

20 Castle Road
Presteigne
LD8 2EB

Presteigne 
Community

Approve 18/11/2021 Householder 08/02/2022

Consent 16/11/2021 Non-Material 
Amendment

31/01/2022

Penybont 
Community

Approve 15/03/2021 Full Application 10/02/2022

Planning 
Permission 
Required

05/01/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

04/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 39 of 48

T
udalen 145



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2123/HH Garage conversion/ rear 
extension to form new 
bedroom & utility room. 
Addition windows to 
existing dwelling

58 Warden Close
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2DH

22/0045/HH Single storey extension to 
front and side of existing 
bungalow dwelling

22 Orchard Close
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2HF

22/0117/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 5 of planning 
approval 21/1864/REM in 
relation to photographic 
survey

The Old Vicarage 
Norton
Presteigne
LD8 2EN

21/1442/FUL Re-siting of two existing 
residential units to be 
nearer existing residential 
sites forming part of 
existing touring caravan 
park area, and replacing 
with two tourer units and 
all associated works

Rockbridge Park 
Discoed
Presteigne
LD8 2NF

21/1602/FUL Erection of a steel drill 
tower including demolition 
of existing tower

Fire Station
East Street
Rhayader
Powys
LD6 5DR

Rhayader 
Community

Approve 18/08/2021 Full Application 08/02/2022

24/02/2022

Consent 04/08/2021 Full Application 09/03/2022

Approve 30/11/2021 Householder 17/02/2022

Approve 12/01/2022 Householder 08/03/2022

Approve 26/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 40 of 48

T
udalen 146



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/0760/DIS Discharge of conditions 3, 
4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 of 
planning approval 
20/0325/HH 
(contaminated 
land,external lighting and 
ecology)

2 Moorside Villas
Onllwyn Road
Coelbren
Castell-nedd
Powys
SA10 9NR

21/0433/FUL Conversion of existing 
traditional outbuildings to 
four dwellings, formation 
of new vehicular access 
and installation of a septic 
tank drainage system

Barns At Bodaioch Hall
Trefeglwys
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5PN

21/2255/NMA Non Material amendment 
to planning approval 
P/2015/0633 - relocation 
of Plot 20 & change of 
house type Plot 20 only 
including reposition of 
garage within plot

Plot 20 Plas Trannon
Trefeglwys
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5PW

21/2315/AGR Erection of Steel Portal 
Framed cover over 
existing external concrete 
Yard area, together with 
all other associated works

Red House Farm 
Trefeglwys
Caersws
SY17 5PN

21/2222/FUL Construction of an 
agricultural feed and 
implement store and 
improvements to the 
access.

Dolgoch Field 
Garth
Llangammarch Wells
LD4 4BH

Treflys 
Community

Approve 06/12/2021 Full Application 25/02/2022

Trefeglwys 
Community

Approve 17/03/2021 Full Application 25/02/2022

NMA 
Approved

04/01/2022 Non-Material 
Amendment

28/01/2022

Permitted 
Developm
ent

12/01/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

31/01/2022

Tawe-Uchaf 
Community

Approve 12/10/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

01/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 41 of 48

T
udalen 147



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2366/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 4 of permission 
21/0436/FUL in relation to 
reasonable avoidance 
measures for nesting 
birds

Land At Irfon Forest
Abergwesyn
Llanwrtyd Wells
Powys
LD5 4TS

21/1426/HH Proposed internal 
alterations and rear 
extension

Cae Bedw
Garth
Llangammarch Wells
Powys
LD4 4AT

21/2372/NMA Non Material Amendment 
application for removal of 
condition no. 4 attached 
to planning approval 
20/0501/HH 
(archaeological watching 
brief)

Glebelands
Tregynon
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3EH

22/0034/HH Erection of new oak 
framed extension.

Ty Coch Cottage 
Tregynon
Newtown
SY16 3PA

21/1848/FUL Demolition of existing 
dwelling and domestic 
outbuilding, and 
construction of a 
replacement dwelling and 
all associated works

Diamond Cottage 
Brunant
Buttington
SY21 8TF

Trewern 
Community

Approve 28/10/2021 Full Application 17/02/2022

Tregynon 
Community

Approve 06/01/2022 Non-Material 
Amendment

17/02/2022

Approve 19/01/2022 Householder 08/03/2022

Approve 29/12/2021 Discharge of 
Condition

24/02/2022

Refused 29/07/2021 Householder 16/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 42 of 48

T
udalen 148



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2322/FUL Provision of 189 car 
parking spaces for use by 
existing company

Vacant Plot At 
Offas Dyke Business Park
Fisher Road
Buttington
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8SS

21/2218/HH Single storey extension to 
dwelling.

White House 
Middletown
Welshpool
SY21 8ES

22/0018/NMA Non material amendment 
to planning permission 
20/1313/HH in respect of 
replacing open balcony 
with a lean-to roof

Oak Grange
Middletown
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8DD

21/2360/FUL Installation of ground 
mounted Solar PV arrays

Buttington Old Hall
Buttington
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8ST

SC/2017/0002 Scoping opinion under 
regulation 13 of the EIA 
(Wales) regulations 2016 
for construction and 
operation of Energy 
Recovery Facility (ERF)

Buttington Quarry
Buttington
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8SZ

Closed 06/02/2017 Scoping Opinion 17/02/2022

31/01/2022

Approve 13/01/2022 Full Application 09/03/2022

Approve 20/12/2021 Full Application 09/03/2022

Approve 29/12/2021 Householder 03/02/2022

Approve 07/01/2022 Non-Material 
Amendment

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 43 of 48

T
udalen 149



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2190/CLE Section 191 application 
for a lawful development 
certificate for the 
occupation of dwelling 
without compliance of 
condition 2 of permission 
M6394 (agricultural 
occupancy)

The Dell
Gungrog Fawr Lane
Trelydan
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9HS

21/2166/FUL Change of use of land to 
recreational use for 1 no. 
football pitch (field 2)

Land To The South Of 
'Welshpool Rugby Club'
Welshpool
SY21 8NS

21/2213/CAC Demolition of existing flat 
roofed utility area and 
erection of (enlarged) 
replacement extension & 
associated works.

The Vicarage 
Church Bank
Welshpool
SY21 7DP

21/2245/ADV Installation of 
replacement 4 no. fascia 
signs (1 illuminated and 3 
non-illuminated), 2 no. 
non-illuminated hanging 
signs and repainting of 
gold letters attached to 
building

Royal Oak Hotel 
The Cross
Welshpool
SY21 7DG

21/2212/HH Demolition of existing flat 
roofed utility area and 
erection of (enlarged) 
replacement extension & 
associated works.

The Vicarage 
Church Bank
Welshpool
SY21 7DP

10/02/2022

Approve 21/12/2021 Householder 31/01/2022

Welshpool 
Community

Approve 17/11/2021 Certificate of 
Lawfulness - Existing

23/02/2022

Approve 01/12/2021 Full Application 21/02/2022

Approve 17/12/2021 Conservation Area 
Consent

04/02/2022

Approve 20/12/2021 Advertisement 
Consent

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 44 of 48

T
udalen 150



Delegated List 

212 Applications

22/0062/DIS Discharge of condition no. 
10 attached to Listed 
building approval 
20/0661/LBC (method 
statement how panelling 
& cornicing can be 
preserved & concealed)

Neuadd Maldwyn 
Severn Road
Welshpool
SY21 7AS

22/0154/NMA Non material amendment 
to planning permission 
P/2018/0344 in relation to 
approved plans

Riverdale
Severn Lane
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 7BB

22/0160/FUL Change of use of land to 
recreational use for 1 no 
football pitch (field 1)

Land To The South Of 
'Welshpool Rugby Club'
Welshpool
SY21 8NS

22/0254/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 3 and 4 
attached to permission 
21/2156/FUL in respect to 
biodiversity enhancement 
and further details for new 
external materials

30 Broad Street
Welshpool
SY21 7RR

21/2259/AGR Erection of an agricultural 
steel frame building

Agricultural Building At 
Land Formerly Known As 
The Moors
Pool Quay
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9JT

Permitted 
Developm
ent

02/02/2022 Agricultural 
Notification

21/02/2022

Approve 02/02/2022 Full Application 28/02/2022

Approve 17/02/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

24/02/2022

Approve 14/01/2022 Discharge of 
Condition

28/02/2022

Approve 26/01/2022 Non-Material 
Amendment

21/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 45 of 48

T
udalen 151



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/2013/HH Erection of a  side and 
rear extension and 
internal alterations.

1 Gilfach Cottage
Whitton
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1NN

21/1464/AGR General purpose 
agricultural building (for 
the storage of 
implements)

Nantygroes Farm 
Whitton
Knighton
LD7 1NP

20/1131/DIS Discharge of conditions 3, 
4, 5, 6 and 10 from 
planning permission 
19/1495/REM in relation 
to a reptile statement, 
lighting plan, landscape 
scheme, remediation 
sheme and surface water 
plan.

5 Cwrt Y Gamlas
Gurnos
Swansea
SA9 1EP

21/1983/HH Proposed single storey 
extension above existing 
extension.

39 Heol Tawe
Abercrave
Swansea
SA9 1XP

Ystradgynlais 
Community

Approve 07/08/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

14/02/2022

Approve 09/11/2021 Householder 16/02/2022

Whitton 
Community

Consent 30/11/2021 Householder 18/02/2022

Prior 
Approval 
Approved

27/09/2021 Full Application 03/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 46 of 48

T
udalen 152



Delegated List 

212 Applications

21/1930/HH Single storey and first 
floor extension to existing 
detached garage with 
associated proposed 
covered areas and 
external, garden works. 
Removal of existing 
detached Utility Room 
space along with existing 
side and rear single 
storey elements and 
replacement with a side 
two storey extension and 
rear single storey 
extension with associated 
alterations.

Maesybryn 
93 Station Road
Ystradgynlais
SA9 1PJ

21/2283/HH Raising the roof of the 
dwelling and alterations / 
extensions to the rear 
elevation. The front 
elevation will also be 
amended to include 3no 
dormer windows to the 
proposed increase roof 
space.

76 Cwmphil Road
Lower Cwmtwrch
Swansea
SA9 2PX

21/2278/HH Erection of an outbuilding 36 Ynyscedwyn Road
Ystradgynlais
Powys
SA9 1BH

21/2260/HH Proposed rear single story 
extension.

64 Brecon Road
Ystradgynlais
Swansea
SA9 1HH

Approve 17/12/2021 Householder 14/02/2022

01/03/2022

Approve 16/12/2021 Householder 15/02/2022

Approve 10/12/2021 Householder 14/02/2022

Approve 15/12/2021 Householder

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 47 of 48

T
udalen 153



Delegated List 

212 Applications

22/0061/NMA Application for Non 
Material Amendment  for 
the variation of condition 2 
of planning permission 
20/1696/FUL (to vary 
approved plans)

Pont Aur
Ystradgynlais
Swansea
Powys
SA9 1BP

21/1874/FUL Erection of a dwelling and 
all associated works

Land Rear Of 32 And 34 
And Brecon Road
Brecon Road
Ystradgynlais
Swansea
Powys
SA9 1HE

21/1987/FUL Erection of 3 dwellings 
and associated works

Development Land At 
21 Cwmphil Road
Lower Cwmtwrch
Swansea
SA9 1DE

Consent 17/11/2021 Full Application 17/02/2022

Applicatio 212

Consent 18/10/2021 Full Application 15/02/2022

Approve 19/01/2022 Non-Material 
Amendment

14/02/2022

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
10/03/2022 12:56:41 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 48 of 48

T
udalen 154


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol
	4 Ceisiadau cynllunio i'w hystyried gan y Pwyllgor.
	4.2 21/1381/FUL Fferm Wern Halog, Llanfaredd, Llanfair-ym-Muallt, Powys, LD2 3TE
	211381ful

	4.3 20/1338/RES Tir wrth ymyl Shop Lane, Sarn, Y Drenewydd, Powys, SY16 4DQ
	201338res

	5 Penderfyniadau'r Pennaeth Eiddo, Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd ar Geisiadau Dirprwyedig

